
 

City Council Agenda 1 August 23, 2016 
 

MISSIO� VIEJO AGE�DA 
City Council, Community Development Financing Authority, 
Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency,  

Housing Authority, and Library Board of Trustees* 
 August 23, 2016, at 5:00 PM (Closed Session Business) 

August 23, 2016, at 6:00 PM (General Business) 
 
City Hall, 200 Civic Center, Mission Viejo, California, 92691           City Council Chamber 
 
CALL TO ORDER—CITY COU�CIL, COMMU�ITY DEVELOPME�T FI�A�CI�G 
AUTHORITY, SUCCESSOR AGE�CY OF THE COMMU�ITY DEVELOPME�T AGE�CY, 
HOUSI�G AUTHORITY, A�D LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES  
 
*�ote: All Board and Agency memberships are reflected in the title “Council Member.” 
 
ROLL CALL: Council Member Raths 
   Council Member Sachs 
   Council Member Schlicht 
   Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum 
    Mayor Ury 
 
 
CLOSED SESSIO� 
 
CS1. Conference with Legal Counsel Pursuant to Government Code 54957(a) on Matters 

Posing a Threat to Public Services, Facilities and Operations 
 
CS2. Conference with Legal Counsel- Anticipated Litigation Significant exposure to 

litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: Two 
anticipated cases; one adverse to Mayor Ury and the other adverse to the City, both  
as threatened by Capistrano Unified School District ("CUSD") after it held closed 
session(s) and announced its decision in public. The apparent reason for the threats of 
lawsuit against a public official and the City is as regards the City and its official(s) 
expressing concerns and issues in relation to a proposed but not yet adopted public 
finance bond measure proposed by CUSD 

 
REPORT OF CLOSED SESSIO� 
 
I�VOCATIO�: Council Member Sachs 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIA�CE: Council Member Raths 
 
PRESE�TATIO�S 
 
PUBLIC COMME�TS 
 
Persons wishing to address the Council on City business that is not listed on the Agenda may do so 



 

City Council Agenda 2 August 23, 2016 
 

at this time.  "Public Comment" forms are available at the entrance to the Council Chamber.  Each 
Speaker may be allotted three minutes.  
 
Those wishing to address the Council on any item that is listed on the Agenda should submit to the 
City Clerk a "Request to Speak"  or "Written Comments" form before the Mayor announces that 
agenda item.  The Mayor will call speakers during consideration of each item. 
 
CO�SE�T CALE�DAR 
 
1. Waive Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the reading by title of all ordinances and resolutions and 
declare that said titles which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have been 
read by title and further reading waived.  

 
2. City Council Minutes 
 

Recommended Action: (1) Approve the Minutes for the regular  City Council meeting of 
July 12, 2016, as presented or as amended, and (2) approve the Minutes for the special City 
Council meeting of July 26, 2016, as presented or as amended. 

 
3. Check Register Dated July 8, 2016 in the Amount of $3,851,648.76 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify the accompanying check register. 
 
4. Check Register Dated July 15, 2016 in the Amount of $2,734,572.32 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify the accompanying check register. 
 
5. Check Register Dated July 22, 2016 in the Amount of $682,634.84 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify the accompanying check register. 
 
6. Check Register Dated July 29, 2016 in the Amount of $684,499.39 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify the accompanying check register. 
 
7. Check Register Dated August 5, 2016 in the Amount of $1,206,920.37 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify the accompanying check register. 
 
8. City Treasurer’s Monthly Report for June 2016 
 

Recommended Action: Receive and file. 
 
9. Mission Viejo Community Development Financing Authority (MVCDFA) Treasurer’s 

Monthly Report for June 2016 
 

Recommended Action: Receive and file. 



 

City Council Agenda 3 August 23, 2016 
 

 
10. Mission Viejo Housing Authority (MVHA) Treasurer’s Monthly Report for June 2016 
 

Recommended Action: Receive and file. 
 
11. Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency Treasurer’s Monthly 

Report for 
June 2016 

 
Recommended Action: Receive and file. 

 
12. Shared Services Agreement with City of Rancho Santa Margarita for Stormwater and 

Solid Waste Program Management 
 

Recommended Action: (1) Approve the Agreement with the City of Rancho Santa 
Margarita for Shared Stormwater and Solid Waste Program Management Services; and (2) 
adopt Resolution 16-XX Amending the FY 2016/17 Authorized Position Schedule and the 
Public Works Program Budget in the General Fund. 

 
13. Project V Local Transit Cooperative Agreement 
 

Recommended Action: (1) Approve Cooperative Agreement No. C-6-1292 between the 
Orange County Transportation Authority and the City of Mission Viejo for Project V 
Community-Based Transit/Circulators; and (2) Adopt Resolution 16-XX Establishing Fund 
222 for Project V Grant Fund, Program 525 for Project V Community-Based 
Transit/Circulator Operations and CIP 234 for Associated Capital Costs and Amending the 
FY 2016-17 Budget for Costs Related to Fund 222, Program 525 and CIP 234. 

 
14. Pavion Park Restroom Construction (CIP 304) - �otice of Completion 
 

Recommended Action: (1) Certify the completion of and accept the improvements for the 
subject project; (2) authorize the City Manager to sign the Notice of Completion;  (3) 
authorize the City Clerk to record Notice of Completion with the County of Orange and to 
release the Faithful Performance and Payment Bonds one year and thirty- five (35) days 
respectively, after the date of recordation of the Notice of Completion contingent upon no 
claims or liens being filed with the City and (4) authorize the payment of the final retention 
of $16,583.25 thirty-five (35) days after the date of recordation of the Notice of 
Completion. 

 
15. First Amendment to the Legislative Advocacy and Government Relations Services 

Agreement 
 

Recommended Action: Approve First Amendment to the existing contract with the 
Professional Services Agreement with Townsend Public Affairs for the period of July 1, 
2016 to June 30, 2017 for State legislative advocacy and government relations services for a 
total not to exceed the amount of $60,000. 

 
16. Traffic Signal Maintenance-Contract Change Order 1 



 

City Council Agenda 4 August 23, 2016 
 

 
Recommended Action: (1) Approve Contract Change Order 1 to Contract A15-54 with 
Computer Service Company in the amount of $63,387.70; and (2) adopt Resolution 16-XX 
Amending the Fiscal Year 2015–2016 Operating Budget for Costs Related to Traffic Signal 
Maintenance. 

 
17. 2016 Residential Resurfacing-Slurry Seal (CIP 838) 
 

Recommended Action: Award the construction contract for the subject project to Roy Allan 
Slurry Seal, Inc., in the amount of $282,827.65. 

 
18. Consultant Services for Producer/Director of Mission Viejo Television SportsZone 

Show 
 

Recommended Action: (1) Award a contract for the subject services to Eric Winter for the 
period of August 23, 2016, through June 30, 2017, in the amount of $37,600; and (2) 
authorize issuance of a purchase order to Eric Winter for the period of August 23, 2016, 
through June 30, 2017, in an amount not to exceed $37,600. 

 
19. Geographic Information System (GIS) Renewal 
 

Recommended Action: Approve second amendment to agreement with Digital Map 
Products; and approve issuance of purchase order to Digital Map Products for 2016-17 
services in the amount of $42,419.00. 

 
20. Marguerite Parkway Roadway Pollutant and Runoff Abatement Project: Alarcon to 

Santa Margarita Parkway (CIP 229) 
 

Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution 16-XX Authorizing An Application for Funds for 
the Environmental Cleanup, Tier 1 Grant Program Under Orange County Local 
Transportation Ordinance No. 3 for the Marguerite Parkway Roadway Pollutant and Runoff 
Abatement Project: Alarcon to Santa Margarita Parkway (CIP 229) 

 
21. Installation of Soil Tiebacks under Avery Parkway 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the Soil Tieback Agreement with Sherwood Classics, LLC 
(GreenStreet Development) subject to any minor revisions required by the City Attorney 
and/or City Engineer. 

 
ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CO�SE�T CALE�DAR 
 
PUBLIC HEARI�GS 
 
22. Proposed Abatement of Weeds on Parcels Less than One Acre for the Annual Weed 

Abatement Program 2016 - Phase 2. 
 

Recommended Action: Instruct the Public Services Department to proceed and perform the 
removal of weeds in accordance with Sections 39568 through 39588 of the Government 
Code. 



 

City Council Agenda 5 August 23, 2016 
 

 
23. Consideration of the Issuance of Multi-Family Revenue Housing Bonds by The 

California Municipal Finance Authority (CMFA) for the Benefit of the Developer and 
Borrower, Heritage Villas Housing Partners, LP, in Connection with Financing the 
Acquisition, Substantial Rehabilitation and Improvement of the Existing 143-Unit 
Heritage Villas Senior Affordable Housing Project 

 
Recommended Action: Adopt Resolution 16-XX Authorizing and Directing Execution of a 
Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement with the California Municipal Finance Authority and 
Approving the Issuance of Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds by the CMFA to Finance 
the Acquisition and Rehabilitation of that Certain Existing 143-Unit Senior Multi-Family 
Rental Housing Project for the Benefit of the Developer And Borrower, Heritage Villas 
Housing Partners, LP, and Making Certain Other Findings Related Thereto 

 
MAYOR’S, COMMISSIO�, COMMITTEE REPORTS A�D ACTIO�S 
 
24. Update on CUSD Bond Measure 
 

Recommended Action: As necessary. 
 
25. Orange County Fire Authority (OCFA) Report 
 

Recommended Action: Receive report.  
 
26. Foothill/Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency Report 
 

Recommended Action: Receive report.  
 
27. San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor Agency Report 
 

Recommended Action: Receive report.  
 
28. Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) 
 

Recommended Action: Receive report.  
 
STAFF REPORTS 
 
COU�CIL MEMBER COMME�TS A�D ACTIO�S 
 
29. Council Member Reports of Events and Activities Attended 
 

Recommended Action: Receive reports.  
 
Council Member Raths 
 
Council Member Sachs 
 
Council Member Schlicht 



 

City Council Agenda 6 August 23, 2016 
 

 
30. A report to the Citizens of Mission Viejo on the Kosmont Report: The Retail and 

Market Strategy with potential for infilling commercial properties with mixed-use 
development including residential 

 
Recommended Action: Receive and file.  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum 
 
Mayor Ury 
 
 
Adjournment to Tuesday, September 13, 2016, at 5:00 PM 
 
 
At the hour of 9:30 p.m., the City Council will review the remaining agenda items and make a 
decision regarding the items to be considered before the 11:00 p.m. adjournment and the items to 
be continued to the next meeting. 
 
 

�OTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

Supplemental material received after the posting of the Agenda 
 
Any supplemental writings or documents distributed to a majority of the City Council regarding any 
item on this Agenda, after the posting of the Agenda, will be available for public review in the City 
Clerk’s Office located at 200 Civic Center, Mission Viejo, California, during normal business hours.  In 
addition, such writings or documents will be made available on the City’s web site at 
http://cityofmissionviejo.org/ and will be available for public review at the respective meeting. 
  
If you have any questions regarding any item of business on the Agenda for this meeting, please contact 
City Clerk’s Office staff at (949) 470-3052 or by email – cityclerk@cityofmissionviejo.org. 

 



 

City Council Minutes          1                        July 12, 2016 
 

 

 

 

MISSION VIEJO MINUTES 
City Council, Community Development Financing Authority, 

Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency, 

Housing Authority, and Library Board of Trustees* 
 

July 12, 2016 

 

A Regular Meeting of the City Council, the Community Development Financing Authority, the 

Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency, the Housing Authority, and the 

Library Board of Trustees of the City of Mission Viejo, California, was called to order by Mayor 

Pro Tem Bucknum at 5:02 p.m., on July 12, 2016, at 200 Civic Center, Mission Viejo, California.  

A complete copy of the agenda for the meeting containing all items as shown herein was posted 

by 5:00 p.m. on July 7, 2016, on the outdoor bulletin board at City Hall. Copies were also posted 

at the Montanoso Recreation and Fitness Center, 25800 Montanoso Drive, and the Norman P. 

Murray Community and Senior Center, 24932 Veterans Way.  

*All Board and Agency memberships are reflected in the title "Council Member." 

Present:  Council Member Raths  

Council Member Sachs 

Council Member Schlicht (arrived at 5:06 p.m.) 

Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum 

Mayor Ury (arrived at 5:11 p.m.) 

  

Absent:  None 

 

Staff Present:  Dennis Wilberg, City Manager  

William P. Curley III, City Attorney 

Keith Rattay, Assistant City Manager/Director of Public Services 

Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 

Kimberly Schmitt, Assistant City Clerk  

 

CLOSED SESSION  
 

CS1.  Conference with Legal Counsel Pursuant to Government Code 54957(a) on Matters 

Posing a Threat to Public Services, Facilities and Operations  
 

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION AND RECONVENE 

 

At the hour of 5:03 p.m., Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum recessed the meeting to Closed Session.  The 

City Council reconvened at 6:01 p.m. with all five City Council Members present. 

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          2                        July 12, 2016 
 

 

 

REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION  
 

City Attorney Bill Curley announced that staff provided an update to the City Council but no 

reportable actions occurred. 

 

INVOCATION: Mayor Ury  
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum  
 

PRESENTATIONS  
 

P1.  Recognize The Shirt Cannery on their 40th Anniversary  
 

 Mayor Ury presented the proclamation to Julie Marshall, owner of the Shirt Cannery. 

 

P2.  Recognize Solar Power Pools, Lululemon Athletica, and St. Kilian Catholic Church 

as "Certified Green Businesses"  
 

 Due to conflicting schedules, this presentation was postponed to a future meeting. 

 

 Presentation to Lieutenant Brad NewMyer  
 

 
Mayor Ury presented a Certificate of Recognition to Lieutenant Brad NewMyer upon his 

retirement as Chief of Police Services. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  
 

Larry Gilbert, M.V.: spoke about the current Vision Plan process and expressed concern that the 

City is not following the Mission Viejo Company's slogan of "The California Promise." 

 

Robert David Breton, M.V.: proposed that the Council consider adopting two ordinances before 

the November election, one that would require an incumbent Council Member to resign from his 

or her office in order to run for another office except in the final year of their service on the City 

Council.  The second proposed ordinance would require that an incumbent Council Member who 

resigned to run for another office would be required to reimburse the City for the costs of a special 

election caused by his or her resignation. 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

Items 4, 5, 12, and 13 were removed from the Consent Calendar for separate consideration. 

 

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum, seconded by Council Member Sachs, to approve the 

Consent Calendar as outlined below. 

  

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote:  

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          3                        July 12, 2016 
 

 

 

AYES: Bucknum, Raths, Sachs, Schlicht, and Ury 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 

   

1.  Waive Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions  
 

 

Approved the reading by title of all ordinances and resolutions and declared that said titles 

which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have been read by title and further 

reading waived. 

 

2.  City Council Minutes  
 

 Approved the Minutes for the regular City Council meeting of June 28, 2016, as presented. 

 

3.  Contract Renewal with OCTA for Senior Mobility Program Transportation  
 

 Approved renewal of OCTA Contract for Senior Mobility Program transportation. 

 

6.  Check Register Dated July 1, 2016 in the Amount of $455,801.88  
 

 Ratified the accompanying check register. 

 

7.  City Treasurer’s Monthly Report for May 2016  
 

 Received and filed. 

 

8.  Mission Viejo Housing Authority (MVHA) Treasurer’s Monthly Report for May 

2016  
 

 Received and filed. 

 

9.  Mission Viejo Community Development Financing Authority (MVCDFA) 

Treasurer’s Monthly Report for May 2016  
 

 Received and filed. 

 

10.  Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency Treasurer’s Monthly 

Report for May 2016  
 

 Received and filed. 

 

11.  Revisions to City of Mission Viejo Personnel Policies  
 

 Adopted Resolution 16-36, Providing for the Revisions to select Personnel Policies. 

  

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          4                        July 12, 2016 
 

 

 

14.  Fleet Motorcycle Maintenance  
 

 

Awarded a Contract to Huntington Beach Honda (A16-25) in the amount of $104,000 for 

the Police Services Motorcycle Maintenance Program for the term beginning July 1, 2016, 

to June 30, 2018. 

 

15.  Security  Guard Services - City Facilities and Special Events  
 

 

(1) Approved First Amendment to the existing contract with The Green Angels Private 

Security (A16-26A) for the subject services; and (2) issued a change order in an amount 

not to exceed $6,232.00. 

 

16.  Expansion of the Mission Viejo Animal Services Center Administration Building  
 

 
Approved the plans and specifications and authorized staff to advertise for bids for the 

expansion of the Administration Building at the Mission Viejo Animal Services Center. 

 

17.  City of Mission Viejo Seven-Year Public Works Capital Improvement Program (FY 

2016-17-FY 2022-23)  
 

 

(1) Adopted Resolution 16-37 Adopting a Seven-Year Public Works Capital Improvement 

Program beginning with the 2016-17 Fiscal Year; and (2) directed the Director of Public 

Works to transmit the adopted Seven-Year Public Works Capital Improvement Program to 

the Orange County Transportation Authority by July 31, 2016. 

 

18.  Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) Call For Projects-Cycle 8-Citywide 

Installation of Countdown Pedestrian Signal Heads at Signalized Intersections  
 

 

(1) Adopted Resolution 16-38 Authorizing the Director of Public Works to Submit an 

Application for Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) Grant Funds for Citywide 

Installation of Countdown Pedestrian Signal Heads at Signalized Intersections; and (2) 

directed staff to transmit the adopted Resolution to Caltrans by August 12, 2016, in 

conjunction with the City's funding application for said project. 

 

ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR  
 

4.  Check Register Dated June 17, 2016 in the Amount of $695,626.58  
 

 

Council Member Schlicht drew attention to a payment made to the Orange County 

Conservation Corps for charges related to landscape renovations and water conservation 

efforts.  She stated that the City's slopes are looking worse and worse.  

 

Assistant City Manager/Director of Public Services Keith Rattay stated that he will have 

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          5                        July 12, 2016 
 

 

 

to get back to her with an answer on the specific locations that were included in the payment 

to the Orange County Conservation Corps. 

Motion made by Council Member Schlicht, seconded by Mayor Ury, to ratify the 

accompanying check register. 

  

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote:  

 

AYES: Bucknum, Raths, Sachs, Schlicht, and Ury 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 
 

   

5.  Check Register Dated June 24, 2016 in the Amount of $1,150,635.21  
 

 

Council Member Schlicht inquired about a payment made to Edmond Otis for a workshop 

session entitled “dealing with difficult people.” She asked about the purpose of the 

workshop and who attended.  

 

Director of Administrative Services Cheryl Dyas responded that the City has provided a 

series of training sessions for employees as part of management and supervisory 

development and this was one of the sessions. 

Motion made by Council Member Schlicht, seconded by Mayor Ury, to ratify the 

accompanying check register. 

  

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote:  

 

AYES: Bucknum, Raths, Sachs, Schlicht, and Ury 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 
 

  

12.  Replacement of the City’s Recreation Management Software System  
 

 

Director of Information Technology Jackie Alexander presented the staff report. 

 

Council Member Schlicht asked questions about the cost of the software and the gross 

receipts for the City's recreation programs. 

Motion made by Council Member Schlicht, seconded by Mayor Ury, to (1) approve 

entering into 5-year agreement with and issuance of purchase orders to PerfectMind 

Technology Inc. in an amount not to exceed $257,180 (including 10% project and support 

contingency) for the licensing, implementation, and ongoing support of the PerfectMind 

recreation management solution; and (2) approve entering into 5-year agreement with, 

payment of $5000 initial hardware costs to, and payment of operational fees (estimated per 

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          6                        July 12, 2016 
 

 

 

matrix below) to Moneris Solutions, Inc. for credit card transaction processing and 

merchant services in connection with the PerfectMind recreation management solution.\ 

 

AYES: Bucknum, Raths, Sachs, Schlicht, and Ury 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 
 

    

13.  Purchase of Network and Wireless Hardware  
 

 

Council Member Schlicht asked what funding will cover the capital outlay for this project. 

 

Director of Information Technology Jackie Alexander responded that the budgeted amount 

is included in the 2015-16 Information Technology budget and Director of Administrative 

Services Cheryl Dyas noted that the funds will be carried over to the current budget year. 

Motion made by Council Member Schlicht, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum, to 

approve entering into agreement for professional services and issuance of purchase order 

for network hardware to Resilient Communications (A16-24) in the amount of $489,449.01 

including a 10% project contingency. 

  

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote:  

 

AYES: Bucknum, Raths, Sachs, Schlicht, and Ury 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 
 

   

OLD BUSINESS  
 

19.  Update on CUSD Bond Measure Issue  
 

 

City Manager Wilberg reminded the Council that Director of Administrative Services 

Cheryl Dyas gave an update on her attendance at the recent CUSD board meeting at the 

last City Council Meeting. Between then and now the City asked additional questions of 

the District and have not received responses.  Mr. Wilberg also noted that staff invited 

CUSD representatives to tonight's meeting but they were unable to attend. 

 

20.  Marguerite Aquatics Complex - Authorization to Bid  
 

 

Assistant City Manager/Director of Public Services Keith Rattay presented the staff report.  

 

Kimberly Barnes, M.V.: thanked the City Council and staff for their help and support for 

this project. She stated that the Nadadores Foundation has reviewed the funding agreement, 

are pleased with the terms, and are prepared to provide the first payment that is due to the 

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          7                        July 12, 2016 
 

 

 

City.  She further announced that the Nadadores have been working very hard on their 

fundraising efforts. 

Motion made by Council Member Raths, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum, to (1) 

approve the working drawings and specifications and authorize City Staff to issue plans to 

the four prequalified contractors; and (2) adopt Resolution 16-39 Amending the CIP 325 

Budget, Marguerite Aquatics Complex Rehabilitation. 

  

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote:  

 

AYES: Bucknum, Raths, Sachs, Schlicht, and Ury 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 
 

   

21.  Mission Viejo Nadadores Foundation Funding Agreement  
 

 

Assistant City Manager/Director of Public Services Keith Rattay presented the staff report. 

Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum, seconded by Council Member Raths, to (1) 

authorize the Mayor to sign the Mission Viejo Nadadores Foundation Funding Agreement 

(A16-27); and (2) authorize City Staff to send a letter requesting the initial payment of the 

agreed upon commitment. 

  

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote:  

 

AYES: Bucknum, Raths, Sachs, Schlicht, and Ury 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 
 

   

MAYOR’S, COMMISSION, COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ACTIONS  
 

22.  Economic Development Committee  
 

 

Council Member Sachs reported on the City's first vision plan workshop which was held 

on June 30.  

 

The following spoke in support of the revitalization of the civic core area: Larry Belkin, 

M.V.; Ron Lerman, M.V.; Garry Wertz, M.V.; and Dave Berg, M.V. 

 

23.  Voting Delegate and Alternate(s) for the 2016 League of California Cities Annual 

Conference  
 

 

Mayor Ury appointed Ed Sachs as voting delegate and Greg Raths and Wendy Bucknum 

as alternates for the League of California Cities Conference Annual Business Meeting on 

October 5, 2016. 

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          8                        July 12, 2016 
 

 

 

STAFF REPORTS  
 

COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS AND ACTIONS  
 

24.  Council Member Reports of Events and Activities Attended  
 

 

By consensus, the City Council Members acknowledged their event and activities 

calendars as presented in the report and agreed to provide any changes to the City Clerk 

for the public record. 

 

Council Member Raths  
 

Council Member Raths asked that the meeting be adjourned in memory of the late Marian 

Bergeson and he shared highlights of Mrs. Bergeson's life. 

 

Council Member Sachs  
 

Council Member Sachs wished Lt. NewMyer the best in his retirement.  He stated that he has been 

fortunate to know Lt. NewMyer for the last 18 months and it doesn't take long to get to know and 

understand someone's character.  He shared a story about Lt. NewMyer calling him out for rules 

violations while they were playing golf and Council Member Sachs said that honor is part of the 

Lieutenant's DNA.  He stated that the wherever Lt. NewMyer goes and whatever he does, his 

service will benefit many for generations to come. 

 

Council Member Schlicht  
 

25.  Civic Core Area Vision Plan  
 

 Council Member Schlicht read her agenda report. 

  

Council Member Schlicht commended Lt. Brad NewMyer for his service to the City of Mission 

Viejo.  She stated that he brings honor to his uniform and it has been a pleasure to know him.  She 

also expressed appreciation for his out-of-the-box thinking and his dedication to public service. 

Council Member Schlicht asked staff if city hall and the library can be lit in blue in honor of our 

nations fallen officers.  In closing, she shared an audio-video recording of John Wayne reading 

a speech called "The Hyphen" from the album America, Why I Love Her.  

 

Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum  
 

Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum stated that the video Council Member Schlicht shared is a reminder of 

how divided the country is.  She encouraged people to be kind to one another and set an example 

for the children.  Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum announced that she is hosting a town hall meeting on 

Monday July 18, 2016, from 6:00 to 7:30 p.m. on the topics of Neighborhood Watch and public 

safety.  She too thanked Lt. NewMyer for his dedication and service and she shared a story of his 

participation at the 4th of July street faire after driving in from Montana the same day.  He has 

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          9                        July 12, 2016 
 

 

 

answered every question the Council has posed with grace and dignity and he is a great example 

of what she will look for in a future leader of police services.  She stated that he is very proactive 

and he gets out in front of issues instead of leading from behind.  Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum 

discussed the fallen officers in Dallas and stated that it is gut-wrenching to know that they were 

protecting the community when they were killed. 

 

Mayor Ury  
 

Mayor Ury discussed Lt. NewMyer's dedication and character and he thanked him for his service 

to the community and the City Council.  He expressed a very sincere thank you and wished Lt. 

NewMyer all the best in the future. 

 

ADJOURNMENT  
 

At the hour of 8:33 p.m., with no further business to come before the City Council at this session, 

Mayor Ury adjourned the meeting in memory of Marian Bergeson, to Tuesday, August 23, 2016, 

at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

______________________________________________  

Karen Hamman, City Clerk  

 

 

Approved at the meeting of August 23, 2016 

 

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          1                         July 26, 2016 
 

 

 

 

MISSION VIEJO MINUTES 
City Council Special Meeting 

 

July 26, 2016 

 

A Special Meeting of the City Council of the City of Mission Viejo, California, was called to order 

by Mayor Ury at 6:03 p.m., on July 26, 2016, at 200 Civic Center, Mission Viejo, California.  

A complete copy of the agenda for the meeting containing all items as shown herein was posted 

by 5:00 p.m. on July 19, 2016, on the outdoor bulletin board at City Hall. Copies were also posted 

at the Montanoso Recreation and Fitness Center, 25800 Montanoso Drive, and the Norman P. 

Murray Community and Senior Center, 24932 Veterans Way.  

Present:  Council Member Raths  

Council Member Sachs 

Council Member Schlicht 

Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum 

Mayor Ury  

  

Absent:  None 

 

Staff Present:  Dennis Wilberg, City Manager  

William P. Curley III, City Attorney 

Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 

Karen Hamman, City Clerk  

   

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Council Member Raths  

 

INVOCATION: Mayor Ury  

 

OPEN SESSION  
 

1.  Update on CUSD Bond Measure Issue  
 

 

Mayor Ury discussed the proposed bond measure, presented materials and responses to his 

queries, and expressed concern with the lack of specificity that the Capistrano Unified School 

District (CUSD) has provided regarding the projects, dollar amounts and schools/cities that 

are proposed to be included in the projects under the bond.  

 

Item#2.              



 

City Council Minutes          2                         July 26, 2016 
 

 

 

The following expressed their opposition to the proposed CUSD bond measure: Erika 

Schulte, M.V.; Sharon Campbell, M.V.; Wayne Tate, M.V.; Barbara Casserly, M.V.; Dawn 

Urbanek, San Clemente; Judy Bullockus, M.V.; Robert David Breton, M.V.; and Jim Young, 

M.V. 

 

The following presented a written comment in opposition to the proposed bond measure: 

Ellen Natsume, M.V.  

 

City Manager Wilberg and Director of Administrative Services Cheryl Dyas discussed staff's 

attendance at recent CUSD Board meetings and staff's belief that the school district has been 

unresponsive to the City’s request for detailed information on the projects proposed within 

the bond tax. 

The Council Members discussed the bond measure, the CUSD’s lack of response to queries, 

and expressed unanimous opposition to the measure, including submitting written opposition 

to CUSD.  The Mayor assumed the lead role as to presenting further opposition to the 

proposed CUSD public financing. 

Motion made by Mayor Ury, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum, to (1) take a formal 

position of opposition to the Capistrano Unified School District’s (CUSD) proposed bond 

measure; and (2) approve the draft letter dated July 26, 2016, to the CUSD Board of Trustees 

regarding the City's position on the proposed ballot measure for the November 8, 2016, 

election. 

  

On roll call, said motion carried by the following vote:  

 

AYES: Bucknum, Raths, Sachs, Schlicht, and Ury 

NOES: None 

ABSENT: None 
 

 

CLOSED SESSION  
 

There was no closed session meeting. 

 

ADJOURNMENT  
 

At the hour of 7:38 p.m., with no further business to come before the City Council at this session, 

Mayor Ury adjourned the meeting to Tuesday, August 23, 2016, at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

______________________________________________  

Karen Hamman, City Clerk  

  

Approved at the meeting of August 23, 2016 

Item#2.              



 



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Check Register dated July 8, 2016 in the amount of $3,851,648.76 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Ratify the accompanying check register. 
  
Executive Summary 

Government Code sections 37208(b) and 37209 provide that accounts payable warrants or checks drawn in 
payment of demands certified or approved by the finance director as conforming to a budget approved by 
ordinance or resolution of the legislative body need not be audited by the legislative body prior to payment.  
City Council Policy #300-4 authorizes the Director of Administrative Services to audit the demands prior to 
payment and calls for such checks to be issued on a weekly basis and the check register for each of the weekly 
pay cycles to be submitted to the City Council for ratification at the next regular Council meeting.   
 
The following checks have been certified to be in accordance with the City’s approved budget. The checks 
have been issued and the check register is presented to the City Council for ratification. 
 
In addition, Government Code section 37208(a) provides that payroll warrants or checks need not be audited 
by the legislative body prior to payment.  Payrolls shall be presented to the legislative body for ratification and 
approval at the first meeting after delivery of the payroll warrants or checks.  The sum total of any payroll 
checks issued within the week prior to the date of the check register is also noted on the accompanying check 
register. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: YES (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers. NO Optg. NO Cap. NO   -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

October 22, 1990 – Approved Council policy 300-4  
February 2, 2004 – Approved the revision of Council policy 300-4 
   
Attachments 

Exhibit 
 

 
 

Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



Item#3.              



 



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Check Register dated July 15, 2016 in the amount of $2,734,572.32 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Ratify the accompanying check register. 
  
Executive Summary 

Government Code sections 37208(b) and 37209 provide that accounts payable warrants or checks drawn in 
payment of demands certified or approved by the finance director as conforming to a budget approved by 
ordinance or resolution of the legislative body need not be audited by the legislative body prior to payment.  
City Council Policy #300-4 authorizes the Director of Administrative Services to audit the demands prior to 
payment and calls for such checks to be issued on a weekly basis and the check register for each of the weekly 
pay cycles to be submitted to the City Council for ratification at the next regular Council meeting.   
 
The following checks have been certified to be in accordance with the City’s approved budget. The checks 
have been issued and the check register is presented to the City Council for ratification. 
 
In addition, Government Code section 37208(a) provides that payroll warrants or checks need not be audited 
by the legislative body prior to payment.  Payrolls shall be presented to the legislative body for ratification and 
approval at the first meeting after delivery of the payroll warrants or checks.  The sum total of any payroll 
checks issued within the week prior to the date of the check register is also noted on the accompanying check 
register. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: YES (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers. NO Optg. NO Cap. NO   -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

October 22, 1990 – Approved Council policy 300-4  
February 2, 2004 – Approved the revision of Council policy 300-4 
   
Attachments 

Exhibit 
 

 
 

Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



Item#4.              



 



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Check Register dated July 22, 2016 in the amount of $682,634.84 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Ratify the accompanying check register. 
  
Executive Summary 

Government Code sections 37208(b) and 37209 provide that accounts payable warrants or checks drawn in 
payment of demands certified or approved by the finance director as conforming to a budget approved by 
ordinance or resolution of the legislative body need not be audited by the legislative body prior to payment.  
City Council Policy #300-4 authorizes the Director of Administrative Services to audit the demands prior to 
payment and calls for such checks to be issued on a weekly basis and the check register for each of the weekly 
pay cycles to be submitted to the City Council for ratification at the next regular Council meeting.   
 
The following checks have been certified to be in accordance with the City’s approved budget. The checks 
have been issued and the check register is presented to the City Council for ratification. 
 
In addition, Government Code section 37208(a) provides that payroll warrants or checks need not be audited 
by the legislative body prior to payment.  Payrolls shall be presented to the legislative body for ratification and 
approval at the first meeting after delivery of the payroll warrants or checks.  The sum total of any payroll 
checks issued within the week prior to the date of the check register is also noted on the accompanying check 
register. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: YES (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers. NO Optg. NO Cap. NO   -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

October 22, 1990 – Approved Council policy 300-4  
February 2, 2004 – Approved the revision of Council policy 300-4 
   
Attachments 

Exhibit 
 

 
 

Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



Item#5.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Check Register dated July 29, 2016 in the amount of $684,499.39 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Ratify the accompanying check register. 
  
Executive Summary 

Government Code sections 37208(b) and 37209 provide that accounts payable warrants or checks drawn in 
payment of demands certified or approved by the finance director as conforming to a budget approved by 
ordinance or resolution of the legislative body need not be audited by the legislative body prior to payment.  
City Council Policy #300-4 authorizes the Director of Administrative Services to audit the demands prior to 
payment and calls for such checks to be issued on a weekly basis and the check register for each of the weekly 
pay cycles to be submitted to the City Council for ratification at the next regular Council meeting.   
 
The following checks have been certified to be in accordance with the City’s approved budget. The checks 
have been issued and the check register is presented to the City Council for ratification. 
 
In addition, Government Code section 37208(a) provides that payroll warrants or checks need not be audited 
by the legislative body prior to payment.  Payrolls shall be presented to the legislative body for ratification and 
approval at the first meeting after delivery of the payroll warrants or checks.  The sum total of any payroll 
checks issued within the week prior to the date of the check register is also noted on the accompanying check 
register. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

October 22, 1990 – Approved Council policy 300-4  
February 2, 2004 – Approved the revision of Council policy 300-4 
   
Attachments 

Exhibit 
 

 
 

Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



Item#6.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Check Register dated August 5, 2016 in the amount of $1,206,920.37 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Ratify the accompanying check register. 
  
Executive Summary 

Government Code sections 37208(b) and 37209 provide that accounts payable warrants or checks drawn in 
payment of demands certified or approved by the finance director as conforming to a budget approved by 
ordinance or resolution of the legislative body need not be audited by the legislative body prior to payment.  
City Council Policy #300-4 authorizes the Director of Administrative Services to audit the demands prior to 
payment and calls for such checks to be issued on a weekly basis and the check register for each of the weekly 
pay cycles to be submitted to the City Council for ratification at the next regular Council meeting.   
 
The following checks have been certified to be in accordance with the City’s approved budget. The checks 
have been issued and the check register is presented to the City Council for ratification. 
 
In addition, Government Code section 37208(a) provides that payroll warrants or checks need not be audited 
by the legislative body prior to payment.  Payrolls shall be presented to the legislative body for ratification and 
approval at the first meeting after delivery of the payroll warrants or checks.  The sum total of any payroll 
checks issued within the week prior to the date of the check register is also noted on the accompanying check 
register. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: YES (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers. NO Optg. NO Cap. NO   -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

October 22, 1990 – Approved Council policy 300-4  
February 2, 2004 – Approved the revision of Council policy 300-4 
   
Attachments 

Exhibit 
 

 
 

Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



Item#7.              



 



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

City Treasurer’s Monthly Report for June 2016 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Receive and file. 
  
Executive Summary 

A monthly report from the City Treasurer regarding receipts, disbursements and fund balances is required by 
Government Code Section 41004.  The accompanying report for June meets this Government Code 
requirement, as well as the requirements of other sections of the Government Code and the City’s Investment 
Policy.  This report excludes the investment portfolio of the Successor Agency of the Community 
Development Agency, the Housing Authority and the Community Development Financing Authority. 
 
The Government Code requires delivery to the City Council of the Treasurer’s report within 30 days after the 
close of the reporting period.  This item will be acted upon by the City at the first meeting possible after 
delivery to the Council.  In this case, the report is scheduled for the August 23, 2016 meeting. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

      
   
Attachments 

Exhibits – City’s Treasurer’s Report for June  2016; City Summary Report for June  2016; Graph Exhibit; City 
Reconciliation of Cash Disbursements for June  2016; Investment Transactions for June  2016; Investment 
Detail for June  2016 
 

 
 

Item#8.              



Item#8.              



Item#8.              



Item#8.              



Item#8.              



Item#8.              



Item#8.              



Item#8.              



Item#8.              



Item#8.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Mission Viejo Community Development Financing Authority (MVCDFA) Treasurer’s Monthly Report for 
June 2016 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Receive and file. 
  
Executive Summary 

A monthly report from the Authority Treasurer regarding receipts, disbursements and fund balances is required 
by Government Code Section 41004.  The accompanying report for June meets this Government Code 
requirement, as well as the requirements of other sections of the Government Code. 
 
The Government Code requires delivery to the Authority Board of the Treasurer’s report within 30 days after 
the close of the reporting period.  This item will be acted upon by the Authority at the first meeting possible 
after delivery to the Authority Board.  In this case, the report is scheduled for the August 23, 2016 meeting. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

      
   
Attachments 

Exhibits – CDFA Treasurer’s Monthly Report for June 2016; CDFA Reconciliation of Cash Disbursements for 
June 2016; CDFA Investments Transactions Summary for June 2016; CDFA Investment Detail for June 2016 
 

 
 

Item#9.              



Item#9.              



Item#9.              



Item#9.              



Item#9.              



Item#9.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Mission Viejo Housing Authority (MVHA) Treasurer’s Monthly Report for June 2016 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Receive and file. 
  
Executive Summary 

A monthly report from the Authority Treasurer regarding receipts, disbursements and fund balances is required 
by Government Code Section 41004.  The accompanying report for June meets this Government Code 
requirement. 
 
The Government Code requires delivery to the Authority Board of the Treasurer’s report within 30 days after 
the close of the reporting period.  This item will be acted upon by the Authority at the first meeting possible 
after delivery to the Authority Board.  In this case, the report is scheduled for the August 23, 2016 meeting. 
This report includes the activity of the former CDA Housing Fund.  
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

      
   
Attachments 

Exhibits - MVHA Treasurer’s Report for June 2016; MVHA Reconciliation of Cash Disbursements for June 
2016; MVHA Investment Detail for June 2016 
 

 
 

Item#10.              



Item#10.              



Item#10.              



Item#10.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency Treasurer’s Monthly Report for 
June 2016 
 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Receive and file. 
  
Executive Summary 

A monthly report from the Agency Treasurer regarding receipts, disbursements and fund balances is required 
by Government Code Section 41004.  The accompanying report for June meets this Government Code 
requirement, as well as the requirements of other sections of the Government Code and the Agency’s 
Investment Policy. 
 
The Government Code requires delivery to the Agency Board of the Treasurer’s report within 30 days after the 
close of the reporting period.  This item will be acted upon by the Agency at the first meeting possible after 
delivery to the Agency Board.  In this case, the report is scheduled for the August 23, 2016 meeting. This 
report excludes the activity of the former CDA Housing Fund. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

      
   
Attachments 

Exhibits - SACDA Treasurer’s Report for June 2016; SACDA Reconciliation of Cash Disbursements for June 
2016 
 

 
 

Item#11.              



Item#11.              



Item#11.              



 



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Mark Chagnon, Director of Public Works 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services/City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Shared Services Agreement with City of Rancho Santa Margarita for Stormwater and Solid Waste Program 
Management 
 
 
Recommended Action 

(1) Approve the Agreement with the City of Rancho Santa Margarita for Shared Stormwater and Solid Waste 
Program Management Services; and (2) Adopt Resolution 16-XX amending the FY 2016/17 Authorized Position 
Schedule and the Public Works Program Budget in the General Fund. 
  
Executive Summary 

The City of Rancho Santa Margarita has been contracting with a consulting firm to provide professional services 
for stormwater/NPDES and solid waste program oversight.  As that contract was coming to an end, Rancho Santa 
Margarita entered into discussion with Mission Viejo’s Public Works Department regarding the possibility of 
shared services.  Utilizing a common staff person, both cities would benefit from improved efficiency.  For 
example, one person to attend regional water quality meetings on behalf of both cities.  In addition to cost savings 
for both cities, the proposed shared services agreement would also strengthen the cities’ cooperative working 
relationship (Mission Viejo and Rancho Santa Margarita recently entered into an agreement for Animal Services). 
 
Mission Viejo Public Works Department’s Program Engineer currently works 30 hours per week, handling 
NPDES matters and assisting with solid waste and environmental programs.  Under the proposed agreement, the 
Program Engineer position will be increased to full-time (40 hours per week), with an average of 16 hours per 
week working at Rancho Santa Margarita (reduced to 24 hours per week at Mission Viejo).  Rancho Santa 
Margarita will provide a work space with computer, office supplies, etc., and compensate Mission Viejo at the rate 
of $78 per hour for services rendered.  This hourly rate is based on Mission Viejo’s burdened rate for the Program 
Engineer position.  The effective 6 hours per week reduction for this position at Mission Viejo should result in an 
annual savings to the City of around $24,000.  
 
The contract will renew annually and includes a rate adjustment provision based on the consumer Price Index 
(CPI).  A detailed scope of services is presented in Exhibit A of the agreement.  Other circumstances 
notwithstanding, it is intended that the Public Works Program Engineer position would revert to 0.75 FTE should 
this agreement with Rancho Santa Margarita be terminated.  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $27,176 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: YES (with adoption of Resolution 16-XX) 
Prog/Fund #516101 Category:  Pers. YES Optg. NO Cap. NO   -or-   CIP #       Fund #      

Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

N/A  
Attachments 

Draft Agreement 
Draft Resolution 
 

 

Item#12.              



1 

AGREEME�T FOR E�GI�EERI�G SERVICES 
(Shared Stormwater and Solid Waste Program Management Services) 

 
 
 THIS AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES ("Agreement") is entered into 
this ____ day of ________ 2016, by and between the City of Mission Viejo, California 
(“Mission Viejo”), a general law city, and the City of Rancho Santa Margarita, California 
("Rancho Santa Margarita"), a general law city, and is effective on the commencement date set 
forth in Section 1 of this Agreement.  Mission Viejo and Rancho Santa Margarita are sometimes 
hereinafter individually referred to as "Party" and are hereinafter collectively referred to as the 
"Parties." 
 

WIT�ESSETH: 
 
  I. Rancho Santa Margarita desires to contract with Mission Viejo for the performance of the 

hereinafter-described engineering services. 
 
 II. Mission Viejo is willing and able to render engineering services on the terms and 

conditions hereinafter set forth. 
 
III. Rancho Santa Margarita and Mission Viejo desire to enter into an agreement wherein 

Mission Viejo will permit a designated staff person to perform professional services for 
Rancho Santa Margarita for up to 12 months as a workforce development opportunity 

 
IV. The workforce development opportunity arrangement will provide a public benefit to 

both Parties as it will allow Rancho Santa Margarita to provide ongoing necessary 
services when needed as well as providing ongoing opportunities beneficial to Mission 
Viejo and its employees 

 
 V. The purpose of this Agreement is to set forth the terms and conditions governing the 

understanding between the Parties 
 
 �OW THEREFORE, THE PARTIES AGREE AS FOLLOWS:  
 
  1. TERM 
 

This Agreement shall become effective on August 29, 2016, shall continue in full 
force and effect until June 30, 2017 ("Initial Term"), and shall automatically renew 
on July 1 each year thereafter unless terminated as provided for in Sections 2 or 10 of 
this Agreement. 

 
  2. TERMI�ATIO� 
 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, either Party may terminate this 
Agreement for its convenience at any time, without cause, upon giving the other Party 
ninety (90) days’ advanced written notice.  Such notice shall state the termination date. 

 

Item#12.              



2 

 
  3. SERVICES 
 

A. Mission Viejo proposes to provide a staff person to perform the engineering 
services set forth in the Scope of Work, attached hereto as Exhibit A (the 
"Services").  The staff person (hereinafter, the "Consultant") shall work under the 
supervision and direction of the Rancho Santa Margarita Public Works 
Director/City Engineer or his designee.  Rancho Santa Margarita shall provide a 
work space with phone and computer with access to printer, internet, and 
network, as well as typical office supplies. 

 
B. It is intended that the Consultant will work at the City of Rancho Santa 

Margarita sixteen (16) hours per week.  The standard number of hours per 
week may be adjusted subject to approval by both Mission Viejo and Rancho 
Santa Margarita.  To provide flexibility, in a given week, the number of hours 
worked may vary depending on the demands and workloads of the respective 
cities; and when necessary, work may be performed for Rancho Santa 
Margarita when the Consultant is not physically present at Rancho Santa 
Margarita, subject to the prior approval of the Rancho Santa Margarita Public 
Works Director/City Engineer or his designee.  The total annual hours worked 
by Consultant in Rancho Santa Margarita will be based on 832 hours per year (or 
16 hours per week for 52 weeks) plus an additional 125 hours as a 15 percent 
contingency for as-needed hours for a total 957 hours per year. 

 
 C. Mission Viejo has represented that the Services will be provided by Deborah 

Carson.  If Deborah Carson becomes unavailable to act as the Consultant, 
Mission Viejo shall provide a replacement, within a mutually agreed upon 
time frame, of at least equal competence and at the same rate, subject to 
written approval by Rancho Santa Margarita. 

 
 D. Rancho Santa Margarita may remove the Consultant if Rancho Santa 

Margarita determines the Consultant is not performing satisfactorily, refuses 
to follow Rancho Santa Margarita's administrative policies, rules and 
regulations, or violates any federal, state, or local laws.  Rancho Santa 
Margarita shall notify Mission Viejo of the removal and this Agreement will 
be deemed terminated unless Mission Viejo provides a replacement, within a 
mutually agreed upon time frame, of at least equal competence and at the 
same rate, subject to written approval by Rancho Santa Margarita.  

 
 E. Mission Viejo shall be responsible for counseling and disciplining designated 

staff person of Mission Viejo.  Rancho Santa Margarita may provide input on 
designated staff person's performance to Rancho Santa Margarita and may 
request Mission Viejo take disciplinary action against designated staff person 
of Mission Viejo.  Mission Viejo shall maintain designated staff person's 
records, including but not limited to, personnel file, medical file, and 
discipline file. 

Item#12.              



3 

 F. Both Parties agree not to subcontract, assign, or otherwise transfer the 
Agreement or any part of the Services to be performed under this Agreement 
without prior written consent and approval from the other Party.  

 
  4. STATUS OF CO�TRACTOR 
 

A. Although the Services are municipal functions, the Consultant shall be a 
Mission Viejo employee; the Consultant shall have no right to any Rancho Santa 
Margarita pension or civil service status.  The Consultant shall be for all purposes 
an independent contractor to Rancho Santa Margarita.  No employment 
relationship between the Consultant and Rancho Santa Margarita is expressed or 
implied by this Agreement. 

 
B. When performing Services under this Agreement and for the purpose of giving 

official status to the performance therefor where necessary, but not for the 
purpose of liability or indemnification, the Consultant shall be deemed to be an 
officer or agent of Rancho Santa Margarita. 

 
C. Mission Viejo shall assume sole and exclusive responsibility for the determination 

of and payment of the Consultant's salary, wages, and benefits during the term of 
this Agreement.  

 
D. Mission Viejo shall be solely responsible for the payment of any payroll taxes, 

withholdings, and any other insurance premiums and benefits of any kind owed to 
Consultant. 

 
E. Mission Viejo agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold Rancho Santa Margarita 

harmless against any claims for wages, salary, benefits, or withholdings made by 
or on behalf of Consultant or any government entity for work performed under 
this Agreement. 

 
F. Mission Viejo shall, at its sole cost and expense, provide Consultant with 

Workers' Compensation coverage during the term of this Agreement.  Mission 
Viejo agrees to defend, indemnify, and reimburse Rancho Santa Margarita for any 
and all costs associated with Workers' Compensation coverage to Consultant 
during the period Consultant provides Services under this Agreement.  

 
  5. COMPE�SATIO� 
 

Rancho Santa Margarita shall compensate Mission Viejo at a rate of Seventy-Eight 
Dollars ($78) per Hour for Services provided by the Consultant.  In addition, Rancho 
Santa Margarita shall compensate Mission Viejo for Consultant’s personal vehicle 
mileage, excluding commute mileage, at the established Internal Revenue Service (IRS) 
rate. “Commute mileage,” for purposes of this Section, means mileage between 
Consultant’s home and Rancho Santa Margarita as required to perform the Services in 
this Agreement.  Although the Consultant may confer with other Mission Viejo 

Item#12.              



4 

employees regarding Services, only the hours worked by the Consultant shall be billed to 
Rancho Santa Margarita.  For work efforts or attendance at meetings which benefit both 
Mission Viejo and Rancho Santa Margarita equally, only fifty percent (50%) of the hours 
shall be billed to Rancho Santa Margarita.  In April of each year, Mission Viejo may 
submit a written request for rate adjustment (to be effective July 1) based on the annual 
change of the March Consumer Price Index (CPI).  In no event shall any adjustment of 
any fee, hourly rate or unit price exceed five percent (5%) per year regardless of CPI or 
any other cost factors. 
 
The total annual not-to-exceed contract amount for the Initial Term of the Agreement will 
be Seventy-Four Thousand, Six Hundred Forty-Six Dollars and �o Cents 
($74,646.00) and is subject to increase in any successive renewal term based on the CPI 
increase as provided in this Section. 
 
Rancho Santa Margarita shall make payments to Mission Viejo within forty-five (45) 
days after receipt of an invoice for Services performed by Consultant.  

 
  6. BI�DI�G ARBITRATIO� 
 
 Any dispute that cannot be settled by good-faith negotiation shall be settled by binding 

arbitration in accordance with the Rules of the American Arbitration Association.  
Arbitrators shall be selected from the list of retired judges of the Orange County Superior 
Court or any California appellate court.  The arbitration shall be held in Orange County, 
California.  Any decision or award rendered by the Arbitrator shall be in writing stating a 
factually detailed, reasoned opinion of the Arbitrator's findings of fact and conclusions of 
law, and shall be signed by the Arbitrator.  The Arbitrator, in deciding any dispute, shall 
base his or her decision or award on the record; shall have no power or authority to award 
special, consequential, punitive, or exemplary damages; and shall look to the substantive 
laws, and not the laws of conflicts, of the State of California for the resolution of the 
Dispute.  Both Parties reserve the right to conduct full discovery pertinent to California 
Code of Civil Procedure, Section 1283.05.  Any costs for said Arbitration shall be borne 
equally by both Parties. 

 
  7. RECORDS 
 
 All records created in accordance with this Agreement by Mission Viejo, including 

Consultant, for purposes exclusively internal to Mission Viejo shall be Mission Viejo 
records.  All other records created or received in accordance with this Agreement by 
either Party shall be Rancho Santa Margarita records. 

 
  8. ALTERATIO� OF TERMS 
 
 This Agreement fully expresses all understandings of Mission Viejo and Rancho Santa 

Margarita with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement, and shall constitute the 
total Agreement between the Parties for these purposes.  No addition, or alteration, of the 

Item#12.              



5 

terms of this Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing, formally approved and 
executed by duly authorized agents of both Parties. 

 
  9. I�DEM�IFICATIO� 
 
 A. That neither Mission Viejo nor any officer or employee thereof shall be 

responsible for any damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or 
omitted to be done by Rancho Santa Margarita under or in connection with any 
work, authority or jurisdiction delegated to Rancho Santa Margarita under this 
Agreement.  It is also understood and agreed that, pursuant to Government Code 
Section 895.4, Rancho Santa Margarita shall fully defend, indemnify and hold 
Mission Viejo harmless from any liability imposed for injury (as defined by 
Government Code Section 810.8), including attorneys’ fees and costs, occurring 
by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by Rancho Santa Margarita 
under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction delegated to 
Rancho Santa Margarita under this Agreement. 

 
 B. That neither Rancho Santa Margarita nor any officer or employee thereof shall be 

responsible for any damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or 
omitted to be done by Mission Viejo under or in connection with any work, 
authority or jurisdiction delegated to Mission Viejo under this Agreement.  It is 
also understood and agreed that, pursuant to Government Code Section 895.4, 
Mission Viejo, shall fully defend, indemnify and hold Rancho Santa Margarita 
harmless from any liability imposed for injury (as defined by Government Code 
Section 810.8), including attorneys’ fees and costs, occurring by reason of 
anything done or omitted to be done by Mission Viejo under or in connection with 
any work, authority or jurisdiction delegated to Mission Viejo under this 
Agreement. 

 
10. BREACH OF AGREEME�T 
 
 Except as provided in Section 2 of this Agreement, if either Mission Viejo or Rancho 

Santa Margarita defaults in the performance of the terms or conditions of the Agreement, 
it shall have thirty (30) days after service upon it of a written notice of default in which to 
cure the default by rendering satisfactory performance.  In the event that a Party fails to 
cure its default within such period of time, the other Party shall have the right, 
notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, to terminate this Agreement 
without further notice and without prejudice to any other remedy to which it may be 
entitled at law, in equity, or under this Agreement.  The failure of either Party to object to 
any default in the performance of the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not 
constitute a waiver of either the term or condition, or of any other term or condition of 
this Agreement. 

 
11. ATTOR�EYS’ FEES 
 
 If any legal proceeding or arbitration, including an action for declaratory relief, is brought 

Item#12.              



6 

to enforce or interpret provisions of this Agreement, the prevailing Party will be entitled 
to reasonable attorneys’ fees, which may be set by the court in the same action or in a 
separate action brought for that purpose, in addition to any other relief to which the Party 
may be entitled. 

 
12. �OTICES 
 
 Unless the persons or addresses are otherwise identified by notice given in the manner 

specified by this paragraph, all notices authorized or required by this Agreement shall be 
deemed effective when reduced to writing and deposited in the United States mail, 
certified, and addressed as follows: 

 
 To Mission Viejo: Mark Chagnon 
  Director of Public Works 
  City of Mission Viejo 
  200 Civic Center 
  Mission Viejo, California 92691 
 
 To Rancho Santa Margarita: E. (Max) Maximous 
  Director of Public Works 
  City of Rancho Santa Margarita 
  22112 El Paseo 
  Rancho Santa Margarita, California 92688 
 
  

Item#12.              



7 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 
the day and year first above written. 
 
CITY OF MISSIO� VIEJO CITY OF RA�CHO SA�TA MARGARITA 
 
 
 
    
Frank Ury  L. Anthony Beall 
Mayor  Mayor 
 
ATTEST:  ATTEST: 
 
 
 
    
Karen Hamman  Amy Diaz 
City Clerk  City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
    
William P. Curley III  Gregory E. Simonian 
City Attorney  City Attorney 
 
 

Item#12.              



 

8 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 
 
The staff person provided by Mission Viejo (referred to as “Consultant” herein) to Rancho Santa 
Margarita shall perform the following engineering services: 
 
Stormwater/�PDES Program Oversight 
 
  1. Ensure that Rancho Santa Margarita’s National Pollution Discharge Elimination System 

(NPDES) Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) permit requirements are 
complied with, including total maximum daily load (TMDL) implementation, water 
pollution-prevention programs and stormwater ordinance enforcement.   

 
  2. Coordinate Rancho Santa Margarita’s NPDES program and serve as a main liaison with 

the San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board and the County of Orange and 
attend various countywide meetings.   

 
  3. Partner with Rancho Santa Margarita’s code enforcement officer.   
 
  4. Represent Rancho Santa Margarita at various regulatory compliance meetings. 
 
 A. Meetings include but are not limited to:  NPDES General Permittee Meetings, San 

Juan Creek Watershed Meetings, South Orange County Watershed Management 
Area Management Committee Meetings, South Orange County Watershed 
Management Area Executive Committee Meetings, Local Implementation 
Plan/Program Effectiveness Assessment Sub-Committee Meetings, NPDES 
Legal/Regulatory Advisory Sub-Committee Meetings, Trash and Debris Task 
Force Meeting Public Education Sub-Committee Meetings, NPDES Technical 
Advisory Committee Meetings, NPDES Inspection Sub-Committee Meetings, and 
San Diego Regional Board Meetings. 

 
  5. Obtain proper and pertinent training by attending countywide training. 
 
 A. Trainings include but are not limited to:  South Orange County 

Hydromodification Model Training, Stormwater Program Manager Training, 
Illegal Discharge and Illicit Connection Training, Plan Check Training, 
Commercial/ Industrial/Municipal Inspector Training, and Post-Construction 
Inspection Training. 

 
  6. Review and approve submittals of Water Quality Management Plans (WQMPs), Non-

Priority Water Quality Management Plans, Erosion and Sediment Control Plans and 
Water Pollution Control Plans (WPCPs) for Rancho Santa Margarita and private 
development projects.  

 

Item#12.              



 

9 

  7. Respond to emergency spills and properly document the incidents, including illicit 
connections and illegal discharges.  

 
 A. Communicate with appropriate parties to mitigate incidences and maintain 

tracking system of all complaints, investigations and correspondence.  
 
  8. Have knowledge of, train and update Rancho Santa Margarita staff regarding new 

technologies, changing mandates, regulations, and NPDES items. 
 
  9. Manage and maintain NPDES budget.  
 
10. Manage mobile business registration and inspection program. 
 
11. Review/plan check project plans, specifications and other documents for compliance with 

stormwater regulations.  
 
12. Manage and coordinate the NPDES code enforcement activities. Work with code 

enforcement officer to bring NPDES issues into compliance.  
 
13. Conduct routine water quality inspections for commercial, industrial, municipal and 

construction sites. 
 
 A. Routine inspections also include following up and working with code 

enforcement to do inspections for facilities referred to by Orange County Health 
Care Agency, and Orange County Pollution Prevention Hotline. 

 
14. Manage and update stormwater inventories to track NPDES activities. 
 
 A. Inventory includes tracking of municipal facilities, commercial facilities, 

industrial facilities, mobile businesses, homeowners associations, development 
projects, and construction sites.  

 
15. Conduct annual inspections of MS4 outfalls in the Rancho Santa Margarita. 
 
16. Oversee maintenance of catch basins, stenciling of catch basins, and drainage 

maintenance. 
 
17. Annually distribute and review NPDES Activity Reports from Homeowner Associations 

in Rancho Santa Margarita. 
 
18. Manage database and tracking of annual maintenance verification of post-construction 

BMPs installed. 
 
19. Apply for applicable grant funding opportunities. 
 

Item#12.              



 

10 

 A. Grant funding opportunities may include but are not limited to OCTA M2 Tier 1 
Grants. 

20. Prepare an annual report in accordance with government regulations. 
 
 A. Report on Rancho Santa Margarita’s NPDES elements which include but are not 

limited to:  legal authority, illicit discharge detection and elimination program, 
development planning program, construction management program, existing 
development and management program, public education and participation 
program, and fiscal analysis. 

 
21. Collaborate and confer with developers, contractors and engineers on water quality issues 

related to grading plans and encroachment permits. 
 
22. Attend events and conduct public education for stormwater pollution prevention. 
 
23. Act as liaison with various environmentally-related resource agencies as it relates to 

public and private projects within Rancho Santa Margarita. 
 
24. Have knowledge of NPDES legislation and recommend implementation of program 

elements as necessary and required to be in compliance with NPDES regulations.  
 
Solid Waste Program Oversight 
 
  1. Assist Rancho Santa Margarita staff in the general oversight and reporting of Rancho 

Santa Margarita’s solid waste program, solid waste haulers, and various sub-programs.  
General tasks will include: 

 
 A. Annual Report Data Compilation.  Consultant shall develop and maintain a 

database that illustrates Rancho Santa Margarita’s relevant waste generation data 
during the contract period.  This information will be updated and reviewed on a 
monthly basis.  Consultant will synthesize the tracked data to prepare and submit 
Rancho Santa Margarita’s Annual Report to the State. 

 
  1) Compile and report data including but not limited to:  Disposal and 

diversion rates of solid waste, composting and mulching, procurement, 
business waste, source reduction program, materials exchange, food 
collection through food bank, residential curbside pick-up, residential 
drop-off program, residential buy-back program, commercial on-site and 
off-site pick-up, commercial self-haul, school collection services, special 
collection events, greenwaste collection, food composting, white goods, 
scrap metals, wood waste, concrete/asphalt/rubber material, electronic 
waste, economic incentives, ordinances, alternative daily cover and 
education programs.  

 
 B. Consultant shall represent Rancho Santa Margarita for solid waste program audits 

with California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle). 

Item#12.              



 

11 

 
 1) Program audits shall include conference calls and site visits. 
 

 C. Review Franchise Waste Hauler’s Annual Rate Increase and Agreement.  
 

  1) Consultant shall review Rancho Santa Margarita’s Franchise Waste 
Hauler’s Request for Annual Rate Increase.  Upon evaluating the request, 
Consultant shall prepare a recommendations memorandum to Rancho 
Santa Margarita.   

 
 D. Consultant shall review and analyze Rancho Santa Margarita’s Franchise Waste 

Hauler’s agreement to ensure that Rancho Santa Margarita is receiving the 
services that comply with the agreement.   

 
  1) Franchise agreement items that will be monitored include but are not 

limited to: franchise fee payment, outreach fee, administrative fee, bulky 
waste pick-up program, electronic waste recycling, residential and 
commercial recycling collection, multi-family recycling, roll-off service, 
green waste collection, holiday tree collection, events, universal waste 
collection, household sharps collection, food waste collection, diversion 
requirements, vehicle cleaning and maintenance, replacement of carts and 
containers, litter abatement, spill clean-up, transportation, transportation 
and disposal of refuse, customer billing, complaint documentation, 
education and public awareness, compost giveaways, rate adjustments, 
grants, records, reports, and monthly/quarterly/annual reports. 

 
 E. Consultant shall coordinate electronic waste and document shredding events. 
 
 F. Consultant shall be knowledgeable of solid waste legislation and recommend 

implementation of program elements as necessary and required to be in 
compliance with solid waste regulations.  

 
  1) Legislation includes, but is not limited to, AB 1826, AB 1594, AB 341, 

AB 939, and AB 32. 
 
 G. Used Oil Recycling Program.  Consultant shall work with the County of Orange 

to implement and administer Rancho Santa Margarita’s Used Oil Recycling 
Program.  Meeting attendance is not included for this task.  

 
 H. Temporary Hauler Permit Program.  Consultant shall assist Rancho Santa 

Margarita in the administration of its Temporary Waste Hauler Permit program.   
 
  1) Review and approve temporary hauler permit applications and evaluate 

permitted haulers for compliance.  
 

Item#12.              



 

12 

 I. Certified Construction and Demolition (C&D) Recycling Facility Oversight.  
Consultant shall provide program oversight at Rancho Santa Margarita’s Certified 
C&D Recycling facilities.  

  1) Consultant shall review quarterly reports submitted by each facility and 
monitor overall facility compliance.   

  2) Consultant shall track diversion and disposal tonnages from reports 
submitted. 

 
 J. Municipal Universal Waste Recycling Program.  Consultant shall administer 

Rancho Santa Margarita’s Municipal Universal Waste Collection program located 
at City Hall.  Staff will be responsible for ensuring that universal waste containers 
(used by municipal staff) are transported to an appropriate recycling facility and 
supply Rancho Santa Margarita with new containers as containers are filled.  

 
 K. Beverage Container Grant Program.  Consultant shall administer the Beverage 

Container Recycling Grant program, ensuring that Rancho Santa Margarita is 
utilizing funds in an efficient and effective manner as well as remaining in 
compliance with grant guidelines. 

 
 L. Consultant shall prepare and submit an annual 303 Hazardous Waste Collection 

Information form to CalRecycle. 
 
 M. Prepare and submit annual Hazardous Waste ID Number Verification and 

Manifest Fees Assessment to the Department of Toxic Substances Control. 
 
 N. Prepare and submit Hazardous Material Disclosure Annual Certification to the 

Orange County Health Care Agency. 
 
 O. Meetings.  Consultant shall represent Rancho Santa Margarita at South County 

Recycling Coordinators meetings, as well as the County of Orange’s Recycling 
Coordinators meetings.   

 
 P. Residential and Commercial Recycling Program.  Consultant shall assist Rancho 

Santa Margarita in enhancing its recycling program throughout the city.  
Consultant will incorporate public outreach into his/her activities.   

 
  

Item#12.              



 

13 

Reference Materials  
 
Consultant shall be knowledgeable and utilize relevant guidelines, documents, legal notices, and 
any other additional reference material as appropriate.  Consultant shall also be responsible for 
ensuring the most recent version of all relevant documents and reference materials are used, 
including any addenda and errata.  Such reference material may include, but is not limited to, the 
following: 
 

• California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Determination 
• Environmental Protection Act (EPA) 
• Regulatory Permits 
• California Regional Water Quality Control Board Requirements 

§ San Diego Regional Water Quality Control Board and the County of Orange  
• California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) Requirements 
• Applicable City of Rancho Santa Margarita Codes and Manuals 
• Construction Best Management Practices (BMPs) 
• Microsoft Office for development of reports and technical memorandums, as requested 

Item#12.              



RESOLUTION NO. 16-XX 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MISSION VIEJO AMENDING THE FY 2016/17 AUTHORIZED 
POSITION SCHEDULE AND THE PUBLIC WORKS 
PROGRAM BUDGET IN THE GENERAL FUND 

 
 
 WHEREAS, staff is requesting that the Public Works Program Engineer position be 
increased from 0.75 FTE to 1.0 FTE in the Authorized Position Schedule; and 
 

WHEREAS, the expected cost of said increase for the remainder of FY 2016/17 is 
$27,176; and 
 
 WHEREAS, through a shared-services agreement with the City of Rancho Santa 
Margarita, there will be sufficient revenues received to fund this increase for the remainder of 
FY 2016/17 in the expected amount of $48,000; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a funding appropriation is required should this position be increased in the 
Authorized Position Schedule; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That regular staff positions are hereby amended and authorized for FY 
2016/17 in accordance with Exhibit A to this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 2.  Increase revenues in the City’s General Fund in the amount of $48,000.  
 
 SECTION 3.  Appropriate $27,176 in the General Fund into the Public Works Water 
Quality program (516101) for funding of the Program Engineer position increase through June 
30, 2017. 
 
 SECTION 4.  The City Clerk shall certify the adoption of this resolution. 
 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of August, 2016. 
 
 
 
              
       Frank Ury 
       Mayor 
 
  

Item#12.              



 I, KAREN HAMMAN, City Clerk of the City of Mission Viejo, hereby certify that the 
foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Mission Viejo at a 
regular meeting thereof, held on the 23rd day of August, 2016, by the following vote of the 
Council: 
 
 AYES:  
 NOES:  
 ABSENT: 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
Karen Hamman 
City Clerk 
 

Item#12.              



EXHIBIT A 
 

Item#12.              



  

Item#12.              



 

Item#12.              



 



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Mark Chagnon, Director of Public Works 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services/City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Project V Local Transit Cooperative Agreement 
 
 
Recommended Action 

(1) Approve Cooperative Agreement No. C-6-1292 between the Orange County Transportation Authority and the 
City of Mission Viejo for Project V Community-Based Transit/Circulators; and (2) Adopt Resolution 16-XX 
Establishing Fund 222 for Project V Grant Fund, Program 525 for Project V Community-Based Transit/Circulator 
Operations and CIP 234 for Associated Capital Costs and Amending the FY 2016-17 Budget for Costs Related to 
Fund 222, Program 525 and CIP 234.  
  
Executive Summary 

On February 23, 2016, Council approved the submittal of grant applications for three potential local transit routes 
(see attached map).  These included an operational grant for the Blue Line and a planning grant for the Orange and 
Green Lines.  In June, the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) approved both grants.  The proposed 
draft Cooperative Agreement is for the operation of the Blue Line only at this time, with a separate agreement to 
follow for the Orange and Green Lines planning efforts.  
 
In order to accommodate maximum annual funding limits, the typical operational grant was based on capital outlay 
for new buses in FY 2016-17 with actual operations not beginning until FY 2017-18.  However, in consideration 
that OCTA is implementing bus service cuts this fall and because Mission Viejo requested the deferral of bus 
purchases until the success of the new service had been established, OCTA staff developed a plan for Mission 
Viejo to use existing buses to start service this year.  In addition, although OCTA will order two new buses for the 
second year of service, the City is under no financial obligation for the buses until they are actually placed in 
service.  Thereafter, the City would be responsible only for 30% of the depreciation. 
 
The draft Cooperative Agreement defines the terms of operation.  OCTA will operate the service on behalf of the 
City, including all maintenance, fuel, fare collection, security, insurance, and customer service (for operational 
issues).  OCTA will also handle the procurement of new buses.  The City will be responsible for marketing, 
branding, and bus stop improvements.  Exhibit C of the Agreement summarizes the respective roles of each 
agency. 
 
Exhibit B of the Agreement summarizes the funding for the program, which is for a period of seven years (six 
years of operation).  The City will be responsible for 30% of capital costs and 10% of operating costs.  The City 
will reimburse OCTA for the City’s share of new bus procurement (30%) and operating costs (10%), while OCTA 
will reimburse the City for OCTA’s share of bus stop improvements, marketing and branding (70%). 
 
In the first year (FY 2016-17), capital costs will include bus stop improvements and marketing and branding of the 
service.  The total capital cost will not exceed $199,000, of which the City will be reimbursed 70% (up to 
$139,300 through the OCTA grant).  OCTA will front the operating costs and invoice the City for its 10% share 
(not to exceed $45,589).  Thus, the total City budget for FY 2016-17 will be $244,589 ($105,289 City 
funds/$139,300 reimbursable through OCTA).  Because the OCTA Board had not yet formally approved the 
project and because the funding schedule had yet to be determined, this cost was not included in the City’s FY 

Item#13.              



 
 

2016-17 budget.  The draft resolution proposes to establish the fund/program/project, appropriate the OCTA grant 
revenues, and for the City's cost share, transfer the necessary AQMD funds (fund 219) from the Marguerite 
Parkway Signal Synchronization Project (CIP 230) and replace said transferred funds with gas tax funds (fund 211) 
from savings due to favorable bids recently received for the Residential Resurfacing Program (CIP 838). 
 
In the second through sixth years, there are only minor capital cost allowances for marketing and slightly increased 
operating cost allowances to provide the option of adding Saturday service.  It is expected that AQMD funds will 
be used to fund the City’s share, not to exceed $57,384 per year. 
 
The City will not be obligated to fund its share ($126,000) of the cost of procuring two new buses ($420,000) for 
the service until the seventh year.  As stated previously, OCTA intends to order the new buses such that they are 
ready to place in service during the second year.  If the service fails to meet minimum ridership requirements after 
the first year and is canceled, the City will have no financial obligation for the buses.  OCTA will own the buses 
purchased, and the City will be responsible only for 30% of depreciated value while they are in service in Mission 
Viejo.  The buses typically have a useful life of at least 7 years.  Thus, if the service is cancelled at any time or not 
extended beyond the currently funded six years of operation, the City’s obligation will be less than the $126,000 
reflected in the funding summary. 
 
It is important to note that the City’s share of the operations cost (not to exceed $45,589 in FY 2016-17) is 
conservatively based on no fare revenue being collected.  To the extent that fare (or advertising) revenue is 
collected, the City’s share of the operations cost will be reduced.  Some fare options will be presented for 
Council’s consideration at a future date prior to the start of service. 
 
 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $244,589 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: NO (See Draft Resolution) 
Prog/Fund #525219 Category:  Pers. NO Optg. YES Cap. NO   -or-   CIP #       Fund #219 $45,589 
Prog/Fund #051219 Category:  Pers. NO Optg. NO   Cap. NO   -or-   CIP #234  Fund #219 $59,700 
Prog/Fund #051222 Category:  Pers. NO Optg. NO   Cap. NO   -or-   CIP #234  Fund #222 $139,300 

  
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

2-23-2016 Authorization to Submit Grant Applications 
  
Attachments 

Draft Agreement 
Map 
Draft Resolution 
 

 

Item#13.              



 

Page 1 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

BETWEEN 

ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 

AND 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 

FOR 

PROJECT V COMMUNITY-BASED TRANSIT/CIRCULATORS  

THIS AGREEMENT is effective this     day of     , 2016, by 

and between the Orange County Transportation Authority, 600 South Main Street, Orange, California 

92863-1584, a public corporation of the State of California (hereinafter referred to as “AUTHORITY”), 

and the City of Mission Viejo, 200 Civic Center, Mission Viejo, California 92691, a municipal corporation 

duly organized and existing under the constitution and laws of the State of California (hereinafter 

referred to as “CITY”) (mutually referred to herein as “PARTIES” or each individually as a “PARTY”). 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, AUTHORITY and CITY desire to enter into a Cooperative Agreement to define the 

roles and responsibilities related to funding between AUTHORITY and CITY for two buses, bus stop 

amenities, marketing and operation of a community circulator (hereinafter referred to as “PROJECT”), 

further defined by the project description provided by the Project description in Exhibit A; and 

WHEREAS, AUTHORITY’s Board of Directors (Board) approved the Renewed Measure M (M2)  

Eligibility Guidelines - Local Agency Preparation Manual on January 25, 2010, and subsequent 

amendments, most recently on April 11, 2016; and  

WHEREAS, AUTHORITY’s Board approved the Comprehensive Transportation Funding 

Programs (CTFP) Guidelines on March 22, 2010; and  

WHEREAS, AUTHORITY’s Board approved the revised Project V - Community based Transit 

Circulator Program Guidelines on November 23, 2015; and  

/ 

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 2 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

 WHEREAS, AUTHORITY will periodically update the M2 Eligibility Guidelines - Local Agency 

Preparation Manual and the CTFP Guidelines whereby the most recent update is incorporated herein 

by reference; and  

WHEREAS, AUTHORITY and CITY agree that M2 funding is subject to CITY fulfilling M2 

eligibility requirements; and  

WHEREAS, AUTHORITY and CITY agree that PROJECT must adhere to the CTFP Guidelines 

precepts except where specific, more detailed instruction is provided through Project V guidelines or 

within this Cooperative Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, CITY and AUTHORITY agree that AUTHORITY shall provide two buses and 

operate service on CITY’s behalf; and 

WHEREAS, AUTHORITY will provide federally required complementary paratransit service; 

and 

WHEREAS, CITY shall act as lead to perform all marketing for the PROJECT, purchase bus 

stop amenities (including bus shelters, bus benches, trash cans, sidewalks, curb and gutter and ramps) 

and provide all signage and maintenance for the bus stop amenities including adherence to 

AUTHORITY safety requirements for bus stops; and 

WHEREAS, PROJECT bus service/operations is fixed-route, open to the public, and fully 

accessible for persons with disabilities in compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act; and 

WHEREAS, AUTHORITY’s Board has approved Project V funding for PROJECT for up to 

seven (7) years in the total amount not-to-exceed Three Million, Three Hundred Thirty-Two Thousand, 

Eight Hundred Seventy-Nine Dollars ($3,332,879), and AUTHORITY and CITY agree that the capital 

amount to be provided by AUTHORITY is Four Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand, Three Hundred 

Dollars ($475,300) and the annual operating subsidy will be provided consistent with operating statistics 

as defined in the Project V Guidelines in an uninflated amount of Two Million, Eight Hundred Fifty-

Seven Thousand, Five Hundred Seventy-Nine Dollars ($2,857,579). 

WHEREAS, CITY has agreed to provide a minimum of thirty percent (30%) local match for 

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 3 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

minimum capital purchases of Six Hundred Seventy-Nine Thousand Dollars ($679,000) and additional 

local match for operations and maintenance costs to meet operating expenses not covered by 

AUTHORITY subsidy and fares/fees; and  

WHEREAS, this Cooperative Agreement defines the specific terms, conditions, roles and 

funding responsibilities between AUTHORITY and CITY for PROJECT(s); and 

WHEREAS, CITY’s Council approved this Cooperative Agreement on this 23rd day of August, 

2016;  

NOW, THEREFORE, it is mutually understood and agreed by AUTHORITY and CITY as 

follows: 

ARTICLE 1.  COMPLETE AGREEMENT 

A. This Agreement, including any attachments incorporated herein and made applicable 

by reference, constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of the term(s) and condition(s) of this 

Agreement between PARTIES and it supersedes all prior representations, understandings, and 

communications.  The invalidity in whole or in part of any term(s) or condition(s) of this Agreement 

shall not affect the validity of other term(s) or condition(s) of this Agreement. The above-referenced 

Recitals are true and correct and are incorporated by reference herein. 

B. AUTHORITY’s failure to insist on any instance(s) of CITY’s performance of any 

term(s) or condition(s) of this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of 

AUTHORITY’s right to such performance or to future performance of such term(s) or condition(s), 

and CITY’s obligation in respect thereto shall continue in full force and effect.  Changes to any 

portion of this Agreement shall not be binding upon AUTHORITY except when specifically confirmed 

in writing by an authorized representative of AUTHORITY by way of a written amendment to this 

Agreement and issued in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

C. CITY’s failure to insist on any instance(s) of AUTHORITY’s performance of any 

term(s) or condition(s) of this Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver or relinquishment of 

CITY’s right to such performance or to future performance of such term(s) or condition(s), and 

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 4 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

AUTHORITY’s obligation in respect thereto shall continue in full force and effect.  Changes to any 

portion of this Agreement shall not be binding upon CITY except when specifically confirmed in 

writing by an authorized representative of CITY by way of a written amendment to this Agreement 

and issued in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 2.  SCOPE OF AGREEMENT 

This Agreement specifies the terms and conditions, roles and responsibilities of the PARTIES 

as they pertain to the subjects and projects addressed herein.  Both AUTHORITY and CITY agree that 

each will cooperate and coordinate with the other in all activities covered by this Agreement and any 

other supplemental agreements, including Letter Agreements, which may be required to facilitate 

purposes thereof. 

ARTICLE 3.  RESPONSIBILITIES OF AUTHORITY 

AUTHORITY agrees to the following responsibilities for PROJECT: 

A. To provide two 32-foot CNG buses to operate service and outfit with technology 

necessary for communications and fare collection. 

B. To provide a spare/backup vehicle and outfit with technology necessary for 

communications and fare collection.  

C. To assist in the scheduling of the service and include information as appropriate in 

AUTHORITY’s Bus Book and Just Click Trip Planner. 

D. To operate service on behalf of CITY. 

E. To provide federally required complementary paratransit service. 

F. To act as the lead agency responsible for activities as defined as “OCTA Role” in Exhibit 

C, Mission Viejo Project V – Responsibilities. 

G. To provide PROJECT funding for capital purchases in the amount not to exceed Four 

Hundred Seventy-Five Thousand, Three Hundred Dollars ($475,300) for bus stop amenities and 

marketing provided by CITY and for two 32-foot CNG buses provided by AUTHORITY. 

H. To provide annual operating subsidy for PROJECT for up to six (6) years in the amount 

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 5 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

of no more than Nine Dollars ($9.00) per boarding OR Ninety Percent (90%) of net operations and 

maintenance costs (after deducting fares/fees) at an estimated amount in accordance with Project V 

Guidelines, whichever is lower, consistent with Exhibit B, Mission Viejo Project V Estimated Funding 

Schedule.  

I. To adjust Nine Dollars ($9.00) per boarding OCTA subsidy based on Consumer Price 

Index (CPI) published by Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) for the Los Angeles, Riverside and 

Orange County areas and to account for other cost increases to provide bus service. 

J. To provide ridership data to CITY at least quarterly, but no more frequently than 

monthly.  

K. To calculate operations and maintenance cost per boarding and boardings per revenue 

vehicle hour on a monthly basis. 

L. Upon notification from CITY, include any non-AUTHORITY revenues (excluding fares) 

received for PROJECT in calculation of the matching amount. 

M. To submit a quarterly invoice to CITY, Project V - Capital and Operations & Maintenance 

Invoice, for matching amount for two 32-foot CNG buses and quarterly operating subsidy in accordance 

with Project V Guidelines, consistent with Exhibit B, Mission Viejo Project V Estimated Funding 

Schedule. 

N. To reimburse CITY for AUTHORITY’s share of marketing efforts, bus stop amenities 

procured directly by CITY within sixty (60) days of receipt of an acceptable invoice according to 

ARTICLE 5. 

O. To compile all operational data necessary for National Transit Database reporting and 

file with the Federal Transit Administration. 

P. To provide all services in accordance with the Board-approved Project V guidelines. 

Q. In the event that the minimum performance standards in accordance with Project V 

guidelines are not met after the first and second years of service and maintained at least annually 

based on an annual average thereafter, to provide sixty (60) days’ notice to CITY that service will be 

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 6 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

discontinued, to work with CITY to notify the public and to discontinue the service. 

R. In the event service is discontinued, AUTHORITY will retain ownership of the two 32-

foot CNG buses. AUTHORITY will reimburse CITY depreciated net value of the vehicles based upon 

the proportional share of City’s matching funds. 

S. To provide and install decals on the two dedicated buses.  

T. To provide customer service for non-operational issues and forward all operational 

issues including Lost and Found inquiries to AUTHORITY. 

ARTICLE 4.  RESPONSIBILITIES OF CITY 

CITY agrees to the following responsibilities for PROJECT: 

A. Act as lead to purchase bus stop amenities and provide all signage and maintenance for 

the bus stops including adherence to AUTHORITY’s safety requirements for bus stops. 

B. To act as the lead agency responsible for activities as defined as “City Role” in Exhibit 

C, Mission Viejo Project V - Responsibilities. 

C. To provide branding and marketing of service. 

D. To assist AUTHORITY Transit Police Services as necessary. 

E. To provide eligible local matching amounts for capital purchases at a minimum amount 

of thirty percent (30%) required local match in an amount currently estimated to be Two Hundred Three 

Thousand, Seven Hundred Dollars ($203,700).  

F. To provide eligible local matching amounts of ten percent (10%) of net operations and 

maintenance costs (after deducting fares/fees), OR balance of net operations and maintenance costs 

after AUTHORITY has paid Nine Dollars ($9.00) per boarding, whichever is greater, in accordance with 

Project V Guidelines, consistent with Exhibit B, Mission Viejo Project V Estimated Funding Schedule. 

G. To adopt AUTHORITY regular adult fare and note in any CITY publications of fares that 

CITY is subsidizing the AUTHORITY adult fare. 

H. To pay matching amounts for all work performed on PROJECT as invoiced by 

AUTHORITY in accordance with Project V Guidelines within sixty (60) days of receipt of the invoice, 

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 7 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

consistent with Exhibit B.   

I. To notify AUTHORITY of any non-AUTHORITY revenues received for PROJECT.  

/ 

/ 

J. To include and identify any non-AUTHORITY or grant revenues received along with any 

requirements associated with external fund sources for PROJECT in payment to AUTHORITY for local 

match. 

K. To submit invoices to AUTHORITY consistent with ARTICLE 5. CITY REQUEST FOR 

REIMBURSEMENT for bus stop amenities and marketing included in PROJECT. 

ARTICLE 5.  CITY REQUEST FOR REIMBURSEMENT 

A. CITY shall contribute at least thirty percent (30%) of matching funds, as is specified 

within this Agreement in ARTICLE 4, Paragraph F, toward the actual costs of buses, marketing and bus 

stop amenities included in PROJECT. 

B. CITY shall prepare and submit to AUTHORITY invoices in accordance with the 

reimbursement procedures identified in the CTFP guidelines. CITY’s invoice shall include allowable 

PROJECT costs incurred and paid for by CITY consistent with the PROJECT’s Scope of Work.  The 

invoice submitted by CITY shall be signed by an authorized agent who can duly certify the accuracy of 

the included information.  Advance payments by AUTHORITY are not allowed. 

C. The invoice must be submitted on CITY’s letterhead. 

D.  The invoice shall be submitted by CITY and in duplicate to AUTHORITY’s Accounts 

Payable Office.  Each invoice shall include the following information: 

a. Agreement Number C-6-1292; 

b. The total of PROJECT expenditures shall specify the percent and amount to be 

reimbursed which shall not exceed Seventy Percent (70%) of the total eligible capital expenditures in 

accordance with Exhibit B, Mission Viejo Project V Estimated Funding Schedule.  In addition, to include 

any non-AUTHORITY revenues received in calculation of local match. 

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 8 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

c. Support documentation for all expenses invoiced.  

d. Adequate detail describing all work completed. 

e. Documentation providing evidence that the contractor has been paid by the 

CITY or evidence of payment for force account work. 

 f. Certification signed by the CITY or his/her designated alternate that a) The 

invoice is a true, complete and correct statement of reimbursable costs and progress; b) The backup 

information included with the invoice is true, complete and correct in all material respects; c) All 

payments due and owing to subcontractors and suppliers have been made; d) Timely payments will be 

made to subcontractors and suppliers from the proceeds of the payments covered by the certification 

and; e) The invoice does not include any amount which CITY intends to withhold or retain from a 

subcontractor or supplier unless so identified on the invoice.  

g.  Such other information as requested by AUTHORITY. 

E. Total payments by AUTHORITY shall not exceed the funding amount for bus stop 

amenities and marketing specified in ARTICLE 3, paragraph G above.  

F. CITY shall submit final invoice no later than ninety (90) days after final acceptance of 

bus stop amenities. 

G. CITY shall submit at minimum annual invoices for the marketing costs.   

 ARTICLE 6.  DELEGATED AUTHORITY 

The actions required to be taken by CITY in the implementation of this Agreement are 

delegated to its Director of Public Works, or his/her designee, and the actions required to be taken by 

AUTHORITY in the implementation of this Agreement are delegated to AUTHORITY’s Chief Executive 

Officer, or designee. 

ARTICLE 7.  AUDIT AND INSPECTION 

AUTHORITY and CITY shall maintain a complete set of records in accordance with generally 

accepted accounting principles.  Upon reasonable notice, CITY shall permit the authorized 

representatives of AUTHORITY to inspect and audit all work, materials, payroll, books, accounts, and 

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 9 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

other data and records of CITY for a period of five (5) years after final payment, or completion of audit 

by AUTHORITY, or after final payment of debt service, whichever is longer.  For purposes of audit, the 

date of completion of this Agreement shall be the date of AUTHORITY’s payment of CITY’s final billing 

under this Agreement.  AUTHORITY shall have the right to reproduce any such books, records, and 

accounts. The above provision with respect to audits shall extend to and/or be included in contracts with 

CITY’s contractor(s).  

ARTICLE 8.  INDEMNIFICATION 

A. To the fullest extent permitted by law, CITY shall defend, indemnify, protect, and hold 

harmless AUTHORITY, its officers, directors, employees, and agents (collectively the “Indemnified 

Parties”), from and against any and all liabilities, actions, suits, claims, demands, losses, costs, 

judgments, arbitration awards, settlements, damages, demands, orders, penalties, and expenses 

including legal costs and attorney fees (collectively “Claims”), including but not limited to Claims arising 

from injuries to or death of persons (CITY’s employees included), for damage to property, including 

property owned by AUTHORITY, or from any violation of any federal, state, or local law or ordinance, 

alleged to be caused by the negligent acts, omissions or willful misconduct of CITY, its officers, 

directors, employees or agents in connection with or arising out of the performance of this Agreement.  

B. To the fullest extent permitted by law, AUTHORITY shall defend, indemnify, protect, and 

hold harmless CITY, its officers, directors, employees, and agents (collectively the “Indemnified 

Parties”), from and against any and all liabilities, actions, suits, claims, demands, losses, costs, 

judgments, arbitration awards, settlements, damages, demands, orders, penalties, and expenses 

including legal costs and attorney fees (collectively “Claims”), including but not limited to Claims arising 

from injuries to or death of persons (AUTHORITY’s employees included), for damage to property, 

including property owned by CITY, or from any violation of any federal, state, or local law or ordinance, 

alleged to be caused by the negligent acts, omissions or willful misconduct of AUTHORITY, its officers, 

directors, employees or agents in connection with or arising out of the performance of this Agreement.  

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 10 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

C. Any Contractor hired by AUTHORITY to perform business related to this Agreement 

shall be required to list CITY as an additional insured under the insurance policies related to the 

Agreement as appropriate. In the event CITY hires a contractor to perform business related to this 

Agreement, Contractor shall be required to list AUTHORITY as an additional insured under the 

insurance policies related to the Agreement as appropriate. 

D. The indemnification and defense obligations of this Agreement shall survive its 

expiration or termination. 

ARTICLE 9.  ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

PARTIES agree to the following mutual responsibilities: 

A. Term of Agreement: This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect on an annual 

basis subject to meeting minimum performance standards of ridership or December 31, 2023, 

whichever is earlier. This Agreement may only be extended upon mutual agreement by both parties.   

B. Termination: AUTHORITY may terminate this Agreement at any time for any reason 

following sixty (60) days' written notice to CITY.  

C. Termination for Convenience: Either PARTY may terminate this Agreement for its 

convenience by providing sixty (60) days’ prior written notice of its intent to terminate for convenience to 

the other PARTY. 

D. Amendments: This Agreement may be amended in writing at any time by the mutual 

consent of all PARTIES.  No amendment shall have any force or effect unless executed in writing by all 

PARTIES.  

E. PARTIES shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, statues, 

ordinances and regulations of any governmental authority having jurisdiction over the PROJECT.  

F. Legal Authority:  PARTIES hereto consent that they are authorized to execute this 

Agreement on behalf of said PARTIES and that; by so executing this agreement, all PARTIES hereto 

are formally bound to the provisions of this Agreement. 

G. Severability:  If any term, provision, covenant or condition of this Agreement is held to be 

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 11 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

invalid, void or otherwise unenforceable, to any extent, by any court of competent jurisdiction, the 

remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby, and each term, provision, covenant or 

condition of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

/ 

/ 

H. Counterparts of Agreement: This Agreement may be executed and delivered in any 

number of counterparts, each of which, when executed and delivered shall be deemed an original and 

all of which together shall constitute the same agreement.  Facsimile signatures will be permitted. 

I. Force Majeure:   Each of the PARTIES shall be excused from performing its obligations 

under this Agreement during the time and to the extent that it is prevented from performing by an 

unforeseeable cause beyond its control, including but not limited to; any incidence of fire; flood; acts of 

God; commandeering of material, products, plants or facilities by the federal, state or local government; 

national fuel shortage; or a material act or omission by the other party; when satisfactory evidence of 

such cause is presented to the other party, and provided further that such nonperformance is 

unforeseeable, beyond the control and is not due to the fault or negligence of the PARTY not 

performing.  

J. Assignment:  Neither this Agreement, nor any of the PARTIES’ rights, obligations, 

duties, or authority hereunder may be assigned in whole or in part by any PARTY without the prior 

written consent of the other PARTIES in their sole and absolute discretion.  Any such attempt of 

assignment shall be deemed void and of no force and effect.  Consent to one assignment shall not be 

deemed consent to any subsequent assignment, nor the waiver of any right to consent to such 

subsequent assignment.  

K. Governing Law:  The laws of the State of California and applicable local and federal 

laws, regulations and guidelines shall govern this Agreement. 

L. Litigation fees:  Should litigation arise out of this Agreement for the performance thereof, 

the court shall award costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees, to the prevailing PARTY. 

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 12 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

M. Notices:  Any notices, requests, or demands made between the PARTIES pursuant to 

this Agreement are to be directed as follows: 

To CITY: To AUTHORITY: 

City of Mission Viejo 

200 Civic Center  

Mission Viejo, CA 92691 

Attention:  Mark Chagnon  

Director of Public Works  

Tel:  949-470-3091 

E-mail:  mchagnon@cityofmissionviejo.org 

Orange County Transportation Authority 

600 South Main Street 

Orange, CA 92863-1584 

Attention:  Donald Herrera 

Contract Administrator  

Tel:  714-560-5644 

E-mail:  dherrera@octa.net 

N. Successors and Assigns:  The provisions of this Agreement shall bind and inure to the 

benefit of each of the PARTIES hereto, and all successors or assigns of the PARTIES hereto. 

 This Agreement shall be made effective upon execution by both parties. 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 13 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 
  

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 14 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have caused this Agreement No. C-6-1292 to 

be executed on the date first above written. 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO ORANGE COUNTY TRANSPORTATION 
AUTHORITY 
 

 
By:   
 Frank Ury 

Mayor 

 
By:    
 Darrell Johnson 
 Chief Executive Officer 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
By:   
 Karen Hamman 
 City Clerk  

APPROVED AS TO FORM 
 
 
By:    
 James Donich 
 General Counsel 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
By:   
 William P. Curley III 
 City Attorney 
 
Dated:  

APPROVAL RECOMMENDED: 
 
 
By:    
 Kia Mortazavi 
 Executive Director, Planning 
 
Dated:  

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/  

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 15 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

EXHIBIT A 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION IN RESPONSE TO OCTA GUIDELINES 

 The guidelines request specific information to accompany the application. The City is 

summarizing the information here for the sake of clarity. This section addresses the requirements in 

Section 8.0 of the guidelines. 

Project Need, Goals and Objectives 

 The City of Mission Viejo has explored the concept of a circulator linking the Laguna 

Niguel/Mission Viejo Metrolink station, The Shops at Mission Viejo, Mission Hospital, Saddleback 

College, the Crown Valley Business Corridor east of 1-5, residential areas unserved by OCTA 

along/near Felipe Road, and the Norman P. Murray Community Center. The City prepared a 

Transit Needs Assessment Study in 2008 for OCTA's Go Local program. The need for better 

connections within Mission Viejo still exists in 2016. In fact, Capistrano Valley High School has 

expressed an interest in a community circulator that could transport its students safely to and from 

school. 

 The overall goal of this project is to improve mobility within the City of Mission Viejo. This project 

proposes weekday service only in the first year of operation and weekday and Saturday service in 

subsequent years. 

 Project objectives include: 

• Improve connections between Mission Viejo and the Laguna Niguel/Mission Viejo 

Metrolink station throughout the day 

• Enhance the ability of senior citizens and other residents within the City to access the 

Norman P. Murray Community Center 

• Serve Mission Hospital and Medical Center, Saddleback College, and The Shops at 

Mission Viejo 

• Fill in gaps in OCTA service, particularly along Felipe Road 

• Provide parents and students at Capistrano Valley High School with new options for 

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 16 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

traveling to and from school. 

Project Development and Implementation Schedule 

 The City has done all necessary planning work. The Mission Viejo Circulator is ready for 

implementation in 2017, with operations commencing at the beginning of FY 2017-18. 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 17 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

/ 

EXHIBIT B 

MISSION VIEJO PROJECT V FUNDING SCHEDULE 

 CAPITAL COSTS 
Shuttle Purchase, Shelters and Marketing  

    

 OCTA LOCAL MATCH 
30% TOTAL CAPITAL 

FY 16/17 $139,300 $59,700 $199,000 
FY 17/18 $7,000 $3,000 $10,000 
FY 18/19 $7,000 $3,000 $10,000 
FY 19/20 $7,000 $3,000 $10,000 
FY 20/21 $7,000 $3,000 $10,000 
FY 21/22 $7,000 $3,000 $10,000 
FY 22/23 $301,000 $129,000 $430,000 
7-YEAR TOTAL $475,300 $203,700 $679,000 
    

 OPERATIONS COSTS 
Bus Operations  

    

 OCTA LOCAL MATCH 
10% 

TOTAL 
OPERATIONS 

COSTS 
FY 16/17 $410,304 $45,589 $455,893 
FY 17/18 $489,455 $54,384 $543,839 
FY 18/19 $489,455 $54,384 $543,839 
FY 19/20 $489,455 $54,384 $543,839 
FY 20/21 $489,455 $54,384 $543,839 
FY 21/22 $489,455   $54,384 $543,839 
FY 22/23    
7-YEAR TOTAL $2,857,579 $317,509 $3,175,088 
    
Total Share $3,332,879 $521,209  
Total Percentage 86% 14%  
Total Project Cost   $3,854,088 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 18 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

/

Item#13.              



 

Page 19 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

EXHIBIT C 

MISSION VIEJO PROJECT V RESPONSIBILITIES 

VEHICLE OPERATIONS 

DUTY OCTA ROLE  CITY ROLE  

Revenue Vehicle Movement Control 
(Dispatch) 

OCTA will dispatch Project V service 
within the same resources used of 
OCTA fixed-route service. 

City may contact OCTA Central 
Communications for questions 
regarding status of bus service. 

Scheduling and Routing OCTA will develop the final schedule 
and provide to City for circulation. 

City may develop span of service, 
routing, and frequency with input from 
OCTA. 

Ticketing and Fare Collection OCTA will collect and deposit all fare 
revenue.  OCTA will provide credit of 
OCTA's average fare for passengers 
using OCTA fare media.  Farebox 
reports will be used to determine 
fares from Project V service and will 
be considered in development of 
Project V invoice to City. 

City will set fares and may sell its 
own fare media. 

If fare is less than OCTA adult fare, 
all City publications of fares must 
note the fare is being subsidized by 
the City.  

OCTA bus passes will be accepted 
on the Project V route.   

Fares OCTA will determine appropriate 
credit for use of OCTA fare media. 
OCTA will amend the existing 
agreement with Metrolink to receive 
reimbursement from Metrolink for 
accepting Metrolink passes. 

City will determine passenger fares.  
If fare is less than OCTA adult fare, 
all City publications of fares must 
note the fare is being subsidized by 
the City.  

System Security OCTA will include Project V routes in 
the service plan to deploy Transit 
Police Services.  

City will assist OCTA Transit Police 
Services as necessary. 

Revenue Vehicle Operation OCTA will provide coach operators 
and field supervisor staff for Project V 
service. 

None 

Complementary Paratransit OCTA will provide Federally-required 
complementary paratransit through 
the existing OCTA ACCESS service.  
The cost for the additional service will 
be reimbursed internally with Project 
V funds. 

None 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 
  

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 20 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

 

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE 

DUTY OCTA ROLE  CITY ROLE  

Vehicle Procurement OCTA will procure two (2) 32-foot, 
CNG buses appropriate for Project V 
service and will outfit with technology 
necessary for communications and 
fare collection.  These two vehicles 
will be used exclusively for the 
Mission Viejo service.  Backup/spare 
vehicles will be provided as needed. 

City will provide OCTA with artwork 
for use on the sides of the buses prior 
to vehicle delivery. 

Inspection and Maintenance of 
Revenue Vehicles 

OCTA will maintain the Project V 
buses using the same processes for 
the existing OCTA bus fleet. 

None 

Repairs of Revenue Vehicles Repairs are included in the hourly 
cost in the agreement.  This includes 
repairs due to accidents and 
vandalism. 

None 

Servicing and Fuel of Service 
Vehicles 

OCTA will service and fuel the 
Project V buses using the same 
procedures used for the existing 
OCTA bus fleet. 

None 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 
  

Item#13.              



COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT NO. C-6-1292 

Page 21 of 21 

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

 

GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 

DUTY OCTA ROLE  CITY ROLE  

General Insurance OCTA will provide insurance for 
vehicle operations through the 
operations contractor's insurance.  
City will be named as additional 
insured. 

None 

Data Processing OCTA will provide ridership data to 
City on a quarterly basis. 

None 

General Management OCTA will provide a list of contacts to 
the City for assistance and service-
related questions. 

City will provide a single point of 
contact for OCTA.  City will send 
operational issues to the OCTA 
contact. 

Customer Service OCTA will investigate customer 
comments as required. 

City will handle all customer inquiries 
and comments regarding non-
operational issues and forward all 
operational issues, including Lost and 
Found inquiries, to OCTA. 

Promotion OCTA will include information about 
the service in the OCTA Just Click 
Trip Planner and the OCTA Bus 
Book. 

City is responsible for any additional 
promotion. 

National Transit Database OCTA will compile operational data 
necessary for NTD reporting and file 
with the FTA. 

None 

Ownership OCTA will own the vehicles 
purchased. 

City will own the bus stop amenities. 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

/ 

Item#13.              



Go Local 
Draft Routes 

 

 

 Metrolink Station Shopping School 
 
 Employment Center Apartments 

CVHS 

MVHS 

SADDLEBACK 
COLLEGE 

THHS 

Blue Line Laguna Niguel/Mission Viejo Metrolink to 
Norman P. Murray Community & Senior 
Center 

 
Orange Line Irvine Transportation Center to Norman P. 

Murray Community & Senior Center 
 
Green Line Irvine Transportation Center to Norman P. 

Murray Community & Senior Center via 
Portola Plaza. 

 
Gray Lines Existing OCTA Routes 

85 

85 

85 

86 

85, 86 

86 

87 

87 

87 

82, 85 

82, 85, 91 

91 

85 

82 

82 

89 

82 

86 

91 
82 

91 

Route 82 to Foothill Ranch 

Route 82 to Mission 
Viejo/Laguna Niguel 

Metrolink 

Route 87 to Rancho 
Santa Margarita 

Route 82 to Foothill Ranch 

Route 85 to 
Dana Point 

Route 91 to 
Laguna Hills 

Route 89 to 
Laguna Beach 

Route 86 to 
Costa Mesa 

82, 85, 89 

Route 87 to 
Laguna Niguel 

Route 91 to 
San Clemente 

Item#13.              



RESOLUTION NO. 16-XX 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MISSION VIEJO ESTABLISHING FUND 222 FOR PROJECT V 
GRANT FUND, PROGRAM 525 FOR PROJECT V COMMUNITY-
BASED TRANSIT/CIRCULATOR  OPERATIONS AND CIP 234 
FOR ASSOCIATED CAPITAL COSTS AND AMENDING THE FY 
2016-17 BUDGET FOR COSTS RELATED TO FUND 222, 
PROGRAM 525 AND CIP 234. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA) has approved grant 
funding under Measure M2 Project V for the provision of community-based transit circulators 
for Mission Viejo and it is desirable to establish new Fund 222, a new Program 525 for transit 
service operations and CIP 234 for associated capital costs; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City’s matching share of costs for FY 2016-17 will not exceed $45,589 
for operations and $59,700 for capital expenditures ($105,289 total) and there are funds available 
from project savings in the Residential Resurfacing Project (CIP 838); and 
 
 WHEREAS, capital expenditures not to exceed $139,300 will made by the City in FY 
2016-17 and reimbursed by OCTA through Project V; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That Fund 222, Program 525 and Capital Improvement Project 234 be 
established for the Mission Viejo Project V Community-Based Transit/Circulator operations and 
capital costs, respectively. 
 

SECTION 2.  Transfer $45,589 in AQMD Funds (fund 219) from CIP 230 (account no. 
051219-8499-17230/17230.219.70) to Program 525 (account no. 525219-7650). 

 
SECTION 3.  Transfer $59,700 in AQMD Funds (fund 219) from CIP 230 (account no. 

051219-8499-17230/17230.219.70) to CIP 234 (account no.051219-8499-17234/17234.219.70). 
 
SECTION 4.  Transfer $105,289 in gas tax funds (fund 211) from CIP 838 (account no. 

051211-8499-17838/17838.211.70) to CIP 230 (account no. 051211-8499-17230/17230.211.70). 
 

 SECTION 5.  Increase expected revenues in Project V Grant Fund 222 (account no. 
051222-4760-17234) in the amount of $139,300 and appropriate said funds to CIP 234 (account 
no. 051222-8499-17234/17234.222.70).  
 
 SECTION 6.  The City Clerk shall certify the adoption of this resolution. 
 

Item#13.              



 
 PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of August, 2016. 
 
 
 
              
       Frank Ury 
       Mayor 
 
 I, KAREN HAMMAN, City Clerk of the City of Mission Viejo, hereby certify that the 
foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Mission Viejo at a 
regular meeting thereof, held on the 23rd day of August, 2016, by the following vote of the 
Council: 
 
 AYES:  
 NOES:  
 ABSENT: 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
       
Karen Hamman 
City Clerk 
 

Item#13.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Keith Rattay, Director of Public Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Pavion Park Restroom Construction (CIP 304) - Notice of Completion 
 
 
Recommended Action 

(1) Certify the completion of and accept the improvements for the subject project; (2) authorize the City 
Manager to sign the Notice of Completion;  (3) authorize the City Clerk to record Notice of Completion with 
the County of Orange and to release the Faithful Performance and Payment Bonds one year and thirty- five 
(35) days respectively, after the date of recordation of the Notice of Completion contingent upon no claims or 
liens being filed with the City and (4) authorize the payment of the final retention of $16,583.25 thirty-five 
(35) days after the date of recordation of the Notice of Completion. 
  
Executive Summary 

On April 12, 2016 the City Council approved a contract with Act 1 Construction, Inc. for the construction of 
the Pavion Park Restroom.  The contractor worked with City staff to insure the construction had minimum 
impact to the neighboring area.  The construction has met the requirements of the project specifications and is 
fully operational.  A Notice of Completion and summary of expenses has been included for your review. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

04-12-2016 – Award of Contract  
01-26-2016 – Reject all bids and authorize staff to re-bid for project 
11-10-2015 - Authorization to bid  
   
Attachments 

Exhibit A - Notice of Completion 
Exhibit B - Budget Summary 
 

 
 

Item#14.              



RECORDING REQUESTED BY 
AND RETURN TO: 
 
CITY CLERK 
CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
200 Civic Center 
Mission Viejo, CA  92691                         SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDER'S USE   
 
 �OTICE OF COMPLETIO� 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT: 
 

1. The City of Mission Viejo is the owner of the property hereinafter described. 
 

2. The full address of the City of Mission Viejo is 200 Civic Center, Mission Viejo, California  
92691. 
 

3. A contract was awarded by the City Council of the City of Mission Viejo to:                             
   Act 1 Construction, Inc.   to perform the following work of improvement:  

__Pavion Park Restroom Construction_______________________________________                       
                                                                                                                              

4. Said work was completed by said company according to plans and specifications and to the 
satisfaction of the Director of Public Works of the City of Mission Viejo and that said work was accepted by 
the City Council of the City of Mission Viejo at a regular meeting thereof held on  August 23, 2016    . That 
upon said contract the   International Fidelity Insurance Company          was surety for the bond given by the 
said company as required by law. 
 

5. The property on which said work of improvement was completed is in the City of Mission 
Viejo, County of Orange, State of California, and is described as follows: 
_________Pavion Park Restroom Construction _______________________________________________  
_______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
6. The street address of said property is __24051 Pavion in Mission Viejo, CA  _______________ 
_____________________________________________________________________________________     
     
 Dated at Mission Viejo, California, this 23rd day of August, 2016. 
 
 
                                                  
         _______________________________ 

Dennis Wilberg 
City Manager 
City of Mission Viejo 

 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 
County of Orange  ) 
City of Mission Viejo ) 
 
I, Karen Hamman, am the City Clerk of the City of Mission Viejo, California and do hereby certify under 
penalty of perjury, that the foregoing NOTICE OF COMPLETION is true and correct, and that said NOTICE 
OF COMPLETION was duly and regularly ordered to be recorded in the Office of the County Recorder of 
Orange by said City Council. 
 
Dated at Mission Viejo, California, this 23rd day of August, 2016 
 
 
         _______________________________ 

Karen Hamman 
 City Clerk 
 City of Mission Viejo 

 
 
This document is solely for the official 
business of the City of Mission Viejo, as 
contemplated under Government Code Section 
6103 and should be recorded free of charge.                   B-009 

Item#14.              



Budget Summary 
CIP 304 

Pavion Park Restroom 
 
 
 
 

Budget         $500,000.00 
 
 
SUMMARY OF EXPENSES: 

 ACT 1      $331,665.00 
ARC      $225.25 
MCE Consultants    $19,753.22 
Johnson-Frank & Associates Inc.  $3,375.00 
Petra Geosciences Inc.   $9,500.00 
Santa Margarita Water District  $1609.52 
Sir Speedy     $632.62 
Orange County Register   $555.76 

 Permit Fees     $1,227.23 
 

TOTAL EXPENSES TO DATE    $368,543.60 
 
 
REMAINING BUDGET BALANCE   $131,456.40 

EXHIBIT B 

Item#14.              



 



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

08/23/16 

Prepared By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

First Amendment to the Legislative Advocacy and Government Relations Services Agreement 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Approve First Amendment to the existing contract with the Professional Services Agreement with Townsend 
Public Affairs for the period of July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017 for State legislative advocacy and government 
relations services for a total not to exceed the amount of $60,000. 
  
Executive Summary 

Townsend Public Affairs has provided State legislative advocacy services since 2007.  The attached 
Professional Services Agreement with Townsend Public Affairs provides for the continuation of these State 
legislative advocacy and government relations services for a total not to exceed amount of $60,000, which is 
based on a $5,000 per month retainer fee.  This fee has not increased since 2007.  Funding for these services is 
included in the proposal Fiscal Year 2016-17 budget. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $$60,000.00 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: YES (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund # 115101 Category:  Pers. NO Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP#       Fund#6535 

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

 
July 7, 2015 – Approved Professional Services Agreement with Townsend Public Affairs 
July 7, 2014 – Approved Professional Services Agreement with Townsend Public Affairs 
July 1, 2013 – Approved Professional Services Agreement with Townsend Public Affairs 
June 18, 2012 – Approved Professional Services Agreement with Townsend Public Affairs 
July 5, 2011 – Approved Professional Services Agreement with Townsend Public Affairs 
July 6, 2010 – Approved Professional Services Agreement with Townsend Public Affairs 
July 6, 2009 – Approved Professional Services Agreement with Townsend Public Affairs 
July 7, 2008 – Approved Professional Services Agreement with Townsend Public Affairs 
May 4, 2007 – Approved Professional Services Agreement with Townsend Public Affairs 
March 19, 2007 – Established an Ad Hoc Committee to review, interview, and recommend a State legislative 
advocacy firm. 
 
   
Attachments 

1.  First Amendment to the Legislative Advocacy and Government Relations Services Agreement 
2.  Professional Services Agreement with Townsend Public Affairs for State legislative tracking, analysis, and 
advocacy services. 
 

 
 

Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Item#15.              



Rev 12/13 

FIRST AME
DME
T TO 
 

AGREEME
T WITH TOW
SE
D PUBLIC AFFAIRS, I
C. 

 
THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTANT AGREEMENT (hereafter "First Amendment") is made and 
effective as of August 23, 2016, by and between the CITY OF MISSION VIEJO, a municipal corporation, 
(hereafter "City") and Townsend Public Affairs, Inc. (hereafter "Consultant"). In consideration of the mutual 
promises and covenants contained herein, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 
 

1.  This First Amendment is made and entered into with respect to the following facts: 
 

a.  On July 1, 2016, the City and Consultant entered into that certain agreement entitled “City of 
Mission Viejo Agreement with Townsend Public Affairs, Inc. for Professional Services" 
in which the Consultant agreed to provide certain services for the City (hereafter 
"Agreement"). 

 
b.  City and Consultant desire to make certain modifications to the Agreement as set forth in this 

First Amendment. 
    

2.  Section 4 (a) of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

4. PAYME
T. 
 

a. The City agrees to pay Consultant monthly, in accordance with the payment 
rates and terms and the schedule of payment as set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference as though set forth in full, based upon actual time spent on the 
above tasks.  This amount shall not exceed Sixty Thousand Dollars ($60,000.00) for the total term 
of the Agreement unless additional payment is approved as provided in this Agreement. Any terms 
or conditions set forth on Exhibit A or Exhibit B which do not describe the work to be performed, 
the payment rates and terms, or the payment schedule have not been agreed to by the City and shall 
not be deemed a part of this Agreement. 

 
3. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this First Amendment, all other terms and provisions of 

the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
Consultant/Contractor City of Mission Viejo 
 
___________________________ __________________________________ 
Name Date Name of Director or City Manager/Date 
Title:  Title: 
 
Consultant/Contractor  Attest: 
 
___________________________ __________________________________ 
Name Date Karen Hamman Date 
Title:  City Clerk 
 

  
 Approved as to Form: 
 

                                                                                      __________________________________ 
  William P. Curley Date 
  City Attorney 

Item#15.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Mark Chagnon, Director of Public Works 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services/City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Traffic Signal Maintenance—Contract Change Order 1 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Approve Contract Change Order 1 to Contract A15-54 with Computer Service Company in the amount of 
$64,448.41. 
  
Executive Summary 

Computer Services Company is currently under contract to provide traffic signal maintenance services.  Each fiscal 
year, a purchase order is issued based on an estimated value of signal maintenance work which will be required 
during that fiscal year.  For FY 2015-16, the actual cost of the signal maintenance work exceeded the original 
purchase order amount by $64,448.41, and a contract change order is required, accordingly.  Of this amount, just 
under $20,000 is attributable to the replacement of several older model battery back-up units, which failed during 
regular testing.  The balance of around $45,000 is due to an unusually high amount of damage caused by vehicle 
collisions.  Some of this will ultimately be recovered through claims paid by the insurance companies of the 
responsible parties, but some, such as amounts due to hit and run incidents, will not.  Fortunately, there are 
sufficient gas tax savings in the FY 2015-16 operating budget to cover the change order amount. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $64,448.41 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: YES  
Prog/Fund #524211 Category:  Pers.       Optg.  YES     Cap.         -or-   CIP #       Fund #      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

8-25-15 Maintenance of Traffic Signals and Appurtenance—Award of Contract 
  
Attachments 

 
Draft Contract Change Order 1 
 

 

Item#16.              



C:\PROGRAM FILES (X86)\NEEVIA.COM\DOCUMENT CONVERTER\TEMP\301327.DOCX 

CITY OF MISSION VIEJO 
Public Projects Contract 

 
 

 Contract Change Order 1 

 
City of Mission Viejo Contract Number:  A15-54 Purchase Order #21600151 

Date of This Change Order:  August 23, 2016 Change Order #1 

Project:  Maintenance of Traffic Signals 

Contractor Name:  Computer Service Company City Council Meeting Date:  August 23, 2016 

 
All work done under this change order shall be in strict conformance to the project contract documents and all applicable 
sections therein. 
 
Description of changes, additions and deletions to the project:  Extraordinary traffic signal maintenance due to traffic 
collisions at various locations. 
 
Original contract dates: Begin Date:  10-01-2015  End Date:  06-30-2017 
Change in contract dates: Begin Date:  10-01-2015  End Date:  06-30-2017 
 
Account Code(s) this change order:  524211-6535 
Change in contract terms:  N/A 
 

 
Original Contract Amount:  $743.750.00 

Original purchase order number  ................................................................  PO #21600151 PO 21700091 
Original purchase order total ......................................................................  $318,750.00 $425,000.00 
Authorized change orders to date  ...............................................................  $           0.00 $           0.00 
Revised purchase order total  ......................................................................  $318,750.00 $425,000.00 

This change order (increase or decrease) ............................................................  $  64,448.41 
New purchase order total  ...........................................................................  $383,198.41 

Revised Contract Amount:  $808,198.41 

Computer Service Company City of Mission Viejo 

                
Susan Steiny Date Dennis Wilberg Date 
President/Treasurer City Manager 
 
 Attest: 

                
Vincent P. Mauch Date Karen Hamman Date 
Chief Financial Officer City Clerk 
 
  Approved as to Form: 

         
 William P. Curley Date 
 City Attorney 

Item#16.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Mark Chagnon, Director of Public Works 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services/City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 
 
Agenda Title 

2016 Residential Resurfacing—Slurry Seal (CIP 838) 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Award the construction contract for the subject project to Roy Allan Slurry Seal, Inc., in the amount of 
$282,827.65. 
  
Executive Summary 

On August 8, 2016, bids for the subject project were opened at City Hall.  The City received four bids for the 
project.  American Asphalt South was the apparent low bidder with a bid of $242,909.00.  However, American 
Asphalt South's bid was deemed non-responsive in consultation with the City Attorney's office due to the fact that 
it proposed using a slurry seal product that does not meet the City's specifications for rubber type and percent 
content.  Therefore, staff recommends awarding the contract to the second lowest bidder, Roy Allan Slurry Seal, 
Inc., for $282,827.65.  Roy Allan Slurry Seal has successfully performed numerous resurfacing projects for the 
City (including the 2015 Residential Slurry Seal project).   
 
The streets to be resurfaced with this year’s project are the public, residential (non-arterial) streets within the areas 
shown on the location map.  This year's residential resurfacing project is separated into two contracts, an asphalt 
overlay and repair contract (awarded June 28, 2016) and a slurry seal contract (current award).  All of the streets 
that were in need of an asphalt overlay within this year's project area (based on a thorough visual inspection and 
confirmation with the City's computerized Pavement Management Program) are included within the asphalt 
overlay contract.  This contract will slurry seal the balance of the streets in the project area that have not 
deteriorated to a condition level requiring an asphalt overlay.  The contract specifications require the use of Tire 
Rubber Modified Slurry Seal (TRMSS).  The slurry seal work is expected to begin in September and should be 
complete by late October. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $282,827.65 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: YES (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 
Prog/Fund #051211-8499 Category:  Pers. NO Optg. NO Cap. YES   -or-   CIP #838  Fund #211 $167,621.47 
Prog/Fund #051267-8499 Category:  Pers. NO Optg. NO Cap. YES   -or-   CIP #838  Fund #267 $115,206.18 

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

5-10-16 Approval of Contract Documents (AC Repair and AC Overlay) 
6-28-16 Award of Construction Contract (AC Repair and AC Overlay) 
6-28-16 Approval of Contract Documents (Slurry Seal) 
  
Attachments 

Map Draft Agreement 
Bid Summary Budget Summary 
 

 

Item#17.              



 

   N 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
LOCATION MAP 

AREA 1 

AREA 2 

Item#17.              



BID SUMMARY 
 

2016 RESIDENTIAL SLURRY SEAL 
CIP 838 

 
2:00 p.m. – August 8, 2016 

 
 

Bidder Bid 

American Asphalt South, Inc. $242,909.00* 

Roy Allan Slurry Seal, Inc. $282,827.65 

Doug Martin Contracting, Inc. $310,433.60 

All American Asphalt $464,200.00 

Engineer's Estimate $365,000.00 

 
 
* American Asphalt South’s bid was deemed non-responsive in consultation with 
the City Attorney’s office due to the fact that the firm proposed using a slurry 
seal product that does not meet the City’s specifications for rubber type and 
percent content.   
 

Item#17.              



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\301267.docx -1- 

CITY OF MISSIO
 VIEJO 
CO
TRACT AGREEME
T 

 
SLURRY SEAL 

OF VARIOUS STREETS I
 THE CITY OF MISSIO
 VIEJO 
2016 

 
 

THIS CONTRACT AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into for the 
above-stated work of improvement and contract (“Contract”) this 23rd day of August, 2016, BY 
AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF MISSIO
 VIEJO (the “CITY” or “AGENCY”) and ROY 
ALLA
 SLURRY SEAL, I
C. (“CONTRACTOR”). 
 

WITNESSETH that CITY and CONTRACTOR have mutually agreed as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
 
The Contract Documents for the aforesaid Contract shall include, but not be limited to the Notice 
Inviting Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Proposal and Bid Sheet, General Specifications, Special 
Provisions, Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (the “Greenbook”), Faithful 
Performance Bond, Labor and Material Bond, Bid Bond, all referenced specifications, details, 
Standard Plans and appendices, including all applicable State and Federal requirements; together 
with this Agreement and all required bonds, insurance certificates, permits, notices and 
affidavits; and also including any and all addenda or supplemental agreements clarifying, 
amending or extending the Work contemplated as may be required to insure its Completion in an 
acceptable manner.  All of the provisions of said Contract Documents are made a part hereof as 
though fully set forth herein.  For definitions, see the Standard Specifications section 1-2 and the 
Contract Documents.   

ARTICLE II 
 

For and in consideration of the payments and agreements to be made and performed by 
CITY, CONTRACTOR agrees to furnish all materials and perform all Work required by the 
Contract Documents and to fulfill all other obligations as set forth in the aforesaid Contract 
Documents. 
 

ARTICLE III 
 

CONTRACTOR agrees to receive and accept the prices set forth in its Proposal and Bid 
Sheet as full compensation for furnishing all materials, performing all Work and fulfilling all 
obligations hereunder.  Said compensation shall cover all expenses, losses, damages and 
consequences arising out of the nature of Work during its progress or prior to its acceptance, 
including those for well and faithfully Completing the Work and the whole hereof in the manner 
and time specified in the aforesaid Contract Documents; and also including those arising from 
actions of the elements, unforeseen difficulties or obstructions encountered in the prosecution of 
the Work, suspension or discontinuance of the Work, and all other unknowns or risks of any 
description connected with the Work. 

 

Item#17.              



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\301267.docx -2- 

In accordance with provisions of section 1773.2 (amended 1977) of the California Labor 
Code, copies of the prevailing rate of per diem wages as determined by the State Director of 
Industrial Relations are on file in the office of the City Clerk of the City of Mission Viejo.  It 
shall be mandatory upon the Contractor to whom the Contract is awarded and upon any 
subcontractor under him to pay not less than said specified rates to all workmen employed by 
them in the execution of the Contract. 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 

CITY hereby promises and agrees to employ, and does hereby employ, CONTRACTOR 
to provide the materials, perform the Work and fulfill the obligations according to the terms and 
conditions herein contained and referred to, for the prices aforesaid, and hereby contracts to pay 
the same at the time, in the manner and upon the conditions set forth in the Contract Documents. 
 

For Work satisfactorily performed, the CITY shall pay TWO HU
DRED EIGHTY-
TWO THOUSA
D, EIGHT HU
DRED TWE
TY-SEVE
 DOLLARS A
D SIXTY-
FIVE CE
TS ($282,827.65) to CONTRACTOR.  CONTRACTOR shall not be compensated 
for any services rendered in connection with its performance of this Agreement which are in 
addition to those set forth herein, unless such additional services are authorized in advance and in 
writing by the City Council, or if pursuant to its authority, the City Manager, or his or her 
designee.  CONTRACTOR shall be compensated for any additional services in the amounts and 
in the manner as agreed to by the City Manager or CITY representative and CONTRACTOR at 
the time CITY’s written authorization is given to CONTRACTOR for the performance of said 
services.  The City Manager may approve written amendments to the Contract, including Change 
Orders, providing for additional payments to Contractor that cumulatively do not exceed a total 
of 15% of the Contract amount approved by City Council or $30,000, whichever is less.  Any 
other amendments to the Contract shall be approved by the City Council. 

 
ARTICLE V 

 
CONTRACTOR acknowledges the provisions of the State Labor Code requiring every 

employee to be insured against liability for Workers’ Compensation or to undertake self-
insurance in accordance with the provisions of that code, and certifies compliance with such 
provisions. 
 

ARTICLE VI 
 

CONTRACTOR agrees to indemnify and hold harmless CITY and all of its officers and 
agents from any claims, demands or causes of action, including related expenses, attorney's fees 
and costs, based on, arising out of, or in any way related to the Work undertaken by 
CONTRACTOR hereunder. 
 

ARTICLE VII 
 

CONTRACTOR affirms that the signatures, titles and seals set forth hereinafter in 
execution of this Contract Agreement represent all individuals, firm members, partners, joint 
venturers and/or corporate officers having a principal interest herein. 

Item#17.              



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\301267.docx -3- 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 

the day and year first written. 
 
 
ROY ALLA
 SLURRY SEAL, I
C.   CITY OF MISSIO
 VIEJO 
 
 
 
              
W. R. Allan    Date  Dennis R. Wilberg   Date 
President      City Manager 
 
       ATTEST: 
 
 
 
              
Lawrence Allan   Date  Karen Hamman   Date 
Vice President      City Clerk 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
              
       William P. Curley, III   Date 
       City Attorney 
 

OTE: SIGNATURES OF CORPORATE OFFICIALS MUST BE NOTARIZED 
 
  

Item#17.              



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\301267.docx -4- 

ACK
OWLEDGME
T 

 A notary public or other officer completing this certificate 
verifies only the identity of the individual who signed the 
document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 
truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 

 
State of California 
County of       

 

 
On      , before me,        
            (insert name and title of the officer) 
personally appeared           , 
who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to 
the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized 
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf 
of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
paragraph is true and correct. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

 

Signature      (Seal) 

 

 
 

Item#17.              



2016 RESIDENTIAL SLURRY SEAL 
CIP 838 

BUDGET SUMMARY 
 
 

Item Estimated/Actual 
Expenditures 

Design (in-house) $0.00 

Printing (est.) $500.00 

Advertising (est.) $200.00 

Materials Testing (est. Consultant) $15,000.00 

Construction Contract (est.) $282,827.65 

Total $298,527.65 
  
  

Available CIP 838 Budget - Fund 211 (Gas Tax) $272,910.47 

Available CIP 838 Budget - Fund 267 (Measure M) $622,212.50 

Less Estimated Expenditures ($298,527.65) 

Estimated Available Balance $596,595.32 
 
 

Item#17.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Karen Hamman, City Clerk 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Consultant Services for Producer/Director of Mission Viejo Television SportsZone Show 
 
 
Recommended Action 

(1) Award a contract for the subject services to Eric Winter for the period of August 23, 2016, through June 
30, 2017, in the amount of $37,600; and (2) authorize issuance of a purchase order to Eric Winter for the 
period of August 23, 2016, through June 30, 2017, in an amount not to exceed $37,600. 
  
Executive Summary 

Mission Viejo Television (MVTV) offers an array of programming for residents, featuring news, music, 
history, art, and children’s programs.  As the citizens of Mission Viejo have traditionally been active in sports, 
three years ago MVTV launched South County SportsZone, a weekly show devoted to highlights from local 
high school games.  Each week, camera operators film highlights and post-game interviews from at least four 
high school matchups in and around Mission Viejo; covering all sports for both boys and girls.  Inside the 
television studio, MVTV, Cox3, and KCBS personality Gordon Spencer serves as a lively host to bring the 
games to the viewer.  In addition to being seen on MVTV, the episodes are posted to the City’s YouTube 
Channel and Mission Viejo Life home page, and the City has received enthusiastic feedback about the series 
from parents, coaches, students, athletic directors and sports fans throughout the region.  The show has 
attracted fans outside of Mission Viejo, and last year the City of Aliso Viejo contributed ¼ of the cost of the 
season series so that the episodes could be broadcast on AVTV and through their City’s website. 
 
This year, SportsZone will kick off with a special episode of the football Honor Bowl at Mission Viejo High 
School, followed by the regular sports season and playoffs for the full high school year. 
 
SportsZone has been directed by Eric Winter, who has done an outstanding job for MVTV.  Staff recommends 
awarding a contract to Mr. Winter for 32 episodes in FY 2016-17, which will enable the series to cover the 
regular seasons and playoffs for the full high school year.  The total cost for that number of shows is $37,600.  
The City of Aliso Viejo has again expressed a desire to broadcast the programs on their government television 
channel, and has agreed to contribute $9,200 to do so, making the net cost to Mission Viejo $28,400. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $$37,600 (see note above regarding final cost of $28,400) 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: YES (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund # 156-510-6531 Category:  Pers. NO Optg. YES Cap. NO   -or-   CIP#       Fund#      
 

Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

None 
   
Attachments 

Draft Agreement                  
Eric Winter Proposal 

 
 

Item#18.              



 1

CITY OF MISSIO
 VIEJO 
 

AGREEME
T WITH ERIC WI
TER FOR MVTV PRODUCTIO
 
SERVICES FOR SPORTSZO
E SHOW (OVER $30,000) 

 (Insurance Required) 
 
 

THIS AGREEME
T, is made and effective as of August 23, 2016, between the City of 
Mission Viejo, a municipal corporation ("City") and Eric Winter ("Consultant").  In 
consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions set forth herein, the parties agree as 
follows: 
 

1. TERM.  This Agreement shall commence on August 23, 2016, and shall remain and 
continue in effect until tasks described herein are completed, but in no event later than June 30, 
2017, unless sooner terminated pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement. 
 

2. SERVICES.  Consultant shall perform the tasks described and set forth in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein as though set forth in full.  Consultant shall complete the 
tasks according to the schedule of performance which is also set forth in Exhibit A. 
 

3. PERFORMA
CE.  Consultant shall at all times faithfully, competently and to the 
best of his or her ability, experience, and talent, perform all tasks described herein.  Consultant 
represents to the City that it has the qualifications necessary to perform the tasks described 
herein.  Consultant shall employ, at a minimum, generally accepted standards and practices 
utilized by persons engaged in providing similar services as are required of Consultant hereunder 
in meeting its obligations under this Agreement. 
 

4. PAYME
T. 
 

a. The City agrees to pay Consultant monthly, in accordance with the payment rates 
and terms and the schedule of payment as set forth in Exhibit B, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by this reference as though set forth in full, based upon actual time spent on 
the above tasks.  This amount shall not exceed Thirty Seven Thousand Six Hundred Dollars 
($37,600.00) for the total term of the Agreement unless additional payment is approved as 
provided in this Agreement.  Any terms or conditions set forth on Exhibit A or Exhibit B which 
do not describe the work to be performed, the payment rates and terms, or the payment schedule 
have not been agreed to by the City and shall not be deemed a part of this Agreement. 
 

b. Consultant shall not be compensated for any services rendered in connection with 
its performance of this Agreement which are in addition to those set forth herein, unless such 
additional services are authorized in advance and in writing by the City Council or, if pursuant to 
its authority, the City Manager, or his or her designee.  Consultant shall be compensated for any 
additional services in the amounts and in the manner as agreed to by City Manager or the City’s 
representative and Consultant at the time City’s written authorization is given to Consultant for 
the performance of said services.  The City Manager may approve additional work not to exceed 
15% of the contract amount approved by City Council or $30,000, whichever is less.  Any 
additional work in excess of this amount shall be approved by the City Council. 

 
  

Item#18.              



 2

c. Consultant shall submit invoices monthly for actual services performed.  Invoices 
shall be submitted on or about the first business day of each month, for services provided in the 
previous month.  Payment shall be made within thirty (30) days of receipt of each invoice as to 
all nondisputed fees.  If the City disputes any of consultant's fees it shall give written notice to 
Consultant within 30 days of receipt of an invoice of any disputed fees set forth on the invoice. 
 
 

d. Notwithstanding the above provisions, Consultant shall not be paid for any work 
performed until it has submitted to the City a fully completed and executed Internal Revenue 
Service Form W-9. 
 

5. SUSPE
SIO
 OR TERMI
ATIO
 OF AGREEME
T WITHOUT CAUSE. 
 

a. The City may at any time, for any reason, with or without cause, suspend or 
terminate this Agreement, or any portion hereof, by serving upon the consultant at least ten (10) 
days prior written notice of termination.  City shall not be obligated to explain its reasons for 
termination.  Upon receipt of said notice, the Consultant shall immediately cease all work under 
this Agreement, unless the notice provides otherwise.  If the City suspends or terminates a 
portion of this Agreement, such suspension or termination shall not make void or invalidate the 
remainder of this Agreement. 
 
 

b. In the event this Agreement is terminated pursuant to this Section, the City shall 
pay to Consultant the actual value of the work performed up to the time of termination, provided 
that the work performed is of value to the City.  Upon termination of the Agreement pursuant to 
this Section, the Consultant will submit an invoice to the City pursuant to Section 3. 
 

6. DEFAULT OF CO
SULTA
T. 
 

a. The Consultant's failure to comply with the provisions of this Agreement shall 
constitute default.  In the event that Consultant is in default for cause under the terms of this 
Agreement, City shall have no obligation or duty to continue compensating Consultant for any 
work performed after the date of default and can terminate this Agreement immediately by 
written notice to the Consultant.  If such failure by the Consultant to make progress in the 
performance of work hereunder arises out of causes beyond the Consultant's control, and without 
fault or negligence of the Consultant, it shall not be considered a default. 
 
 

b. If the City Manager or his or her delegate determines that the Consultant is in 
default in the performance of any of the terms or conditions of this Agreement, it shall serve the 
Consultant with written notice of the default.  The Consultant shall have (10) days after service 
upon it of said notice in which to cure the default by rendering a satisfactory performance.  In the 
event that the Consultant fails to cure its default within such period of time, the City shall have 
the right, notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, to terminate this Agreement 
without further notice and without prejudice to any other remedy to which it may be entitled at 
law, in equity or under this Agreement. 
 

7. OW
ERSHIP OF DOCUME
TS. 
 

a. Consultant shall maintain complete and accurate records with respect to sales, 
costs, expenses, receipts and other such information required by City that relate to the 
performance of services under this Agreement.  Consultant shall maintain adequate records of 
services provided in sufficient detail to permit an evaluation of services.  All such records shall 
be maintained in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and shall be clearly 

Item#18.              



 3

identified and readily accessible.  Consultant shall provide free access to the representatives of 
City or its designees at reasonable times to such books and records, shall give City the right to 
examine and audit said books and records, shall permit City to make transcripts therefrom as 
necessary, and shall allow inspection of all work, data, documents, proceedings and activities 
related to this Agreement.  Such records, together with supporting documents, shall be 
maintained for a period of three (3) years after receipt of final payment. 
 
 

b. Upon completion of, or in the event of termination or suspension of this 
Agreement, all original documents, designs, drawings, maps, models, computer files, surveys, 
notes, and other documents prepared in the course of providing the services to be performed 
pursuant to this Agreement shall become the sole property of the City and may be used, reused or 
otherwise disposed of by the City without the permission of the Consultant.  With respect to 
computer files, Consultant shall make available to the City, upon reasonable written request by 
the City, the necessary computer software and hardware for purposes of accessing, compiling, 
transferring and printing computer files. 
 
 

c. With respect to the design of public improvements, the Consultant shall not be 
liable for any injuries or property damage resulting from the reuse of the design at a location 
other than that specified in Exhibit A without the written consent of the Consultant. 
 

8. I
DEM
IFICATIO
.  The Consultant agrees to defend, indemnify, protect and 
hold harmless the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from and against any and 
all claims, demands, losses, defense costs or expenses, or liability of any kind or nature which 
the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers may sustain or incur or which may be 
imposed upon them for injury to or death of persons, or damage to property arising out of 
Consultant's negligent or wrongful acts or omissions in performing or failing to perform under 
the terms of this Agreement, excepting only liability arising out of the negligence of the City. 
 

9. I
SURA
CE REQUIREME
TS.  Consultant shall procure and maintain for the 
duration of the contract insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property 
which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the 
Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees. 
 

Consultant agrees to provide insurance in accordance with the requirements set forth in Exhibit 
C.  If consultant uses existing coverage to comply with these requirements and that coverage 
does not meet the requirements set forth herein, Consultant agrees to amend, supplement or 
endorse the existing coverage to do so. 
 

10. I
DEPE
DE
T CO
TRACTOR. 
 

a. Consultant is and shall at all times remain as to the City a wholly independent 
contractor.  The personnel performing the services under this Agreement on behalf of Consultant 
shall at all times be under Consultant's exclusive direction and control.  Neither City nor any of 
its officers, employees or agents shall have control over the conduct of Consultant or any of 
Consultant's officers, employees or agents, except as set forth in this Agreement.  Consultant 
shall not at any time or in any manner represent that it or any of its officers, employees or agents 
are in any manner officers, employees or agents of the City.  Consultant shall not incur or have 
the power to incur any debt, obligation or liability whatever against City, or bind City in any 
manner. 
 

  

Item#18.              



 4

b. No employee benefits shall be available to Consultant in connection with the 
performance of this Agreement.  Except for the fees paid to Consultant as provided in the 
Agreement, City shall not pay salaries, wages, or other compensation to Consultant for 
performing services hereunder for City.  City shall not be liable for compensation or 
indemnification to Consultant for injury or sickness arising out of performing services hereunder. 
 

11. LEGAL RESPO
SIBILITIES.  The Consultant shall keep itself informed of State 
and Federal laws and regulations which in any manner affect those employed by it or in any way 
affect the performance of its service pursuant to this Agreement.  The Consultant shall at all 
times observe and comply with all such laws and regulations.  The City, and its officers and 
employees, shall not be liable at law or in equity occasioned by failure of the Consultant to 
comply with this section. 
 

12. RELEASE OF I
FORMATIO
. 
 

a. All information gained by Consultant in performance of this Agreement shall be 
considered confidential and shall not be released by Consultant without City's prior written 
authorization.  Consultant, its officers, employees, agents or subcontractors, shall not without 
written authorization from the City Manager or unless requested by the City Attorney, 
voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support, testimony at depositions, response to 
interrogatories or other information concerning the work performed under this Agreement or 
relating to any project or property located within the City.  Response to a subpoena or court order 
shall not be considered "voluntary" provided Consultant gives City notice of such court order or 
subpoena.  
 
 

b. Consultant shall promptly notify City should Consultant, its officers, employees, 
agents or subcontractors be served with any summons, complaint, subpoena, notice of 
deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for admissions or other discovery 
request, court order or subpoena from any person regarding this Agreement and the work 
performed thereunder or with respect to any project or property located within the City.  City 
retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent Consultant and/or be present at any 
deposition, hearing or similar proceeding.  Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with City and to 
provide City with the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by 
Consultant.  However, City's right to review any such response does not imply or mean the right 
by City to control, direct, or rewrite said response. 
 

13. 
OTICES.  Any notices which either party may desire to give to the other party 
under this Agreement must be in writing and may be given either by (i) personal service, 
(ii) delivery by a reputable document delivery service, such as but not limited to, Federal 
Express, that provides a receipt showing date and time of delivery, or (iii) mailing in the United 
States Mail, certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the address of 
the party as set forth below or at any other address as that party may later designate by Notice: 
 

To City: City of Mission Viejo 
200 Civic Center 
Mission Viejo, CA 92691 
Attention:  Karen Hamman, City Clerk  

Item#18.              



 5

To Consultant: Eric Winter 
28510 Williams Canyon Road 
Silverado, CA 92676 

  
14. ASSIG
ME
T.  The Consultant shall not assign the performance of this 

Agreement, nor any part thereof, nor any monies due hereunder, without prior written consent of 
the City.  Because of the personal nature of the services to be rendered pursuant to this 
Agreement, only Eric Winter shall perform the services described in this Agreement. Eric Winter 
may use assistants, under their direct supervision, to perform some of the services under this 
Agreement.  Consultant shall provide City fourteen (14) days' notice prior to the departure of 
Eric Winter from Consultant's employ.  Should he or she leave Consultant's employ, the city 
shall have the option to immediately terminate this Agreement, within three (3) days of the close 
of said notice period.  Upon termination of this Agreement, Consultant's sole compensation shall 
be payment for actual services performed up to, and including, the date of termination or as may 
be otherwise agreed to in writing between the City Council and the Consultant. 
 

15. LICE
SES.  At all times during the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall have in 
full force and effect, all licenses required of it by law for the performance of the services 
described in this Agreement. 
 

16. GOVER
I
G LAW.  The City and Consultant understand and agree that the laws 
of the State of California shall govern the rights, obligations, duties and liabilities of the parties 
to this Agreement and also govern the interpretation of this Agreement. 
 

17. LITIGATIO
.  Any litigation concerning this Agreement shall take place in the 
municipal, superior, or federal district court with geographic jurisdiction over the City of 
Mission Viejo.  In the event such litigation is filed by one party against the other to enforce its 
rights under this Agreement, the prevailing party, as determined by the Court's judgment, shall 
be entitled to reasonable attorney fees and litigation expenses for the relief granted. 
 

18. E
TIRE AGREEME
T.  This Agreement contains the entire understanding 
between the parties relating to the obligations of the parties described in this Agreement.  All 
prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, representations and statements, oral or 
written, are merged into this Agreement and shall be of no further force or effect.  Each party is 
entering into this Agreement based solely upon the representations set forth herein and upon each 
party's own independent investigation of any and all facts such party deems material. 
 
19. AUTHORITY TO EXECUTE THIS AGREEME
T.  The person or persons 
executing this Agreement on behalf of Consultant warrants and represents that he or she has the 
authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the Consultant and has the authority to bind 
Consultant to the performance of its obligations hereunder. 
 
  

Item#18.              



 6

 
I
 WIT
ESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed 

the day and year first above written. 
 
 
CO
SULTA
T  CITY OF MISSIO
 VIEJO 
 
 
 
___________________________________  ________________________________ 
By:        Date Dennis Wilberg Date 
Title:         City Manager 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
 
____________________________________ _________________________________ 
By:        Date Karen Hamman  Date 
Title:          Director of Comm. Relations/City Clerk 

 
 

[Two signatures of corporate officers required]  Approved As to Form: 
 
 
 

_________________________________ 
William P. Curley, III Date 
City Attorney 

  

Item#18.              



 7

EXHIBIT A 
 

TASKS TO BE PERFORMED 
 
 
Provide Producer/Director Services for up to 32 segments of a High School Sports Highlight 
show entitled South County SportsZone. 
 
Requirements: 
 

• Weekly show, during the school year, providing highlights from high school sporting events in an 
around Mission Viejo. Four three minute highlight packages of game coverage and talent wraps.  
Each show is approximately 12-15 minutes in length. 

• All production costs needed to provide the finished shows to be aired on MVTV are included. 
This includes directing, technical directing, shooting, editing, graphics creation, show open, 
talent, writing and crew. 

• Schedule and pay freelance crews as needed (sound engineer, talent, camera men) 
• Provide proof of insurance as required by the City of Mission Viejo 

 
 
MVTV field equipment and editing equipment is available for consultant’s use 
 

Item#18.              



 8

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
PAYME
T SCHEDULE 

 
 
The total not to exceed amount for this professional services agreement is $37,600 (32 shows at 
$1,175 each.)  
 
The City of Aliso Viejo has asked to partner on this program and has agreed to reimburse the 
City for one package in each show, totaling $9,200 for the term of the contract.  As a result the 
City of Mission Viejo’s total cost for the show will be $28,400. 
             
 
 

Item#18.              



 9

 
EXHIBIT C 

 
I
SURA
CE REQUIREME
TS 

 
The following coverages will be provided by Consultant and maintained on behalf of the 

City and in accordance with the requirements set forth herein. 
 

Commercial General Liability/Umbrella.  Primary insurance shall be provided on ISO-
CGL form No. CG 00 01 11 85 or 88 or equivalent form, as determined by Risk Management 
staff.  Total limits shall be no less than $1,000,000.00 per occurrence for all coverages and  
$1,000,000.00  general aggregate.  City and its employees and agents shall be added as 
additional insureds using ISO additional insured endorsement form CG 20 10 11 85, or 
equivalent form, as determined by Risk Management staff (in no event will City accept an 
endorsement form with an edition date later than 1990).  Coverage shall apply on a primary non-
contributing basis in relation to any other insurance or self-insurance, primary or excess, 
available to City or any employee or agent of City.  Coverage shall not be limited to the 
vicarious liability or supervisory role of any additional insured. 
 

Umbrella Liability Insurance (if necessary to meet limits requirements) shall apply to 
bodily injury/property damage, personal injury/advertising injury, at a minimum, and shall 
include a “drop down” provision providing primary coverage above a maximum $25,000.00 self-
insured retention for liability not covered by primary policies but covered by the umbrella policy.  
Coverage shall be following form to any underlying coverage.  Coverage shall be provided on a 
“pay on behalf” basis, with defense costs payable in addition to policy limits.  There shall be no 
cross liability exclusion.   Policies shall have concurrent starting and ending dates. 
 

Business Auto/Umbrella Liability Insurance.  Primary coverage shall be written on ISO 
Business Auto Coverage form CA 00 01 06 92 including symbol 1 (Any Auto).  Limits shall be 
no less than $1,000,000.00 per accident.  Starting and ending dates shall be concurrent. If 
Consultant owns no autos, a non-owned auto endorsement to the General Liability policy 
described above is acceptable. 
 
Consultant and City further agree as follows: 
 
1. This Exhibit supersedes all other sections and provisions of this Agreement to the extent 

that any other section or provision conflicts with or impairs the provisions of this Exhibit. 
 
2. Nothing contained in this Exhibit is to be construed as affecting or altering the legal status 

of the parties to this Agreement.  The insurance requirements set forth in this Exhibit are 
intended to be separate and distinct from any other provision in this Agreement and shall be 
interpreted as such. 

 
3. All insurance coverage and limits provided pursuant to this agreement shall apply to the 

full extent of the policies involved, available or applicable.  Nothing contained in this 
Agreement or any other agreement relating to the City or its operations limits the 
application of such insurance coverage. 

 
4. Requirements of specific coverage features or limits contained in this Exhibit are not 

intended as a limitation on coverage, limits or other requirements, or a waiver of any 

Item#18.              



 10 

coverage normally provided by any insurance.  Specific reference to a given coverage 
feature is for purposes of clarification only and is not intended by any party to be all 
inclusive, or to the exclusion of other coverage, or a waiver of any type. 

 
5. For purposes of insurance coverage only, this Agreement will be deemed to have been 

executed immediately upon any party hereto taking any steps that can be deemed to be in 
furtherance of or towards, performance of this Agreement. 

 
6. All general or auto liability insurance coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement, or 

any other agreements pertaining to the performance of this Agreement shall not prohibit 
Consultant, and Consultant's employees, or agents, from waiving the right of subrogation 
prior to a loss.  Consultant hereby waives all rights of subrogation against City. 

 
7. Unless otherwise approved by City, Consultant's insurance shall be written by insurers 

authorized to do business in the State of California and with a minimum “Best's” Insurance 
Guide rating of “A:VII+.” Self-insurance will not be considered to comply with these 
insurance specifications. 

 
8. In the event any policy of insurance required under this Agreement does not comply with 

these requirements or is canceled and not replaced, City has the right but not the duty to 
obtain the insurance it deems necessary and any premium paid by City will be promptly 
reimbursed by Consultant.  

 
9. Consultant agrees to provide evidence of the insurance required herein, satisfactory to City, 

consisting of certificate(s) of insurance evidencing all of the coverages required and an 
additional insured endorsement to Consultant's general liability and umbrella liability 
policies  (if any) using ISO form CG 20 10 11 85 or equivalent form, as determined by 
Risk Management staff.  Consultant shall also provide a waiver of subrogation 
endorsement to Consultant's workers' compensation policy applicable to the City.  
Certificate(s) are to reflect that the insurer will provide 30 days notice of any cancellation 
of coverage and all policies must be endorsed accordingly.  Consultant agrees to require its 
insurer to modify such certificates to delete any exculpatory wording stating that failure of 
the insurer to mail written notice of cancellation imposes no obligation and to delete the 
word "endeavor" with regard to any notice provisions.  Consultant agrees to provide 
complete copies of policies to City upon request. 

 
10. Consultant shall provide proof that policies of insurance required herein expiring during the 

term of this Agreement have been renewed or replaced with other policies providing at 
least the same coverage.  Such proof will be furnished at least two weeks prior to the 
expiration of the coverages. 

 
11. Consultant's insurance presented in compliance with these specifications shall not include 

self-insured retentions or deductibles unless declared to the City and approved by the City 
Manager.  The City may require evidence of financial security if deductibles or self-insured 
are part of the Consultant's liability program. 

 
12. Any actual or alleged failure on the part of City or any other additional insured under these 

requirements to obtain proof of insurance required under this Agreement or to inform 
Consultant of noncompliance with any insurance requirements in no way waives any right 
or remedy of City or any additional insured, in this or any other regard. 

Item#18.              



 11 

 
13. Consultant agrees to require all subconsultants or other parties hired for this project to 

provide general liability insurance naming as additional insureds all parties to this 
Agreement.  Consultant agrees to obtain certificates evidencing such coverage and make 
reasonable efforts to ensure that such coverage is provided as required here.  Consultant 
agrees to require that no contract used by any subconsultant or contracts Consultant enters 
into on behalf of City, will reserve the right to charge back to City the cost of insurance 
required by this agreement.  Consultant agrees that upon request all agreements with 
subconsultants or others with whom Consultant contracts with on behalf of City, will be 
submitted to City for review.  Failure of City to request copies of such agreement will not 
impose any liability on City, or its employees. 

 
14. If Consultant is a Limited Liability Company, general liability coverage must be amended 

so that the Limited Liability Company and its Managers, Affiliates, employees, agents, and 
other persons necessary or incidental to its operation are insureds. 

 
15. Consultant agrees to provide immediate notice to City of any claim or loss against 

Consultant that includes City as a defendant.  City assumes no obligation or liability by 
such notice, but has the right (but not the duty) to monitor the handling of any such claim 
or claims if they are likely to involve City. 

 
16. It is agreed that insurance provided pursuant to these requirements will not be limited to 

coverage for the vicarious liability or supervisory role of any additional insured.  All 
insurance coverage and limits provided are intended to apply to the full extent of the 
policies.  Nothing contained in this agreement limits the application of such insurance 
coverage. 

Item#18.              



Item#18.              



Item#18.              



Item#18.              



Item#18.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Jackie Alexander, Director of Information Technology 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Geographic Information System (GIS) Renewal 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Approve second amendment to agreement with Digital Map Products; and approve issuance of purchase order 
to Digital Map Products for 2016-17 services in the amount of $42,419.00.  
Executive Summary 

The City currently utilizes Geographic Information System (GIS) services from Digital Map Products 
including leased parcel data, development of data layers, and city owned data layers provided and mapped by 
Digital Map Products through its proprietary web-based software. The GIS service is provided via the Cloud 
as “software as a service” (SaaS). GIS is used across multiple city departments for engineering and field work. 
This software program is proprietary and only offered by Digital Map Products. The data sets were negotiated 
by Digital Map Products and its vendors and were offered to the City at discounted prices. 
 
In October 2014, the City entered into an agreement with Digital Map Products to purchase GIS services for 
2014-15 in the amount of $42,419, with the option to renew the agreement for up to two additional years, for a 
maximum 3-year term. These services include the GovClarity software, 3” aerial imagery, county parcel 
boundaries and record data, and new digital orthophotography of Orange County to be provided annually by 
Digital Map Products as part of their comprehensive solution (attached order form lists all deliverables). 
 
It is recommended that Council approve the second amendment to the agreement with Digital Map Products 
and approve the issuance of a purchase order to Digital Map Products in the amount of $42,419.00 for 2016-17 
GIS services. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $42,419 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: YES (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund # 233101-6524 Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

10/6/2014 - Approved purchase order for year one of 3-year price agreement with Digital Map Products 
for Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
9/22/2015 – Approved first amendment and issuance of purchase order to Digital Map products for year 
2 of 3-year agreement. 
  
Attachments 

DMP Order Form (2014) 
DMP Agreement (2014) 
Second Amendment 
Exhibit B - Amended Payment Schedule (2016) 

 
 

Item#19.              



                                 Agreement  No. JS-MV062014 
 

Page 1 of 1 

     Order Form 

 
18831 Von Karman Avenue      Agreement Proposed by: Jim Skurzynski 
Suite 200 
Irvine, CA 92612 
       

Billing Information 

Company Name:  City of Mission Viejo     Bill To:  City of Mission Viejo 
Contact Name:  Richard Schlesinger      200 Civic Center Drive 
Billing E-mail:  rschlesinger@cityofmissionviejo.org    Mission Viejo, CA  92691 
Billing Phone:  949-470-3079 
 
Agreement Term: 08-01-2014 thru 07-31-2017   Payment Method: Check 
Billing Frequency: Annual     Payment Terms: Net 30 
 

Order Details 

This order includes Digital Map Products (“DMP”)’s Content Solutions, GovClarity™, and Professional Services. 

Intended Use: Internal information access and systems integration platform for City of Mission Viejo and public-facing constituent service. 
 
(1) Content Solutions  $12,954.00 Annual 

Pursuant to the attached Content Solutions Sublicense Terms and Conditions, DMP will deliver the following Content Solutions elements onsite 
to the City: 

Elements: 3” Aerial Imagery, County Parcel Boundaries, Property Record Data 
Coverage: 3” Aerial Imagery – City of Mission Viejo (Orange County inside of GovClarity™) 
  County Parcel boundaries – Orange County 
  Property Record Data – Orange County 
Schedule: 3” Aerial Imagery – Mutually agreeable timeframe each year subsequent to delivery by source provider 
  County Parcel Boundaries – Annual  
  Property Record Data – Annual 
License: City shall have perpetual rights to 3” Aerial Imagery and County Parcel Boundaries delivered subsequent to the term of this 

Order Form.  Access to Property Record Data shall terminate with the term specified on this Order Form. 
 
(2) Web Applications - GovClarity™  $29,960.00 Annual 

Pursuant to the attached Web Application Terms and Conditions, DMP will provide a GovClarity™ based solution as described below. 

 Content Solutions Sublicense Terms and Conditions 
 Web Application Terms and Conditions 
 Service Level Agreement (SLA) 
 Professional Services Agreement 

 

 
By:        By:      

Print Name:        James Skurzynski 

Title:         President 

Date:        Date:      

Users: Unlimited number of City employees 
Coverage: Southern California 
Products: GovClarity™, CommunityView™, CONNECT – Constituent Engagement Application, Public Works Module – Including

Inspection Application, Issue Reporting Module, Tax Maps 
  
(3) Professional Services             <No Charge>

City of Mission Viejo      DIGITAL MAP PRODUCTS, INC. 

 Total Price:  $42,419.00 Annual 
 
The parties agree to the terms contained herein including all of the following attachments: 

 
Pursuant to the attached Professional Services Agreement, DMP shall initially provide layer loading services to bring the City’s GovClarity™ 
subscription to its current state.  In subsequent years DMP will provide layer loading services for up to 3 layers per year.  Any additional 
layer loading service shall be charged at DMP’s best available hourly rates.
DMP shall also deliver 2 on-site training sessions annually. 
  

Item#19.              



 

Content Solutions Sublicense 

Terms and Conditions 
 
By executing the Order Form that references these Terms and Conditions (collectively, the “Agreement”), You agree that the 

Agreement terms govern Your acquisition and use of the Licensed Products.  If You are entering into this Agreement on behalf of a 

company or other legal entity, You represent that You have the authority to bind such entity and its affiliates to these terms, in which 

case the terms “You” or “Your” shall refer to the entity and its affiliates.  If You do not have such authority, or if You do not agree with 

these terms and conditions, You must not accept the Agreement and may not accept or use the Licensed Products. 

 

This Agreement was last updated on June 2nd, 2014. It is effective as of the date You accepted it. 

 

1. DEFINITIONS 

 “Contributed Database” means Databases licensed by certain Contributors to Us with the right to grant sublicenses as set forth 

herein and identified on the Order Form. 

“Contributor” means a third party licensor of any Contributed Database to Us which We have secured the appropriate rights to 

Sublicense. 

“Database” means a compilation of geographic, cartographic, engineering, architectural, tabular, text, and/or other data, information, 

or works, including, but not limited to, graphic and/or file data in automated or manual form. 

“Derivative Products” or “Derivatives” shall mean all works created by You which incorporate all or part of the Licensed Products, 

including, but not limited to, any revision, modification, translation, abridgment, condensation, expansion, collection, compilation or 

any other form of, or modification to the Licensed Products. 

“Intended Use” means the specific uses, purposes, and industries expressly described on the Order Form. 

“Licensed Products” means the products ordered by You on the Order Form and may include portions of the Contributed Databases. 

“Order Form” means an ordering document specifying the Services to be provided hereunder that is entered into between You and 

Us, including any addenda and supplements thereto. By entering into an Order Form hereunder, an Affiliate agrees to be bound by 

the terms of this Agreement as if it were an original party hereto. 

“Visual Output” means printouts, plots, displays, photographic film, printed matter and other visual representation of data. 

"We," "Us" or "Our" means Digital Map Products, Inc. or its affiliate. 

 “You” or “Your” means the company or other legal entity for which you are accepting this Agreement, and Affiliates of that company 

or entity. 

 

2. GRANT OF LICENSE 

We hereby grant, and You hereby accept, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, a non-exclusive, non-transferable, 

and non-assignable right and sublicense to use the Licensed Products solely for the Intended Use, from the Effective Date hereof 

until this Agreement is terminated or expires in accordance with its terms.  You may produce Visual Output from the Licensed Products 

and/or from Derivative Products for the Intended Use.   

Subject to the terms of this Agreement, You may create and distribute Derivative Products to the extent that such Derivative Products 

contribute to the Intended Use.  You shall be able to use such Derivative Products and all intellectual property rights attributable or 

corresponding thereto, royalty-free, in perpetuity, under the terms of this Agreement, solely for the Intended Use provided that such 

use does not include any attempt to reverse-engineer any aspect of Licensed Products or to compete with Us or the Contributors.   

Except as expressly permitted herein, You shall have no right to assign, transfer, or sublicense any aspect of the Licensed Products 

other than to Your rightful successors or assigns by means of a merger or sale of all or substantially all of Your business.   

Your contractors, consultants, and agents that You engage for the Intended Use may use the Licensed Products and Derivatives in 

digital format as long as (a) these third parties’ use is only for the Intended Use, (b) these third parties do not sell, license, or otherwise 

distribute Licensed Products or Derivatives or any portion thereof, (c) these third parties must destroy any copies of the Licensed 

Products or Derivatives or portions thereof immediately upon termination or completion of their scope of work as related to the Intended 

Item#19.              



 
 

Content Solutions Sublicense Terms and Conditions                                                                                                                                        Page 2 of 3 

 

Use, (d) these third parties are not competitors of Ours or of the Contributors, and (e) these third parties must abide by the terms of 

this Agreement.  Without limiting the foregoing, You understand and agree that You shall in no event use any aspect of the Licensed 

Products or Derivatives other than for the Intended Use. 

 

3. OUR RESPONSIBILITIES 

3.1. Delivery Formats and Schedules.  We shall make delivery of the Licensed Products to You pursuant to the formats and 

schedules designated on the Order Form.  Unless indicated otherwise, We will only make one (1) data delivery. 

 

4. YOUR RESPONSIBILITIES 

4.1. Compliance and Protection from Unauthorized Access and Use.  You will be responsible for (a) compliance with the terms 

of this Agreement by any parties to whom you grant access to the Licensed Products or Derivative Products, (b) securing and 

protecting the Licensed Products and Derivatives from unauthorized distribution and access, (c) preventing any use of the Licensed 

Products or Derivatives outside of the Intended Use, and (d) preventing access from any of Our competitors or those of our 

Contributors to any portions of the Licensed Products, Derivatives, or any related information. 

 

5. FEES, PAYMENT, AND TERM 

5.1. Fees and Payment.  In consideration of the license rights granted in Section 2, You shall pay all fees as set forth in the Order 

Form, plus all applicable taxes, levies, duties, or similar governmental assessments of any nature.  Except as otherwise specified 

herein or in an Order Form, (a) fees are based on Licensed Products purchased and not contingent upon Your actual usage, (b) 

payment obligations are non-cancelable and fees paid are non-refundable, (c) fees shall be made in advance at the beginning of each 

contract year unless specified otherwise in the Order Form, and (d) You shall be invoiced in full upon delivery and You will be pay the 

invoiced amount to Us in full within fifteen (15) days from date of invoice. 

5.2. Non-Payment or Failure to Pay.  A charge of 1.5% per month may be assessed on any outstanding and past due invoices until 

paid in full.  You will be charged for any cost of collections including, but not limited to, agent fees, legal fees and costs, and other 

associated expenses.  If Your access and use is terminated or suspended due to nonpayment or non-compliance, You shall 

nonetheless still be responsible for any fees as set forth in this Agreement.   If We do not receive from You payment for the invoiced 

amount within thirty (30) days of its due date, We may suspend Your access and use of the Services and Content, until You bring 

Your account current. 

 

5.3. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement will continue for the period defined in the Order Form as the Initial Term.  Thereafter, this 

Agreement shall automatically renew for additional twelve (12) month periods unless either party notifies the other party in writing at 

least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the then current term of its intent not to renew.  Upon termination, any licenses granted 

by DMP under this Agreement are immediately revoked.    

 

 

6. PROPRIETARY RIGHTS, ADDITIONAL LICENSE LIMITATIONS, AND CONFIDENTIALITY 

 

6.1. Reservation of Rights.  Subject to the limited rights expressly granted hereunder, We and Our Contributors reserve all of 

Our/their rights, titles, and interests in and to the Licensed Products and Contributed Databases, including all of Our/their related 

intellectual property rights.  You understand that We may at our sole discretion replace Contributors at any time without notice.  You 

agree that any works commissioned or undertaken by Us pursuant to or in supplement to this Agreement shall be and remain Our 

property unless indicated otherwise.  No rights are granted to You hereunder other than as expressly set forth herein. 

 

6.2. Proprietary Notices.  We and our Contributors claim and reserve all ownership and rights afforded at law and in equity in all 

data, compilations, and materials that constitute the Licensed Products, including, but not limited to, all rights under federal copyright 

law.   You agree to respect and not to knowingly or maliciously remove, obliterate, or cancel from view any copyright, trademark, 

confidentiality, or other proprietary notice, mark, or legend appearing on the Licensed Product or on the Visual Output, including, but 

not limited to, any such notices displayed to the user during the operation of the Licensed Products and any such notices in the 

documentation, and agree to use reasonable best efforts to reproduce and include the same on any copy of the Licensed Product or 

any portion thereof distributed to Your consultants, agents and contractors.   

 

6.3. Confidential Information.  Each party agrees to keep confidential all confidential information disclosed to it by the other party in 

accordance herewith, and to protect the confidentiality thereof, in the same manner in which it protects the confidentiality of similar 

information and data of its own (at all times exercising at least a reasonable degree of care in the protection of confidential information).  

You acknowledge that the unauthorized use, transfer, assignment, sublicensing, or disclosure of the Licensed Products, 

Item#19.              



 
 

Content Solutions Sublicense Terms and Conditions                                                                                                                                        Page 3 of 3 

 

documentation, Derivative Products, or copies of any portions thereof will (a) substantially diminish the value to Contributors of their 

intellectual property, (b) render Our remedy at law for such unauthorized use, disclosure, or transfer inadequate, and (c) cause 

irreparable injury.  If You breach any of Your obligations with respect to the use or confidentiality of the Licensed Products, 

documentation, Derivative Products, or any copies of portions thereof, We shall be entitled to equitable relief to protect Our interests 

therein, including, but not limited to, preliminary and permanent injunctive relief.  Upon (presentation of just cause and) ten (10) days' 

written notice to You, We shall,  with Your consent and permission, have reasonable access to inspect and audit Your procedures 

and to examine Your computer systems in order to determine whether such procedures and computer systems comply with the 

requirements set forth in this Agreement. 

 

 

7. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES AND DISCLAIMERS 

 

7.1. Our Warranties.  EXCEPT FOR ANY EXPRESS WARRANTIES PROVIDED HEREIN, NEITHER PARTY MAKES ANY 

WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR OTHERWISE.  WE PROVIDE THE LICENSED PRODUCTS ON 

AN “AS IS,” “AS AVAILABLE” BASIS.  NEITHER WE NOR OUR CONTRIBUTORS MAKE ANY REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY, 

OR COVENANT WHATSOEVER REGARDING AVAILABILITY OR ACCURACY OF THE LICENSED PRODUCTS AND/OR 

CONTRIBUTED DATABASES. WE MAY ALTER OR REDUCE THE AVAILABILITY AND QUALITY OF THE LICENSED PRODUCTS 

AT ANY TIME WITHOUT CAUSE IN OUR SOLE DISCRETION.  NO AGENT OF DMP IS AUTHORIZED TO ALTER OR EXCEED 

THE WARRANTY OBLIGATIONS OF DMP AS SET FORTH HEREIN.   

 

NEITHER US NOR ANY CONTRIBUTORS WARRANT THAT THE LICENSED PRODUCTS OR RELATED E-MAILS SENT ARE 

FREE OF ERRORS, OMISSIONS, VIRUSES OR OTHER HARMFUL COMPONENTS.  BY ACCEPTING THIS AGREEMENT, YOU 

DISCLAIM ALL LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT. 

 

7.2. Limitation of Liability.  Our aggregate and maximum liability in connection with any claim arising out of or relating to this 

Agreement shall be limited to a refund of 12 months of fees paid by You to Us.  Neither We nor the Contributors shall be liable for any 

special, indirect, incidental, or consequential damages of any kind whatsoever (including attorneys’ fees) arising in connect ion with 

the Licensed Products, or any failure by Us to perform our obligations, regardless of any negligence alleged. 

 

7.3. Indemnification.  We will defend and indemnify You against a third-party action, suit, or proceeding against You to the extent 

such claim is based upon an allegation that the Licensed Product, as of its delivery date under this Agreement, infringes a valid United 

States patent or copyright or misappropriates a third party’s trade secret.  If a third party alleges that your use of the Licensed Products 

in breach of this Agreement infringes or misappropriates intellectual property rights or violates law, You will defend and indemnify Us 

and the Contributors against any such claim, demand, suit, or proceeding, including any judgments, settlements, and attorney fees.   

 

 

8. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

 

8.1. Non-Assignability.  Neither party may assign or transfer this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.  Any 

unauthorized assessment or transfer will be null and void, and enables termination.  This Agreement is binding upon any authorized 

successor or assignee. 

 

8.2. Entire Understanding.  This Agreement is the parties’ entire agreement relating to its subject, and supersedes any prior or 

contemporaneous agreement.  Any amendment must be in writing and expressly state that it is amending this Agreement. 

 

8.3. Governing Law & Arbitration.  This Agreement is governed by California law, excluding California’s choice of law rules.  All 

disputes relating to this Agreement will be subject to binding arbitration pursuant to the rules of The American Arbitration Association 

or the Judicial Arbitration And Mediations Services, Inc.  The exclusive place of the arbitration shall be Orange County, California.  

Judgment on the arbitration award may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof.  For the purpose of entry of judgment on 

such an award, the parties consent to personal jurisdiction in the courts of Orange County, California. 

 

8.4. Headings Not Controlling.  All captions and headings in this Agreement are for purposes of convenience only and shall not 

affect the construction or interpretation of any of its provisions. 

 

8.5. Severability.  If any provision of this contract is held to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, such provision is fully separable, 

and the remaining provisions of the contract shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 

 

________________________________         ________________ 

Initials                                  Date 

Item#19.              



    
 

Web Application Subscription 

Terms and Conditions 
 
 

 
Web Application Subscription Terms and Conditions                                                                                                                              Page 1 of 3 

By executing the Order Form that references this agreement and initialing these Web Application Subscription Terms and 

Conditions (collectively, the “Agreement”), You agree that the Agreement terms govern Your purchase and use of Digital Map 

Products (“DMP”) Web Application and Content.  If You are entering into this Agreement on behalf of a company or other legal 

entity, You represent that You have the authority to bind such entity and its affiliates to these terms, in which case the terms 

“You” or “Your” shall refer to the entity and its affiliates.  If You do not have such authority, or if You do not agree with these 

terms and conditions, You must not accept the Agreement and may not use the Web Application or Content. 

 

This Agreement was last updated on June 2nd, 2014. It is effective as of the date You signed the Order Form. 

 

1. DEFINITIONS 

“Content” means any content provided through the Web Application (whether created by Us or Our third-party licensors), and 

includes but is not limited to any information portrayed or rendered in any manner through the Web Application, including maps, 

data, analysis and images of any kind.   

“Order Form” means an ordering document specifying the specifics of what is being provided hereunder that is entered into 

between You and Us, including any addenda and supplements thereto. By entering into an Order Form hereunder, an affiliate 

agrees to be bound by the terms of this Agreement as if it were an original party hereto. 

“User” means an individual who is authorized by You to use the Web Application, for whom You have ordered the Web 

Application, and to whom You (or We at Your request) have supplied a user identification and password. 

"We," "Us" or "Our" means Digital Map Products, Inc. or its affiliates. 

“Web Application” means the product You have requested access to and that has been ordered by You under this Agreement 

and has been made available by Us, excluding any third- party web sites, content, or applications that our products and services 

link to.  Any use of the term Web Application shall be assumed to include Content. 

“You” or “Your” means the company or other legal entity for which you are accepting this Agreement, and Affiliates of that 

company or entity. 

“Your Data” means electronic data and information submitted by or for You to be incorporated into the Web Application. 

 

2. WEB APPLICATION, CONTENT, AND USAGE 

2.1. Web Application and Content. We will (a) make the Web Application available to You pursuant to this Agreement and the 

Order Form, (b) provide support for the Web Application to You pursuant to any such indication on the Order Form.  Unless 

expressly provided otherwise, the Web Application is purchased as a subscription, and subject to usage limits, including, for 

example, the number of Users and the geographic coverage areas specified in the Order Form.  Unless otherwise specified, the 

Web Application may not be accessed by more than the number of Users indicated, a User’s password may not be shared with 

any other individual, and Users will not attempt to access information or functionality outside of the purchased geographic 

coverage areas. 

2.2 Your Responsibilities.  You will (a) be responsible for Users’ compliance with this Agreement, (b) be responsible for the 

accuracy, quality, and legality of Your Data and the means by which You acquired Your Data, (c) use commercially reasonable 

efforts to prevent unauthorized access to or use of the Web Application, and notify Us promptly of any such unauthorized access 

or use, and (d) use the Web Application in accordance with any applicable laws and government regulations. 

2.3 Usage Restrictions.  You will not (a) make the Web Application available to, or use the Web Application for the benefit of, 

anyone other than You or Users, (b) sell, resell, license, sublicense, distribute, rent, or lease any portion of the Web Application, 

(c) use the Web Application to store or transmit infringing, libelous, or otherwise unlawful or tortious material, or to store or 

transmit material in violation of third-party privacy rights, (d) interfere or disrupt the integrity or performance of the Web 

Application or third-party data, (e) copy the Web Application or any part, feature, function, or user interface thereof, (f) copy, 

Item#19.              



 

 
Web Application Subscription Terms and Conditions                                                                                                                              Page 2 of 3 

extract, or store Content except as expressly permitted, (g) frame or mirror any part of the Web Application, other than framing 

on Your own intranets or otherwise for Your own internal business purposes, (h) process, extract, conduct load testing on, or 

place undue load on any part of the Web Application except as expressly permitted, or (i) access the Web Application in order 

to build or enhance a competitive product or service. 

2.4. Future Functionality, Updates, and Beta Services. You agree that Your purchase of use of the Web Application is not 

contingent on the delivery of any future functionality or content, nor dependent on any oral or written public comments made by 

Us regarding future functionality or content.  You agree that We may make changes to the Web Application over time for any 

reason, without limitation, and that We may not continue to provide or support older versions of the Web Application.  We may 

invite You to try other Web Applications and options to Web Applications. Any such additional Web Applications and options 

may be subject to additional or separate terms and fees. In the event that such other Web Applications and options are trials or 

beta products, we will have no liability for any harm or damage arising out of Your use of such. 

 

3. FEES, PAYMENT, AND TERM 

3.1. Fees and Payment.  You will pay all fees specified in the Order Form plus any applicable taxes, levies, duties, or similar 

governmental assessments of any nature.  Except as otherwise specified herein or in an Order Form, (a) fees are based on the 

purchased use and not actual incremental usage, (b) payment obligations are non-cancelable and fees paid are non-refundable, 

(c) fees shall be made in advance in accordance with the frequency stated in the Order Form, (d) quantities or add-ons purchased 

cannot be decreased during the relevant subscription term, and (e) unless otherwise stated in the Order Form, invoiced charges 

are due net 30 days from the invoice date.  You are responsible for providing complete and accurate billing and contact 

information and notifying Us of any changes to such information. 

3.2. Non-Payment or Failure to Pay.  A charge of 1.5% per month may be assessed on any outstanding and past due invoices 

until paid in full.  You will be charged for any cost of collections including, but not limited to, agent fees, legal fees and costs, and 

other associated expenses.  If Your access and use is terminated or suspended due to nonpayment or non-compliance, You 

shall nonetheless still be responsible for any fees as set forth in this Agreement.   If We do not receive from You payment for 

the invoiced amount within thirty (30) days of its due date, We may suspend Your access and use of the Web Application, until 

You bring Your account current. 

 

3.3. Term of Agreement.  This Agreement will continue for the period defined in the Order Form.  Thereafter, this Agreement 

shall automatically renew for additional twelve (12) month periods unless either party notifies the other party in writing at least 

sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the then current term of its intent not to renew.  Upon termination, any licenses granted 

by Us under this Agreement are immediately revoked.    

 

 

4. PROPRIETARY RIGHTS, LICENSES, AND CONFIDENTIALITY 

 

4.1. Reservation of Rights.  Subject to the limited rights expressly granted hereunder, We and Our licensors reserve all of 

Our/their rights, titles, and interests in and to the Web Application, including all of Our/their related intellectual property rights.  

You understand that We may at our sole discretion replace vendors or suppliers related to Content or Web Application 

functionality at any time without notice.  You agree that any works commissioned or undertaken by Us pursuant to or in 

supplement to this Agreement shall be and remain Our property.  No rights are granted to You hereunder other than as expressly 

set forth herein. 

 

4.2. Preservation of Notices.  You agree to include, and not to remove or obscure, any copyright, trademark, patent, or other 

notices appearing within our Web Application including any visual or printed depictions of the same. 

 

4.3. License to Host Your Data.  You grant Us a limited-term license to host, copy, adapt, modify, transmit, and display Your 

Data, as necessary for Us to provide the Web Application to You.  You reserve all title, interest and intellectual property rights 

to Your Data. 

 

4.4. License to Collect Data and Use Feedback.  You agree that We may collect and use information gathered as part of the 

Web Application to improve Our technology, products, and internal processes.  You grant Us a worldwide, perpetual, irrevocable, 

royalty-free license to use and incorporate into the Web Application any suggestion, enhancement request, recommendation, 

correction, or other feedback provided by You or Your Users. 

 

5. CONFIDENTIALITY 

 

5.1. Trade Secrets and Confidential Information.  The Web Application is based on and includes Our proprietary trade secrets 

and confidential information.  You will not modify, adapt, translate, reverse engineer, decompile, attempt unauthorized access 

to, or disassemble any portion of the Web Application.  You will treat the Web Application with at least the same degree of care 

Item#19.              



 

 
Web Application Subscription Terms and Conditions                                                                                                                              Page 3 of 3 

(and no less than a reasonable degree of care) as that which You would treat Your own trade secrets and confidential 

information.  You will not disclose the terms of this Agreement or any Order Form to any third party. 

 

 

6. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES AND DISCLAIMERS 

 

6.1. Our Warranties.  EXCEPT FOR ANY EXPRESS WARRANTIES PROVIDED HEREIN, NEITHER PARTY MAKES ANY 

WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR OTHERWISE.  WE PROVIDE THE WEB APPLICATION 

ON AN “AS IS,” “AS AVAILABLE” BASIS.  WE MAKE NO REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY, OR COVENANT WHATSOEVER 

REGARDING PERFORMANCE, FUNCTIONALITY, AVAILABILITY, ACCURACY, OR SECURITY OF THE WEB APPLICATION 

OR YOUR DATA. WE MAY ALTER, REDUCE THE FUNCTIONALITY OR CONTENT OF, AND/OR TERMINATE THE WEB 

APPLICATION AT ANY TIME WITHOUT CAUSE IN OUR SOLE DISCRETION.  NO AGENT OF DMP IS AUTHORIZED TO 

ALTER OR EXCEED THE WARRANTY OBLIGATIONS OF DMP AS SET FORTH HEREIN. 

 

NEITHER US NOR ANY THIRD PARTY PROVIDERS, PARTNERS OR AFFILIATES WARRANT THAT THE WEB 

APPLICATION, SERVERS, OR ANY E-MAIL SENT ARE FREE OF ERRORS, OMISSIONS, VIRUSES OR OTHER HARMFUL 

COMPONENTS.  BY ACCEPTING THIS AGREEMENT, YOU DISCLAIM ALL LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION 

OBLIGATIONS OF OURS AND ANY OF OUR THIRD PARTY PROVIDERS, PARTNERS, OR AFFILIATES EXCEPT AS 

EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN. 

 

6.2. Limitation of Liability.  Our aggregate and maximum liability in connection with any claim arising out of or relating to this 

Agreement shall be limited to a refund of fees paid by You to Us up to a limit of one year’s worth of fees.  We shall not be liable 

for any special, indirect, incidental, or consequential damages of any kind (including attorneys’ fees) arising in connection with 

Your use of the Web Application, or any failure by Us to perform our obligations, regardless of any negligence alleged. 

 

6.3. Indemnification.  We will defend and indemnify You against a third-party action, suit, or proceeding against You to the 

extent such claim is based upon an allegation that the Web Application or Content under this Agreement infringes a valid United 

States patent or copyright or misappropriates a third party’s trade secret.  If a third party alleges that Your Data or your use of 

the Web Application in breach of this Agreement infringes or misappropriates intellectual property rights or violates law, You will 

defend and indemnify Us and Our third party providers, partners, and affiliates against any such claim, demand, suit, or 

proceeding, including any judgments, settlements, and attorney fees.   

 

 

7. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

 

7.1. Non-Assignability.  Neither party may assign or transfer this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party.  

Any unauthorized assessment or transfer will be null and void, and enables termination.  This Agreement is binding upon any 

authorized successor or assignee. 

 

7.2. Entire Understanding.  This Agreement is the parties’ entire agreement relating to its subject, and supersedes any prior 

or contemporaneous agreement.  Any amendment must be in writing and expressly state that it is amending this Agreement. 

 

7.3. Governing Law & Arbitration.  This Agreement is governed by California law, excluding California’s choice of law rules.  

All disputes relating to this Agreement will be subject to binding arbitration pursuant to the rules of The American Arbitration 

Association or the Judicial Arbitration And Mediations Services, Inc.  The exclusive place of the arbitration shall be Orange 

County, California.  Judgment on the arbitration award may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof.  For the purpose 

of entry of judgment on such an award, the parties consent to personal jurisdiction in the courts of Orange County, California. 

 

7.4. Headings Not Controlling.  All captions and headings in this Agreement are for purposes of convenience only and shall 

not affect the construction or interpretation of any of its provisions. 

 

7.5. Severability.  If any provision of this contract is held to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, such provision is fully 

separable, and the remaining provisions of the contract shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________         ________________ 

Initials                                  Date 

Item#19.              



 

Service Level Agreement (SLA) Supplement 
 

These terms and conditions apply to, and only to, the specific Web Application or Web Service where “SLA Supplement” is 

expressly indicated on the corresponding Agreement (“Covered Service”).  Any capitalized terms not defined in this supplement 

have the meaning in the corresponding Agreement.  These terms do not apply to any other products or services, even if related. 

Service Level Agreement (“SLA”).  We will use reasonable commercial efforts to provide the Covered Service as operating 

and available 99.5% of the time in any calendar month (as defined in Monthly Uptime Percentage, below). In the event Your 
Users experience issues due to the unavailability of the Covered Service, You will be eligible to receive Service Credits. 

Customer Service Credit Request. In order to receive Service Credits, You must notify Us within fifteen (15) calendar days 

from the time You believe You are eligible to receive a Service Credit. Failure to comply with this requirement will forfeit Your 
right to receive a Service Credit. 

Maximum Service Credit. The aggregate maximum number of Service Credits to be issued by Us to You for any and all 

Downtime Periods that occur in a single calendar month will not exceed fifteen days of Service added to the end of Your term 
for the Covered Service. Service Credits may not be exchanged for, or converted to, monetary compensation. 

DMP SLA Exclusions. This SLA does not apply to any issues that resulted from: (i) factors outside of Our reasonable control; 

(ii) any actions or inactions by You or any third parties; or (iii) Your equipment and/or third party equipment (not within Our 
primary control). This SLA states Your sole and exclusive remedy for any failure by Us to meet this SLA. 

Definitions. The following definitions apply to this SLA: 

 "Downtime" means more than a five percent User Error Rate for the domain associated with the Covered Service, 

measured server-side.  Downtime excludes Scheduled Downtime for the purposes of this SLA. 

 "Downtime Period" means a period of ten consecutive minutes of Downtime. Intermittent Downtime for a period of less 

than ten minutes will not be counted towards any Downtime Periods. 

 "Monthly Uptime Percentage" means total number of minutes in a calendar month minus the number of minutes of 

Downtime suffered in all Downtime Periods in a calendar month, divided by the total number of minutes in a calendar month. 

 "Scheduled Downtime" means those times where We notify You of periods of Downtime at least twenty-four hours prior 

to the commencement of such Downtime. Scheduled Downtime is not considered Downtime for purposes of this SLA, and 
will not be counted towards any Downtime Periods.  Scheduled Downtime must be performed between 9pm and 3am 
Pacific Time, Sunday through Monday. 

 "Service Credit" means: (a) three days of Service added to the end of Your term for the Covered Service, at no charge to 

You, if the Monthly Uptime Percentage for any calendar month is above 98.5%; or (b) seven days of Service added to the 
end of Customer’s term for the Service, at no charge to Customer, if the Monthly Uptime Percentage for any calendar 
month is above 97.5%; or (c) fifteen days of Service added to the end of Customer’s term for the Service, at no charge to 
Customer, if the Monthly Uptime Percentage for any calendar month is less than 97.5%. 

 “User Error Rate” means the number of Valid Requests that result in a response with HTTP Status 500 and Code “Internal 

Error” divided by the total number of Valid Requests during that period. Repeated identical requests do not count towards 
the User Error Rate unless at least 60 seconds elapsed between the requests.   

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________         ________________ 

Initials                                  Date 

Item#19.              



 

Professional Services Agreement 
 

By executing this Agreement or any Order Form that references this Agreement, You agree that the Agreement terms govern 

Your access to and use of Digital Map Products (“DMP”) Web Services.  If You are entering into this agreement on behalf of a 

company or other legal entity, You represent that You have the authority to bind such entity and its affiliates to these terms, in 

which case the terms “You” or “Your” shall refer to the entity and its affiliates.  If You do not have such authority, or if You do not 

agree with these terms and conditions, You must not accept the Agreement and may not use the services. 

 

This Agreement was last updated on June 2nd, 2014. It is effective as of the date You accepted it. 

 

1. DEFINITIONS 

“Change Order” means a change to the scope of the Services. 

“Content” means any content provided through the Services (whether created by Us or Our third-party licensors). 

“Deliverable” means a work product produced by Us in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. It is a measureable, 

tangible, and verifiable outcome, result, or item that must be produced to complete a project or part of a project. 

“Order Form” means an ordering document specifying the Services to be provided hereunder that is entered into between You 

and Us, including any addenda and supplements thereto. By entering into an Order Form hereunder, an Affiliate agrees to be 

bound by the terms of this Agreement as if it were an original party hereto. 

“Services” means the products and services that are ordered by You under an Order Form and made available by Us, excluding 

any third- party web sites, content, or applications that our products and services link to. 

“Statement of Work” means one or more supplemental document(s) that describes the Services that You request Us to provide 

and any related Deliverables, attached hereto and as amended and/or supplemented from time to time by the mutual written 

agreement of the parties and incorporated herein by reference.  The Statement of Work may be contained wholly or in part on 

the Order Form or it may be a completely separate document. 

“Target Dates” means the dates We estimate the Services and Deliverables to be completed by.   

“User” means an individual who is authorized by You to use a Service, for whom You have ordered the Service. 

"We," "Us" or "Our" means Digital Map Products, Inc. or its affiliate. 

“Work Product” means any work product created by Us in connection with the Services (in whatever stage of completion), 

including, without limitation, concepts, data, works, inventions, information, drawings, designs, programs, or software (whether 

developed by Us or any of Our employees, representatives, agents, contractors, or subcontractors, either alone or with others, 

and whether completed or in-progress. 

“You” or “Your” means the company or other legal entity for which you are accepting this Agreement, and Affiliates of that 

company or entity. 

“Your Data” means electronic data and information submitted by or for You to the Services or collected and processed by or for 

You using the Services. 

 

2. SERVICES 

2.1. Scope of Services.  Subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, We will perform the Services and deliver the 

Deliverables as set forth in the Statement of Work or Order Form signed by both parties. Any changes to scope shall be made 

by written change order signed by an authorized representative of each party prior to implementation of such changes.  If the 

Services relate to any licenses You have to DMP products, the Services shall be performed solely in relationship to those 

licenses and the terms of those licenses are incorporated herein by reference.  All capitalized terms that are not defined in this 

Agreement will have the meaning set in the license agreement.   

2.2. Target Dates.  We will use commercially reasonable efforts to complete the Services by the Target Dates. 

Item#19.              



2.3. Change Orders. Any Change Orders must be made in writing and signed by both parties, or, if a Change Order is sent via 

email to the other party's designated contact person, the receiving party will use commercially reasonable efforts to accept or 

reject the Change Order via email or signed written response within five (5) business days.  Any accepted Change Order will be 

incorporated herein by reference and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

 

3. INTERDEPENDENCIES. 

3.1. Your Duties and Responsibilities. You will make available in a timely manner for Our use, at no charge to Us, all technical 

data, computer facilities, programs, files, documentation, test data, sample output, or other information, resources, and personnel 

required by Us as set forth in the applicable document for the performance of the Services. You will be responsible for, and 

assume the risk of any issues or problems resulting from the content, accuracy, completeness, competence, or consistency of 

all Your computer facilities, programs, files, documentation, test data, sample output, or other information, resources, and 

personnel supplied by You. If any part of the Services require Our personnel to be present at a facility under Your control or 

procurement, You will provide, at no charge to Us, reasonable office space and equipment at Your facilities as We require in 

performing the Services. 

3.2. Your Delays and Third-Party Delays.  You acknowledge that meeting the Target Dates is contingent upon timely 

completion of activities by You as contemplated by the parties under this Agreement including, without limitation, those activities 

designated to You in Article 2 above and/or in the applicable Statement of Work. You will immediately advise Us in writing as 

soon as it becomes aware of any developments that may delay completion of a scheduled Deliverable including, without 

limitation, Your failure or inability to perform an obligation or dependency. The Target Dates (though only an estimate) will  be 

equitably adjusted by the parties (but in no event less than a day-for-day adjustment) in writing in the event of: (a) any delay 

caused by Your failure or inability to perform an obligation; (b) any delay due to Your request for changes (whether pursuant to 

a Change Order or otherwise); (c) any delay due to a third party's act, failure to act or delay in performing any obligation 

whatsoever; or (d) any other delay incurred as a result of Your action(s) or omission(s). No such delay will relieve or suspend 

Your obligation to pay Us under Article 4 and, in addition to such payment obligations, You will pay for any and all costs and 

expenses incurred by Us relating to re-staffing as a result of any delay caused by You. 

You agree to make available to us any dependencies within Your control that we reasonably require in order to perform the 

Services, including but not limited to Your Data, other information, personnel, contacts, and materials.  In the event a dependency 

is not made available to us in a timely manner, whether controlled by You or a third party, We reserve the right to alter the Target 

Dates accordingly. 

2.5. Relationship of the Parties. We are performing the Services as an independent contractor, not as an employee, agent, 

joint venturer or partner of Yours. 

3. ACCEPTANCE 

3.1. Acceptance.  We will provide to You each Deliverable upon completion and, upon request, demonstrate to You its 

functionality in conformance with the relevant specifications.  You are responsible for conducting any additional review or testing 

of such Deliverable pursuant to any applicable acceptance criteria or test agreed upon by the parties for such deliverable.  If any 

submitted Deliverable does not reasonably meet the applicable functional requirements set forth for such Deliverable in the 

relevant Statement of Work or Order Form, You must notify Us within ten (10) business days after Our submission of the 

deliverable to give written notice to Us specifying any deficiencies in detail.  We shall use commercially reasonable efforts to 

cure any such deficiencies as soon as possible, and then resubmit the deliverable for further review and acceptance testing in 

the same manner.  Should any deliverable fail to satisfy the applicable functional requirements after Our fourth resubmission of 

such deliverable to You, You may: (a) again reject the deliverable, and return it to Us for further cure and resubmission; or (b) 

terminate the relevant Statement of Work for cause immediately upon written notice, and recover all amounts associated with 

such deficient deliverable.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event the applicable functional requirements as stated in the 

Statement of Work are subsequently determined by the parties to be inappropriate or to require modification due to changed 

circumstances, incorrect assumptions or other reasons at the time of actual delivery and testing of a Deliverable, the parties 

shall cooperate in good faith to appropriately modify such requirements.  You shall provide Us a written acceptance of each 

Deliverable promptly upon acceptance.  Failure to reject a Deliverable within the applicable acceptance period shall be deemed 

acceptance. 

 

6. FEES, PAYMENT, AND TERM 

6.1. Fees and Payment.  You will pay all fees specified in the Order Form and Statement of Work.  Except as otherwise specified 

in this Agreement, on the Order Form, on the Statement of Work, (a) payment obligations are non-cancelable and fees paid are 

non-refundable, and (b) charges shall be due net thirty (30) days from the date this Agreement is executed and shall be deemed 

Item#19.              



overdue if unpaid thereafter.  You are responsible for providing complete and accurate billing and contact information and 

notifying Us of any changes to such information.   

6.2. Non-Payment or Failure to Pay.  A charge of 1.5% per month may be assessed on any outstanding and past due invoices 

until paid in full.  You will be charged for any cost of collections including, but not limited to, agent fees, legal fees and costs, and 

other associated expenses. 

 

6.3. Taxes. Our fees do not include any taxes, levies, duties or similar governmental assessments of any nature (collectively, 

“Taxes”). You are responsible for paying all Taxes associated with Your purchases hereunder. If We have the legal obligation 

to pay or collect Taxes for which You are responsible under this Section 6.6, We will invoice You and You will be responsible for 

paying that amount in accordance with the applicable laws. 

 

 

7. PROPRIETARY RIGHTS, LICENSES, AND CONFIDENTIALITY 

 

7.1. Reservation of Rights.  With respect to any Work Product, We will own all right, title, and interest (including, without 

limitation, all copyrights, trade secrets, patents, trademarks, and any other intellectual property or proprietary rights) (collectively, 

“Proprietary Rights”) in such Work Product. Customer acknowledges and agrees that the Work Product is not a “work made for 

hire”, and all Proprietary Rights embodied in the Work Product shall be owned exclusively by Us. To the extent that You provide 

any feedback or otherwise contribute to the Work Product, You hereby irrevocably assign to Us all of Your right, title, and interest 

in and to the Work Product, including, without limitation, all rights in and to any inventions, designs and Proprietary Rights 

embodied in the Work Product or developed in the course of Our creation of the Work Product. You will execute any documents 

in connection with such assignment that We may reasonably request. 

 

7.2. Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure.  Each party understands that the other party may share certain information of a 

confidential nature, either directly or indirectly, in writing, orally or by inspection of tangible objects, during the term of this 

Agreement.  Each party agrees, for itself and any Affiliate, agents, and employees, that it will not publish, disclose, or otherwise 

divulge or use (other than as expressly permitted under this Agreement) any such confidential information of the other party 

without prior written consent. Each party will use at least the same level of care to maintain the confidentiality of the other party’s 

confidential information as it uses to maintain the confidentiality of its own non-public information, and in no event less than a 

reasonable degree of care. Without granting any right or license, the foregoing will not apply to information that (i) is in the public 

domain and is available at the time of disclosure or which thereafter enters the public domain and is available, through no 

improper action or inaction by the receiving party or any Affiliate, agent, or employee (provided, however, that an item of 

confidential information shall not be considered in the public domain due to the fact that the individual elements that comprise 

that item can be found in the public domain); (ii) was in the receiving party’s possession or known by it prior to receipt from the 

disclosing party; (iii) was rightfully disclosed to the receiving party by a third party without violating any obligations to the 

disclosing party; (iv) is independently developed by the receiving party without reference to such confidential information; or (v) 

is compelled to be disclosed pursuant to any statutory or regulatory authority, court order, or legal process, provided the 

disclosing party is given prompt notice of such requirement, and the scope of such disclosure is limited to the extent possible.  

You will not disclose the terms of this Agreement or any Order Form to any third party. 

 

7.3. License to Use and Host Your Data.  You grant Us a limited-term license to host, copy, adapt, modify, transmit, and 

display Your Data, as necessary for Us to provide the Services. 

 

7.4. License to Collect Data and Use Feedback.  You agree that We may collect and use information gathered as part of the 

Services and Content to improve our technology, products, and internal processes.  You grant Us a worldwide, perpetual, 

irrevocable, royalty-free license to use and incorporate into Services any suggestion, enhancement request, recommendation, 

correction, or other feedback provided by You or Your Users relating to Our Services or Content. 

 

 

9. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, EXCLUSIVE REMEDIES AND DISCLAIMERS 

 

9.1. Our Warranties.  EXCEPT FOR ANY EXPRESS WARRANTIES PROVIDED HEREIN, NEITHER PARTY MAKES ANY 

WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR OTHERWISE.  WE PROVIDE THE SERVICES AND WORK 

PRODUCT ON AN “AS IS,” “AS AVAILABLE” BASIS.  WE MAKE NO REPRESENTATION, WARRANTY, OR COVENANT 

WHATSOEVER REGARDING MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, PERFORMANCE, 

FUNCTIONALITY, QUALITY, AVAILABILITY, ACCURACY, OR SECURITY OF THE SERVICES, THE WORK PRODUCT OR 

YOUR DATA. NO AGENT OF DMP IS AUTHORIZED TO ALTER OR EXCEED THE WARRANTY OBLIGATIONS OF DMP AS 

SET FORTH HEREIN. 

 

NEITHER US NOR ANY THIRD PARTY PROVIDERS, PARTNERS OR AFFILIATES WARRANT THAT ANY WORK 

PRODUCT, DOCUMENTATION, OR COMMUNICATIONS ARE FREE OF ERRORS, OMISSIONS, VIRUSES OR OTHER 

HARMFUL COMPONENTS. 

Item#19.              



 
OUR SERVICES ARE NOT A PROVISION OF AND IS NO SUBSTITUTE FOR QUALIFIED AND LICENSED PROFESSIONAL 

ENGINEERING, LEGAL, REAL ESTATE, FINANCIAL, INVESTMENT, TITLE, OR OTHER ADVICE.   

 

BY ACCEPTING THIS AGREEMENT, YOU DISCLAIM ALL LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION OBLIGATIONS FOR ANY 

HARM OR DAMAGES CAUSED BY THE SERVICES, THE WORK PRODUCT, YOUR DATA, OR ANY RELATED THIRD-

PARTY SERVICE OR CONTENT PROVIDERS. 

 

9.2. Limitation of Liability.  Our aggregate and maximum liability in connection with any claim arising out of or relating to this 

Agreement shall be limited to a refund of the amounts paid and payable by You to Us during the 12 months preceding the claim 

giving rise to such liability under the applicable Statement of Work or Order Form.  We shall not be liable for any special, indirect, 

incidential, or consequential damages of any kind whatsoever (including attorneys’ fees) arising in connection with Your use of 

the Services and Content, or any failure by Us to perform our obligations, regardless of any negligence alleged. 

 

9.3. Mutual Indemnification.  Each party hereby agrees to indemnify and defend the other party, and its parent companies, 

subsidiaries, affiliates, shareholders, member, manager, officers, directors, employees, agents, and representatives from and 

against any and all claims, costs, proceedings, demands, losses, damages, and expenses (including, without limitation, 

reasonable attorney’s fees and legal costs) of any kind or nature, arising from or relating to this Agreement. 

 

 

10. ADDITIONAL PROVISIONS 

 

10.1. Non-Assignability.  Neither party may assign or transfer this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other 

party.  Any unauthorized assessment or transfer will be null and void, and enables termination.  This Agreement is binding upon 

any authorized successor or assignee. 

 

10.2. Entire Understanding.  This Agreement is the parties’ entire agreement relating to its subject, and supersedes any prior 

or contemporaneous agreement.  Any amendment must be in writing and expressly state that it is amending this Agreement. 

 

10.3. Governing Law & Arbitration.  This Agreement is governed by California law, excluding California’s choice of law rules.  

All disputes relating to this Agreement will be subject to binding arbitration pursuant to the rules of The American Arbitration 

Association or the Judicial Arbitration And Mediations Services, Inc.  The exclusive place of the arbitration shall be Orange 

County, California.  Judgment on the arbitration award may be entered in any court having jurisdiction thereof.  For the purpose 

of entry of judgment on such an award, the parties consent to personal jurisdiction in the courts of Orange County, California. 

 

10.4. Headings Not Controlling.  All captions and headings in this Agreement are for purposes of convenience only and shall 

not affect the construction or interpretation of any of its provisions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

________________________________         ________________ 

Initials                                  Date 

Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



Item#19.              



 

Rev 12/13 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO 

 

AGREEMENT WITH Digital Map Products 

 

 

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO CONSULTANT AGREEMENT (hereafter "Second Amendment") 

is made and effective as of August 23, 2016, by and between the CITY OF MISSION VIEJO, a municipal 

corporation, (hereafter "City") and Digital Map Products (hereafter "Consultant"). In consideration of 

the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, the parties hereto mutually agree as follows: 

 

1.  This Second Amendment is made and entered into with respect to the following facts: 

 

a.  On October 15, 2014, the City and Consultant entered into that certain agreement 

entitled “City of Mission Viejo Geographic Information Systems Services Agreement" 

in which the Consultant agreed to provide certain services for the City (hereafter 

"Agreement"). 

 

b.  City and Consultant desire to make certain modifications to the Agreement as set forth 

in this Second Amendment. 

    

2.  Section 1 of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

TERM.  This Agreement shall commence on October 15, 2014, and shall remain and 

continue in effect until tasks described herein are completed, but in no event later 

than October 16, 2017, unless sooner terminated pursuant to the provisions of this 

Agreement. This contract may be renewed by mutual agreement of both parties for 

one additional 1-year period, for a total of term of 3 years. This renewal is contingent 

upon satisfactory work being performed by the Consultant.  

 

3.  Section 4 of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 

PAYMENT.  The City agrees to pay Consultant monthly, in accordance with the 

payment rates and terms and the schedule of payment as set forth in Exhibit B.  This 

amount shall not exceed Forty two thousand four hundred and nineteen  Dollars 

($42,419) for the total term of October 15, 2016 to October 16, 2017. 

 

 

4. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Second Amendment, all other terms and 

provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 

Consultant/Contractor City of Mission Viejo 

 

___________________________ __________________________________ 

Jim Skurzynski Date Dennis Wilberg Date 

President  City Manager 

 

Consultant/Contractor  

Item#19.              



 

Rev 12/13 

 

___________________________ __________________________________ 

Geoffrey T. Wade Date Karen Hamman Date 

Chief Technology Officer  City Clerk 

 

   

  Approved as to Form: 

 

 

 

  __________________________________ 

  William P. Curley Date 

  City Attorney 

Item#19.              



EXHIBIT B (Amended) 

 

PAYMENT SCHEDULE 

 

 

1. Content Solutions ………………………….…………………………...….…...$12,459.00 

2. Web Applications – GovClarity …………………………………...……………$29,960.00 

3. Professional Services ………………………………………………..………….No Charge 

 

Total Annual Cost  ..………….……………………………...…….………………$42,419.00 

 

 

Payment Terms: Net 30 

Item#19.              



 



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Mark Chagnon, Director of Public Works 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services/City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Marguerite Parkway Roadway Pollutant and Runoff Abatement Project: Alarcon to Santa Margarita Parkway (CIP 
229) 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Adopt Resolution 16-XX Authorizing An Application for Funds for the Environmental Cleanup, Tier 1 Grant 
Program Under Orange County Local Transportation Ordinance No. 3 for the Marguerite Parkway Roadway 
Pollutant and Runoff Abatement Project: Alarcon to Santa Margarita Parkway (CIP 229). 
  
Executive Summary 

Public Works staff previously submitted a grant application to OCTA requesting $200,000 in funding for the 
rehabilitation of the medians on Marguerite Parkway between Alarcon and Santa Margarita Parkway, CIP 229.  On 
July 7, 2016, OCTA advised City staff that the grant application was being recommended for funding; however, an 
updated resolution authorizing the application is required prior to funding. 
 
In past years, OCTA accepted resolutions for the Environmental Cleanup Program which covered multiple years 
and multiple projects, including Resolution 14-35.  This year, however, in order to comply with Measure M2 audit 
requirements, OCTA is requiring applicants provide an updated resolution specific to the proposed project, 
including funding match commitments.  Resolutions must be submitted prior to September 1, 2016.  The OCTA 
Board of Directors is scheduled to approve grant funding for CIP 229 at its September 8, 2016, meeting. 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $N/A 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?: N/A (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 
 

Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

7-07-2014 Adoption of Resolution 14-35, Application for ECP Funding 
7-12-2016 Establishment of CIP 229 in the Seven-Year CIP Program 
  
Attachments 

Draft Resolution 
 

 

Item#20.              



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\301243.doc 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-XX 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MISSION VIEJO AUTHORIZING AN APPLICATION FOR 
FUNDS FOR THE ENVIRONMENTAL CLEANUP, TIER 1 
GRANT PROGRAM UNDER ORANGE COUNTY LOCAL 
TRANSPORTATION ORDINANCE NO. 3 FOR THE 
MARGUERITE PARKWAY ROADWAY POLLUTANT AND 
RUNOFF ABATEMENT PROJECT: ALARCON TO SANTA 
MARGARITA PARKWAY (CIP 229) 

 
 
 WHEREAS, Orange County Local Transportation Ordinance No. 3, dated July 24, 2006, 
and is known and cited as the Renewed Measure M Transportation Ordinance and Investment 
Plan, makes funds available through the Environmental Cleanup Program to help protect Orange 
County beaches and waterways from transportation-generated pollution (urban runoff) and 
improve overall water quality; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Environmental Cleanup, Tier 1 Grant Program consists of funding 
purchases and installation to catch basins with Best Management Practices, such as screens, 
filters, inserts, and other "street-scale" low-flow diversion projects; and 

 
WHEREAS, OCTA has established the procedures and criteria for reviewing proposals; 

and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Mission Viejo possesses authority to nominate water quality 

improvement projects that have a transportation pollution nexus to finance and construct the 
proposed project; and 

 
WHEREAS, by formal action the City Council authorizes the nomination of the 

Marguerite Parkway Roadway Pollutant and Runoff Abatement Project: Alarcon to Santa 
Margarita Parkway including all understanding and assurances contained therein, and authorizes 
the person identified as the official representative of the City of Mission Viejo to act in 
connection with the nomination and to provide such additional information as may be required; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Mission Viejo will maintain and operate the equipment acquired 

and installed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Mission Viejo will give OCTA's representatives access to and 

the right to examine all records, books, papers or documents related to the funded Tier 1 Grant 
Project; and 

 

Item#20.              



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\301243.doc 

WHEREAS, the City of Mission Viejo will cause work on the project to be commenced 
within a reasonable time after receipt of notification from OCTA and that the project will be 
carried to completion with reasonable diligence; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Mission Viejo will comply where applicable with provisions of 
the California Environmental Quality Act, the National Environmental Policy Act, the American 
with Disabilities Act, and any other federal, state, and/or local laws, rules and/or regulations; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Mission Viejo will include all projects funded by net revenues in 
the Seven-Year Capital Improvement Program as part of the Renewed Measure M Ordinance 
eligibility requirement; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Mission Viejo authorizes a formal amendment to the Seven-Year 
Capital Improvement Program to add projects approved for funding upon approval from the 
Orange County Transportation Authority Board of Directors; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Mission Viejo will provide a minimum of 25% in matching 
funds for the Marguerite Parkway Roadway Pollutant and Runoff Abatement Project: Alarcon to 
Santa Margarita Parkway as required by the Orange County Comprehensive Transportation 
Funding Programs Guidelines; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF MISSION VIEJO DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, 
DETERMINE AND ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.  The City of Mission Viejo hereby authorizes the Director of Public Works 
as the official representative of the City of Mission Viejo to accept funds for the Environmental 
Cleanup, Tier 1 Grant Program for the Marguerite Parkway Roadway Pollutant and Runoff 
Abatement Project: Alarcon to Santa Margarita Parkway. 
 

SECTION 2.  The City of Mission Viejo agrees to fund its share of the project costs and 
any additional costs over the identified programmed amount. 
 

SECTION 3.  The City Clerk shall certify the adoption of this resolution. 
 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 23rd day of August, 2016. 
 
 
 
              
       Frank Ury 
       Mayor 
 

Item#20.              



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\301243.doc 

 I, Karen Hamman, City Clerk of the City of Mission Viejo, hereby certify that the 
foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Mission Viejo at a 
regular meeting thereof, held on the 23rd day of August, 2016, by the following vote of the City 
Council: 
 
 AYES: 
 NOES: 
 ABSENT: 
 
 
 
       
Karen Hamman 
City Clerk 

Item#20.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Mark Chagnon, Director of Public Works 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services/City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Installation of Soil Tiebacks under Avery Parkway 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Approve the Soil Tieback Agreement with Sherwood Classics, LLC (GreenStreet Development) subject to any 
minor revisions required by the City Attorney and/or City Engineer. 
  
Executive Summary 

GreenStreet Development is starting the construction of a new shopping plaza with an auto spa at the southeast 
corner of Marguerite Parkway and Avery Parkway.  The contractor for the GreenStreet project contacted the Public 
Works Department requesting permission to install soil tiebacks under Avery Parkway that will be used to provide 
temporary shoring to facilitate the construction of the below-grade portions of the building (basement/car wash 
area).  According to GreenStreet’s contractor, if it is allowed to install temporary tiebacks under Avery Parkway, 
the process will save approximately $200,000 in construction costs and reduce the construction time by 
approximately 90 days versus constructing the project using its originally proposed on-site shoring system. 
 
The tiebacks are installed by drilling a six-inch diameter hole horizontally approximately 60 feet at a steep angle 
(see attached Exhibit).  A steel rod is then inserted into the hole and the end portion is pressure grouted.  Only the 
portion 20 feet or more below the surface of the roadway is grouted.  Ultimately, the ungrouted portion of the steel 
rod is removed, and only the grouted portion of the steel rod remains in place permanently.  
 
Staff researched the proposed tieback system and had the City’s geotechnical engineer and Building Division 
review the proposed design of the tiebacks.  These tieback systems are commonly used under public roads in cities 
such as Los Angeles where the construction of tall buildings (with large basements) and subways is commonplace. 
Staff concluded that with only the portions of the tieback rods greater than 20 feet under the roadway remaining in 
place, there would be minimal impacts to the public right of way and future roadway/utility projects.  
 
Based on these findings, staff negotiated an agreement with GreenStreet that will provide the City $30,000 in 
compensation to allow GreenStreet to install seven tiebacks under Avery Parkway to facilitate construction of the 
project.  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $0 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 
Prog/Fund #      Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP #       Fund #      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

None  
Attachments 

Draft Agreement 
Exhibit [Tieback Cross-Section] 
 

 

Item#21.              



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\301320.docx -1- 

LICE�SE AGREEME�T TO USE CITY REAL PROPERTY 
BY A�D BETWEE� THE CITY OF MISSIO� VIEJO A�D 

SHERWOOD CLASSICS, LLC (GREE�STREET DEVELOPME�T) 
 
 
 THIS LICE�SE AGREEME�T TO USE CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY (“Agreement”) is 
entered into this 23rd day of August, 2016, by and between the City of Mission Viejo, a 
California municipal corporation, hereinafter referred to as “City” and Sherwood Classics, LLC 
(GreenStreet Development) a Limited Liability Company, hereinafter referred to as 
"GreenStreet".  City and GreenStreet are hereinafter individually referred to as "Party" and are 
hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Parties."  The effective date of this Agreement shall be 
the date indicated in Section 1 hereunder (the “Effective Date”). 
 

R E C I T A L S 
 
 WHEREAS, Green Street owns certain property in the city of Mission Viejo at the 
corner of Marguerite Parkway and Avery Parkway described as APN 740-013-23; and 
 
 WHEREAS, City owns certain real property that is a dedicated public street commonly 
known as Avery Parkway which is adjacent to the above-described property; and  
 
 WHEREAS, GreenStreet has requested that City allow the installation of temporary tie-
backs under Avery Parkway to provide temporary lateral support to facilitate the construction of 
subsurface improvements on GreenStreet’s property; and 
 
 WHEREAS, once the construction is completed on GreenStreet’s property, portions of 
the installed tie-backs will be abandoned in-place under Avery Parkway; and  
 
 WHEREAS, City has agreed to grant GreenStreet a License Agreement to install seven 
(7) temporary tiebacks under Avery Parkway for a term not to exceed 365 days from issuance of 
all required permits to construct tiebacks; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in return for the rights described in this License Agreement to install 
temporary tiebacks, GreenStreet has agreed to compensate City in the sum of Thirty Thousand 
Dollars ($30,000.00) prior to installing any tiebacks under Avery Parkway. 
 

A G R E E M E � T 
 
 �OW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of 
which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
 1. GRA�T OF LICE�SE AGREEME�T 
 
  A. License Agreement.  City hereby grants to GreenStreet for the use and 
benefit of GreenStreet and its successors and assigns and their contractors, subcontractors, 
partners, members, shareholders, officers, directors, employees, agents, invitees, licensees 

Item#21.              



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\301320.docx -2- 

(collectively, the “Permitted Users”), the temporary right to install up to seven (7) soil tiebacks 
under Avery Parkway solely to provide temporary shoring to GreenStreet’s project.  After the 
Term (as defined below), the License Agreement shall not include any rights by GreenStreet to 
disturb or alter the surface or subservice of City Property without City’s prior written consent. 
 
  B. �on-Exclusive Use.  The rights granted to Permitted Users pursuant to 
this License Agreement are non-exclusive and the owners of City Property retain the right at all 
times to use City Property for any purpose not inconsistent with the License Agreement rights 
granted under this Agreement and not unreasonably interfering with the enjoyment of the 
benefits of License Agreement, which rights include use of City Property for public street 
purposes.  GreenStreet, in exercising its rights under the License Agreement, shall use reasonable 
care to minimize disruption to City Property.   
 
  C. �o Right to Remove Underground Tiebacks.  GreenStreet may leave 
the portions of the tiebacks in place that are more than twenty feet (20’) below the finished 
surface of Avery Parkway, and shall not be required to remove them.  GreenStreet shall remove 
all portions of the tiebacks that are less than twenty feet (20’) below the finished surface of 
Avery Parkway prior to the expiration date of this License Agreement. 
 
  D. Indemnification.  GreenStreet agrees to defend, indemnify, protect and 
hold harmless the City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from and against any and 
all claims, demands, losses, defense costs or expenses, or liability of any kind or nature which 
the City, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers may sustain or incur or which may be 
imposed upon them for injury to or death of persons, or damage to property arising out of 
GreenStreet's negligent or wrongful acts or omissions in performing or failing to perform under 
the terms of this License Agreement, excepting only liability arising out of the negligence of the 
City. 
 
  E. Insurance.  GreenStreet agrees to provide insurance in accordance with 
the requirements set forth herein.  If GreenStreet uses existing coverage to comply with these 
requirements and that coverage does not meet the requirements set forth herein, GreenStreet 
agrees to amend, supplement or endorse the existing coverage to do so.  The following coverages 
will be provided by GreenStreet and maintained on behalf of City and in accordance with the 
requirements set forth herein.  
 
   1) Commercial General Liability/Umbrella.  Primary insurance 
shall be provided on ISO-CGL form No. CG 00 01 11 85 or 88.  Total limits shall be no less than 
$2,000,000.00 per occurrence for all coverages and $2,000,000.00 general aggregate.  City and 
its employees and agents shall be added as additional insureds using ISO additional insured 
endorsement form CG 20 10 11 85 (in no event will City accept an endorsement form with an 
edition date later than 1990).  Coverage shall apply on a primary non-contributing basis in 
relation to any other insurance or self-insurance, primary or excess, available to City or any 
employee or agent of City. Coverage shall not be limited to the vicarious liability or supervisory 
role of any additional insured. 
 

Item#21.              



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\301320.docx -3- 

   2) Umbrella Liability Insurance (if necessary to meet limits 
requirements) shall apply to bodily injury/property damage, personal injury/advertising injury, at 
a minimum, and shall include a “drop-down” provision providing primary coverage above a 
maximum $25,000.00 self-insured retention for liability not covered by primary policies but 
covered by the umbrella policy.  Coverage shall be following form to any underlying coverage.  
Coverage shall be provided on a “pay-on-behalf” basis, with defense costs payable in addition to 
policy limits.  There shall be no cross-liability exclusion.  Policies shall have concurrent starting 
and ending dates. 
 
   3) Business Auto/Umbrella Liability Insurance.  Primary coverage 
shall be written on ISO Business Auto Coverage form CA 00 01 06 92 including symbol 1 (Any 
Auto).  Limits shall be no less than $1,000,000.00 per accident.  Starting and ending dates shall 
be concurrent.  If GreenStreet owns no autos, a non-owned auto endorsement to the General 
Liability policy described above is acceptable. 
 
   4) Workers’ Compensation/Employer’s Liability shall be written 
on a policy form providing workers’ compensation statutory benefits as required by law.  
Employer’s liability limits shall be no less than one million dollars per accident or disease.  
Employer’s liability coverage shall be scheduled under any umbrella policy described above.  
Unless otherwise agreed, this policy shall be endorsed to waive any right of subrogation as 
respect to City, its employees, or agents. 
 
   5) Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention.  Any deductibles or 
self-insured retention must be declared to and approved by City.  At the option of City, either the 
insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retention as respects to City, its 
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers; or GreenStreet shall procure a bond guaranteeing 
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses. 
 
   6) Other Insurance Provisions.  The general liability and 
automobile liability policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions: 
 
    a) City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and 
volunteers are to be covered as insured as respects:  liability arising out of activities performed 
by or on behalf of GreenStreet, products and Completed operations of GreenStreet; premises 
owned, occupied or used by GreenStreet; or automobiles owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by 
GreenStreet.  The coverage shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection 
afforded to the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, or volunteers. 
 
    b) For any claims related to this project, GreenStreet's 
insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects to City, its officers, officials, 
employees, agents, or volunteers.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by City, its 
officers, officials, employees, agents, or volunteers shall be in excess of GreenStreet's insurance 
and shall not contribute with it. 
 

Item#21.              



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\301320.docx -4- 

    c) Any failure to comply with reporting or other provisions of 
the policies including breaches of warranties shall not affect coverage provided to City, its 
officers, officials, employees, agents, or volunteers. 
 
    d) GreenStreet's insurance shall apply separately to each 
insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the 
insurer's liability. 
 
    e) Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be 
endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, canceled by either Party, reduced 
in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice by certified mail, return 
receipt required, has been given to City. 
 
   7) Acceptability of Insurers.  Insurance is to be placed with insurers 
with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII. 
 
   8) Verification of Coverage.  GreenStreet shall furnish City with 
original endorsements effecting coverage required by this clause.  The endorsements are to be 
signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf.  All endorsements 
are to be received and approved by City before Work commences.   
 
   9) Subcontractors.  GreenStreet shall include all subcontractors as 
insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each 
subcontractor.  All coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated 
herein. 
 
  F. Covenants.  GreenStreet covenants that (i) neither GreenStreet nor 
Permitted Users shall permit any lien to attach to City Property as a result of the exercise of the 
License Agreement; but if any such liens do attach, GreenStreet shall provide to City within ten 
(10) days thereafter, evidence reasonably acceptable to City that such liens have been or shall be, 
at GreenStreet’s sole expense, satisfied, bonded over or contested in a manner that will protect 
City’s interest in City Property; (ii) GreenStreet and Permitted Users shall use Avery Parkway 
only for the purposes set forth in Section 1.A. above; (iii) GreenStreet shall install and construct 
the Underground Anchors in a good and workmanlike manner and in compliance with all 
applicable laws, rules, regulations, orders and ordinances, including compliance with the City of 
Mission Viejo Grading and Excavation Code and Manual, and the City of Mission Viejo 
Encroachment Permit requirements, all pertinent Building Codes and Permits, and in strict 
compliance with the plans prepared by GreenStreet’s independent third-party 
consultant/contractor and approved by City; and (iv) GreenStreet will protect all property and 
improvements in and about the Avery Parkway right-of-way limits from damage caused by 
GreenStreet and/or Permitted Users, and GreenStreet shall immediately repair or replace (and 
City shall provide to GreenStreet reasonable access rights to City Property therefor) any such 
property or improvement once damaged to its pre-existing condition (including restoration of 
vegetation, as necessary) at GreenStreet’s sole expense. 
 

Item#21.              



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\301320.docx -5- 

  G. As-Builts.  GreenStreet agrees to prepare as-built plans at the completion 
of the project showing the placement of all tiebacks within the right-of-way of Avery Parkway, 
including but not limited to, horizontal and vertical locations and dimensions, on 24” x 36” 
Mylar plans and electronic format, acceptable to the City of Mission Viejo City Engineer, at 
GreenStreet’s sole expense.  
 
  H. Initial Term of License Agreement.  The term of the License Agreement 
shall commence upon the issuance of all required permits for the installation of said tiebacks and 
shall terminate on the date that is the earlier of (i) one (1) year after City’s issuance of all permits 
required for the construction of the tiebacks, or (ii) the completion of the construction of 
basement walls (the “Initial Term”). 
 GreenStreet affirms that the signatures, titles and seals set forth hereinafter in execution 
of this License Agreement represent all individuals, firm members, partners, joint venturers 
and/or corporate officers having a principal interest herein. 
 
 I� WIT�ESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be 
executed the day and year first written. 
 
GREE�STREET:     CITY OF MISSIO� VIEJO: 
 
 
              
Linda Yang    Date  Dennis R. Wilberg   Date 
Managing Member     City Manager 
Sherwood Classics, LLC 
Corporate Office: 
19401 South Harborgate Way    ATTEST: 
Torrance, California 90501 
 
 
 
              
By:     Date  Karen Hamman 
Title:       City Clerk 
 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
              
       William P. Curley, III   Date 
       City Attorney 
 
 
�OTE: SIGNATURES OF CORPORATE OFFICIALS MUST BE NOTARIZED 

Item#21.              



C:\Program Files (x86)\Neevia.Com\Document Converter\temp\301320.docx -6- 

 

Item#21.              



EXHIBIT 

 

Item#21.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Keith Rattay, Director of Public Services 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Public Hearing to Consider All Objections to the Proposed Abatement of Weeds on Parcels Less than One 
Acre for the Annual Weed Abatement Program 2016 - Phase 2. 
 
 
Recommended Action 

Instruct the Public Services Department to proceed and perform the removal of weeds in accordance with 
Sections 39568 through 39588 of the Government Code. 
  
Executive Summary 

On June 14, 2016, City Council adopted Resolution 16-28 that required notification of certain property owners 
to remove weeds from properties designated and set the date of August 23, 2016, to hear and consider all 
objections to the proposed removal of weeds by the City of Mission Viejo.  On June 16, 2016, City staff 
mailed notices to all properties as designated in Resolution 16-28 (Exhibit A).  In the past, the majority of 
properties notified cleared the weeds by the due date.  
 
Staff recommends that City Council, after hearing all objections for the proposed removal of weeds on parcels 
less than one acre, overrule any objections in accordance with Sections 39568 through 39588 of the 
Government Code (Exhibit 1) and order the Public Services Department to abate weeds in accordance with 
Sections 39568 through 39588 of the Government Code (Exhibit 1) on the remaining properties noticed in 
(Exhibit B). 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

6-14-16 -  Adopt Resolution 16-28 
   
Attachments 

Exhibit A - Resolution 16-28 
Exhibit 1 (Sections 39568-39588 of the Government Code 
Exhibit B (2016 Weed Abatement List- Notices Mailed) 
 

 
 

Item#22.              



Item#22.              



Item#22.              



Item#22.              



20
16
 W

E
E
D
 A
B
A
T
E
M
E
N
T
 L
IS
T

E
X
H
IB
IT
 B

P
ub

lic
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
D
ep

ar
tm
en

t
R
E
V
IS
E
D
 0
8
/1
0
/1
6

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
IE
S
 H
IG
H
T
L
IG
H
T
E
D
 I
N
 Y
E
L
L
O
W
 H
A
V
E
 C
O
M
E
 I
N
T
O
 C
O
M
P
L
IA
N
C
E

T
R
A
C
T
P
A
R
C
E
L

L
O
T

F
IR
S
T

L
A
S
T

S
T
R
E
E
T

A
D
D
R
E
S
S
Z
IP
 C
O
D
E

P
R
O
B
L
E
M

T
/B

L
e
tt
e
r

N
A
M
E

N
A
M
E

N
A
M
E

D
E
S
C
R
IP
T
IO
N

M
A
P

S
e
n
t

78
07

80
9-
41

4-
02

64
R
ob

er
t

S
ch
ul
tz

V
ia
 G
av
io
ta

26
55

5
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
B
5

ü

78
07

80
9-
47

2-
22

67
B
ria
n

B
ar
tc
za
k

V
ia
 G
av
io
ta

26
53

1
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
B
5

ü

78
07

80
9-
47

2-
21

68
V
irg
ili
o

S
an

ch
ez

V
ia
 G
av
io
ta

26
52

1
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
B
5

ü

78
07

80
9-
47

2-
19

70
D
on

al
d

T
ur
ne

r 
T
ru
st

V
ia
 G
av
io
ta

26
50

1
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
B
5

ü

78
07

80
9-
47

2-
17

72
Ja
ck
/C
hr
is

C
he

n
V
ia
 G
av
io
ta

26
48

5
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
B
5

ü

78
07

80
9-
47

2-
15

74
D
ar
en

B
lo
m
qu

is
t

V
ia
 G
av
io
ta

26
47

1
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
B
5

ü

78
07

80
9-
47

2-
13

76
K
im
be

rly
 A
nn

G
ee

V
ia
 G
av
io
ta

26
45

5
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
B
5

ü

78
07

80
9-
47

2-
12

77
T
ao

uf
ik

B
ou

rd
i

V
ia
 G
av
io
ta

26
45

1
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
B
5

ü

78
07

80
9-
47

2-
11

78
C
hr
is
to
ph

er
B
ro
w
n

V
ia
 G
av
io
ta

26
44

1
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
B
5

ü

78
07

80
9-
47

2-
10

79
D
re
w

N
iv
en

V
ia
 G
av
io
ta

26
43

1
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
B
5

ü

78
07

80
9-
47

2-
09

80
V
ic
to
ria

M
or
te
ns
en

 T
r

V
ia
 G
av
io
ta

26
42

1
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
B
5

ü

78
07

80
9-
47

2-
08

81
M
oh

an
P
ra
dh

an
V
ia
 G
av
io
ta

26
41

5
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
B
5

ü

78
07

80
9-
47

2-
07

82
E
ug

en
e

F
lo
od

V
ia
 G
av
io
ta

26
41

1
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
ry
 b
ru
sh
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
B
5

ü

78
07

80
9-
47

2-
05

84
M
ic
ha

el
D
ie
tr
ic
h

V
ia
 G
av
io
ta

26
39

1
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
B
5

ü

78
07

80
9-
47

2-
03

86
D
ou

gl
as

K
ee

ne
V
ia
 G
av
io
ta

26
37

1
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
B
5

ü

78
07

80
9-
47

2-
02

87
Ir
m
a

Lo
za
no

V
ia
 G
av
io
ta

26
36

1
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
B
5

ü

95
63

83
7-
13

2-
54

48
G
er
sh
on

S
ha

m
ay

A
be

du
l

21
67

6
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
D
2

ü

95
63

83
7-
13

2-
53

47
M
au

re
en

M
ig
rd
itc
hi
an

*
A
be

du
l

21
68

2
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
D
2

ü

80
43

80
8-
10

1-
12

12
B
ru
ce

H
op

so
n 

V
ia
 M
ad

ru
ga

da
24

13
2

92
69

2
W
ee

ds
/d
ry
 b
ru
sh
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
D
7

ü

80
43

80
8-
10

1-
13

13
W
al
ai

K
es
pr
ad

it
V
ia
 M
ad

ru
ga

da
24

14
2

92
69

2
W
ee

ds
/tr
ee

 b
ra
nc
he

s/
dr
y 
br
us
h 
on

 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
D
7

ü

80
43

80
8-
10

1-
19

19
R
u-
C
hi
an

 &
 

T
in
a

C
ha

ng
 

V
ia
 M
ad

ru
ga

da
24

20
2

92
69

2
W
ee

ds
/d
ry
 b
ru
sh
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
D
7

ü

80
43

80
8-
10

1-
20

20
Le

a 
A
nn

M
cC

le
lla
n

V
ia
 M
ad

ru
ga

da
24

21
2

92
69

2
W
ee

ds
/d
ry
 b
ru
sh
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
D
7

ü

80
43

80
8-
10

1-
09

21
Ja
ck

D
av
is

V
ia
 M
ad

ru
ga

da
24

22
2

92
69

2
W
ee

ds
/d
ry
 b
ru
sh
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
D
7

ü

80
43

80
8-
10

1-
22

22
D
ou

gl
as
 &
 

Li
za

Z
ie
la
sk
o 

V
ia
 M
ad

ru
ga

da
24

23
2

92
69

2
W
ee

ds
/d
ry
 b
ru
sh
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
D
7

ü

80
43

80
8-
10

1-
23

23
W
al
te
r

F
ra
nc
oi
s 

V
ia
 M
ad

ru
ga

da
24

24
2

92
69

2
W
ee

ds
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
D
7

ü

80
43

80
8-
10

1-
09

9
R
on

al
d 
&
 

T
on

i
G
ry
za
no

sk
i

V
ia
 M
ad

ru
ga

da
24

09
2

92
69

2
W
ee

ds
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
D
7

ü

80
43

80
8-
10

1-
10

10
N
an

cy
 J
o

B
on

ds
V
ia
 M
ad

ru
ga

da
24

10
2

92
69

2
W
ee

ds
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
D
7

ü

80
43

80
8-
10

1-
14

14
D
on

al
d 

R
ai
ch
e

V
ia
 M
ad

ru
ga

da
24

15
2

92
69

2
W
ee

ds
 o
n 
re
ar
 s
lo
pe

89
2-
D
7

ü

80
43

80
8-
10

1-
14

17
M
ar
tin
 &
 

T
am

m
i

B
oi
ko

V
ia
 M
ad

ru
ga

da
24

18
2

92
69

2
89

2-
D
7

ü

64
71

78
4-
40

2-
04

64
R
ob

er
t

K
no

ke
 

S
an

to
 D
r

25
67

2
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
, b

ru
sh
, d

eb
ris
, t
re
e 
br
an

ch
es
-

re
ar
 s
lo
pe

92
2-
B
3

ü

64
71

78
4-
40

2-
05

63
D
an

 &
 N
an

cy
D
is
he

r
S
an

to
 D
r.

25
69

2
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
, b

ru
sh
, d

eb
ris
, t
re
e 
br
an

ch
es
-

re
ar
 s
lo
pe

92
2-
B
3

ü

64
71

78
4-
40

2-
06

62
K
ev
in
 &
 K
at
hy

La
ud

e
S
an

to
 D
r.

25
70

2
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
, b

ru
sh
, d

eb
ris
, t
re
e 
br
an

ch
es
-

re
ar
 s
lo
pe

92
2-
B
3

ü

76
00

76
1-
17

2-
03

34
D
av
id
 &
 J
ul
ie

C
ra
nd

al
l

C
al
le
 D
el
 C
id
 

27
19

1
92

69
1

D
ea

d 
tr
ee

s 
bo

tto
m
 o
f s
lo
pe

 /w
ee

ds
 

on
 s
lo
pe

97
2-
D
4

ü
1

Item#22.              



20
16
 W

E
E
D
 A
B
A
T
E
M
E
N
T
 L
IS
T

E
X
H
IB
IT
 B

P
ub

lic
 S
er
vi
ce
s 
D
ep

ar
tm
en

t
R
E
V
IS
E
D
 0
8
/1
0
/1
6

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
IE
S
 H
IG
H
T
L
IG
H
T
E
D
 I
N
 Y
E
L
L
O
W
 H
A
V
E
 C
O
M
E
 I
N
T
O
 C
O
M
P
L
IA
N
C
E

T
R
A
C
T
P
A
R
C
E
L

L
O
T

F
IR
S
T

L
A
S
T

S
T
R
E
E
T

A
D
D
R
E
S
S
Z
IP
 C
O
D
E

P
R
O
B
L
E
M

T
/B

L
e
tt
e
r

N
A
M
E

N
A
M
E

N
A
M
E

D
E
S
C
R
IP
T
IO
N

M
A
P

S
e
n
t

63
40

78
4-
36

1-
32

89
S
co
tt

T
ay
lo
r*

F
er
ro
ca
rr
il

24
45

2
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
 in
 fr
on

t o
f p

ro
pe

rt
y

92
2-
A
1

ü

65
50

78
4-
47

3-
13

34
C
hr
is
tin
a

B
ra
nc
h

C
on

da
do

 L
n

27
01

2
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
 in
 fr
on

t a
nd

 b
ac
k 
ya
rd

C
1-
92

2
ü

65
50

78
4-
47

1-
43

61
B
ria
n 
&
 

T
on

ya
P
aw

li
V
en

ab
lo

24
66

1
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
 in
 b
ac
ky
ar
d 
an

d 
sl
op

e
C
1

ü

60
47

78
4-
14

-1
22

22
A
lli
so
n

B
ec
k*

E
sm

er
al
da

26
33

1
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
 in
 fr
on

t a
nd

 b
ac
k 
ya
rd
s

B
3-
92

2
ü

95
61

83
71

32
06

59
C
ha

rle
s 
&
 

C
ar
le
en

C
hi
ng

C
on

se
jo
s

21
58

2
92

69
1

D
2-
89

2
ü

76
1-
06

1-
07

D
ar
re
n

M
ou

re
r

B
od

eg
a 
Ln

26
43

1
92

69
2

D
ea

d 
tr
ee

s 
an

d 
br
an

ch
es
 o
n 
sl
op

e
C
7-
92

2

71
26

80
9-
37

21
6

60
R
ut
h

B
oe

rs
m
a

V
ia
 M
an

ol
et
e

26
65

1
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
C
7-
89

2
ü

71
26

80
9-
37

21
5

59
C
ha

rle
s 
&
 

S
te
ph

en
G
ar
nr
ei
te
r

V
ia
 M
an

ol
et
e

26
66

1
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
/d
eb

ris
C
7-
89

2
ü

71
10

81
1-
06

-2
06

56
C
ar
l

T
sa
i

V
ia
 C
on

ch
ita

26
41

5
92

69
1

R
ea

r 
S
lo
pe

B
4-
89

2
ü

71
10

81
1-
06

-2
08

58
M
ax
in
e

W
un

sc
h

V
ia
 C
on

ch
ita

26
44

1
92

69
1

R
ea

r 
S
lo
pe

B
4-
89

2
ü

68
59

76
1-
18

1-
28

13
P
ay
so
n

Le
de

rm
an

G
al
ve
z

27
25

1
92

69
1

F
ro
nt
 y
ar
d 
w
ee

ds
C
6-
92

2
ü

66
83

78
4-
47

1-
28

24
Jo
hn

D
al
e*

A
ld
ea

no
26

92
1

92
69

1
F
ro
nt
 a
nd

 r
ea

r 
ya
rd
 w
ee

ds
92

2-
C
1

�

70
70

76
1-
15

1-
01

1
P
au

l
D
ee

m
S
an

 G
on

za
lo

26
50

1
92

69
1

92
2-
B
6

�

n/
a

74
0-
01

3-
-2
1

n/
a

C
irc
le
ci
rc
le

LL
C

M
ar
gu

er
ite

28
75

2
92

69
2

R
ea

r 
sl
op

e 
be

hi
nd

 s
ho

pp
in
g 
ce
nt
er
-

fir
e-
da

m
ag

ed
 v
eg

et
at
io
n,
 d
ea

d 
tr
ee

s,
 

br
an

ch
es
, w

ee
ds
.

ü

95
66

83
7-
17

2-
01

54
Ji
m

C
ol
e

C
al
ab

az
a

21
80

1
92

69
1

W
ee

ds
 in
 fr
on

t y
ar
d 
an

d 
si
de

 s
lo
pe

 
(f
ac
in
g 
C
ru
ce
ro
 P
ar
k)

D
2-
89

2
ü

2

Item#22.              



Item#22.              



Item#22.              



 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

8/23/2016 

Prepared By: Elaine Lister, Director of Community Development 
Budgetary Review By: Cheryl Dyas, Director of Administrative Services / City Treasurer 
Submitted By: Dennis Wilberg, City Manager 

 
Agenda Title 

Consideration of Adoption of City Council Resolution Approving the Issuance of Multi-Family Revenue 
Housing Bonds by the California Municipal Finance Authority (CMFA) for the Benefit of the Developer and 
Borrower, Heritage Villas Housing Partners, LP, in Connection with Financing the Acquisition, Substantial 
Rehabilitation and Improvement Of The Existing 143-Unit Heritage Villas Senior Affordable Housing Project  
 
 
Recommended Action 

Adopt Resolution 16-XX Authorizing and Directing Execution of a Joint Exercise of Powers 
Agreement with the California Municipal Finance Authority and Approving the Issuance of Multi-
Family Housing Revenue Bonds by the CMFA to Finance the Acquisition and Rehabilitation of that 
Certain Existing 143-Unit Senior Multi-Family Rental Housing Project for the Benefit of the 
Developer And Borrower, Heritage Villas Housing Partners, LP, and Making Certain Other Findings 
Related Thereto 
  
Executive Summary 

See attachment  
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $      
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:       (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #       Category:  Pers.       Optg.       Cap.         -or-   CIP#       Fund#      

 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 

�one  
   
Attachments 

City Council Resolution 
Supplemental background information provided by Jamboree. 
 
 

 
 

Item#23.              



Item#23.              



Item#23.              



Item#23.              



Item#23.              



Item#23.              



Item#23.              



 

RESOLUTION NO. _______________ 

RESOLUTION APPROVING, AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING 
EXECUTION OF A JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGREEMENT WITH 
THE CALIFORNIA MUNICIPAL FINANCE AUTHORITY AND APPROVING 
THE ISSUANCE OF MULTI-FAMILY HOUSING REVENUE BONDS BY THE 
CMFA TO FINANCE THE ACQUISITION AND REHABILITATION OF THAT 
CERTAIN EXISTING 143-UNIT SENIOR MULTI-FAMILY RENTAL 
HOUSING PROJECT FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE DEVELOPER AND 
BORROWER, HERITAGE VILLAS HOUSING PARTNERS, LP, AND 
MAKING CERTAIN OTHER FINDINGS RELATED THERETO 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 5 of Division 7 of Title 1, Section 6500, et seq. of 
the Government Code of the State of California (“JPA Act”), certain public agencies 
(“Members” and each a “Member”) have entered into a Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement 
Relating to the California Municipal Finance Authority, dated as of January 1, 2004 
(“JPA Agreement”) in order to form the California Municipal Finance Authority (“CMFA”), for 
the purpose of promoting economic, cultural and community development, and in order to 
exercise any powers common to the Members, including the issuance of bonds, notes or 
other evidences of indebtedness; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Mission Viejo is a California municipal corporation and 
general law city (“City”); and 

WHEREAS, the City desires and by this Resolution determines it is in the public 
interest and for the public benefit that the City become a Member of the CMFA in order to 
facilitate the promotion of economic, cultural and community development activities in the 
City, including the financing of projects therefor by the CMFA; and 

WHEREAS, there is now before this City Council of the City of Mission Viejo 
(“City Council”) the form of the JPA Agreement (Attachment 1); and 

WHEREAS, the JPA Agreement has been filed with the City, and the members of 
the City Council, with the assistance of its staff, have reviewed said document; and 

WHEREAS, the CMFA is authorized to issue and sell revenue bonds for the 
purpose, among others, of financing or refinancing the construction of capital projects, 
including without limitation the issuance of multi-family housing revenue bonds; and 

WHEREAS, Heritage Villas Housing Partners, LP, a California limited partnership 
(“Developer” and “Borrower” herein) has requested that the CMFA issue and sell certain 
multi-family housing revenue bonds (“Housing Bonds”) in the maximum principal amount of 
Twenty Million Dollars ($20,000,000) for the purpose of making a loan to the Borrower, to 
enable the Borrower to finance or refinance the costs of the acquisition, substantial 
rehabilitation and improvement of an existing 143-unit senior affordable senior housing 
development located at 26836 Oso Parkway in the City (“Project”); and 

WHEREAS, the federal Tax Equity and Fiscal Responsibility Act (“TEFRA”), 
Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“IRS Code”), requires 

Item#23.              



 

that a TEFRA hearing be duly noticed and held in connection with approval of the subject 
Housing Bonds and in order for the interest on such bonds be tax-exempt; and 

WHEREAS, a TEFRA hearing is to be conducted by the “applicable elected 
representative” of the governmental unit in the geographic jurisdiction where the Project is 
located that is to be financed with the proceeds of the Housing Bonds, and CMFA has 
determined that this City Council is the “applicable elected representative” for purposes of 
holding the TEFRA hearing; and 

WHEREAS, the CMFA has requested that the City Council approve the issuance of 
the Housing Bonds by the CMFA in order to satisfy the public approval requirement of 
Section 147(f) of the Code and, the requirements of Section 4 of the JPA Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, legal notice of such TEFRA public hearing has been duly given as 
required by the IRS Code, and this City Council has held the TEFRA hearing at which all 
interested persons were given an opportunity to be heard on all matters relative to the 
financing or refinancing of the Project, including testimony or information in favor, against or 
neutral, and the CMFA’s issuance of the Housing Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, it is in the public interest and for the public benefit that the City Council 
approve the issuance of the Housing Bonds by the CMFA for such public purposes. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MISSION VIEJO, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are a substantive part 
of this Resolution. 

Section 2. The JPA Agreement, Attachment 1 to this Resolution, is approved and 
the Mayor or his authorized designee is authorized and directed to execute said contract, 
and the City Clerk or her authorized designee is hereby authorized and directed to attest 
thereto. 

Section 3. The City Council approves the issuance of the Housing Bonds by the 
CMFA.  It is the purpose and intent of the City Council that this Resolution constitute 
approval of the issuance of the Housing Bonds (a) by the “applicable elected 
representative” of the governmental unit having jurisdiction over the area in which the 
Project is located in accordance with Section 147(f) of the IRS Code and (b) by the City 
Council in accordance with Section 4 of the JPA Agreement. 

Section 4. The issuance of the Housing Bonds shall be subject to the approval of 
the CMFA of all financing documents relating thereto to which the CMFA is a party.  The 
City of Mission Viejo shall have no responsibility or liability, financially, legally, ethically or 
otherwise, whatsoever with respect to the Housing Bonds.  The City does not warrant the 
creditworthiness of the Housing Bonds or guarantee, in any way, the payment of the 
Housing Bonds.  No moneys of the City will be pledged or applied to the repayment of the 
Housing Bonds. 

Item#23.              



 

Section 5. The adoption of this Resolution shall not obligate the City, or any 
department of the City, or any other governmental entity formed or governed by the City, 
including without limitation the Mission Viejo Housing Authority, to:  (i) provide any financing 
to acquire, rehabilitate or complete the Project or any refinancing of the Project; (ii) approve 
any application or request for or take any other action in connection with any land use or 
planning approval, permit or other action necessary for the acquisition, rehabilitation or 
operation of the Project; (iii) make any contribution or advance any funds or in kind 
consideration whatsoever to the CMFA; or (iv) take any further action with respect to the 
CMFA or its membership therein. 

Section 6. The Mayor, the City Clerk and all other proper officers and officials of 
the City are hereby authorized and directed to execute such other agreements, documents 
and certificates, and to perform such other acts and deeds, as may be necessary or 
convenient to effect the purposes of this Resolution and the issuance of the transactions 
herein authorized. 

Section 7. The City Clerk shall forward a certified copy of this Resolution and an 
originally executed JPA Agreement to the CMFA in care of its counsel: 

Ronald E. Lee, Esq. 
Jones Hall, APLC 
475 Sansome Street, Suite 1700 
San Francisco, CA 94111 

Section 8. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption; and 
the City Clerk shall certify to its adoption. 

PASSED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Mission Viejo at a regular 
meeting of the City Council held on the 23rd day of August 2016 by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

_______________________________________ 
Frank Ury, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

___________________________________ 
Karen Hamman, City Clerk 
 

Item#23.              



 

 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  ) 
COUNTY OF ORANGE  )  ss. 
CITY OF MISSION VIEJO  ) 

I, Karen Hamman, City Clerk of the City of Mission Viejo, hereby certifies that the 
foregoing resolution was duly adopted by the City Council at a regular meeting held on the 
23rd day of August 2016, and that it was so adopted by the following vote: 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

  
Karen Hamman, City Clerk 

(SEAL) 

Item#23.              



 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 

CMFA JPA AGREEMENT 

(attached) 

Item#23.              



Item#23.              



Item#23.              



Item#23.              



Item#23.              



Item#23.              



Item#23.              



Item#23.              



Item#23.              



 
 
 

 

AGE�DA REPORT 

 
Meeting Date 
 

August 23, 2016 

Prepared By:  Jennifer Wilson, Senior Executive Assistant  
 
Submitted By:  Dennis Wilberg, City Manager   
 
Agenda Title 
 
Council Member Reports of Events and Activities Attended 
 
  
Recommended Action 
 
Receive reports. 
  
Executive Summary 
 
AB 1234, the State law regarding expense reimbursements, requires regular reporting in a public 
meeting of activities and events attended by members of City legislative bodies. The law requires such 
reports be made at the next regular meeting following attendance at the event. (Government Code 
Section 53232.3(d).) 
 
Following are brief written reports of events attended by Council members at City expense since the last 
City Council meeting, as taken from Councilmember calendars.  Council members may wish to elaborate 
or add additional information at the meeting. 
 
  
Fiscal Impact:  

Amount Requested  $ n/a 
Sufficient Budgeted Funds Available?:     (If no, see attached fiscal analysis) 

 Prog/Fund #      Category:  Pers.     Optg.     Cap.       -or-   CIP#      Fund# 
 
Previous Relevant Council Actions for This Item 
 
n/a 
   
Attachments 
  
Reports of Events and Activities Attended 
 

 

 

Item#29.              



Item#29.              



Item#29.              



Item#29.              



Item#29.              



Item#29.              



CC-001C

City of Mission Viejo
Agenda Report to City Council

Council Meeting Date: August 23, 2016

City Council Member: Cathy Schlicht

Agenda Title: A report to the Citizens of Mission Viejo on the Kosmont Report:
The Retail and Market Strategy with potential for infilling
commercial properties with mixed-use development including
residential.

Recommended Action: Receive and File

Discussion:
At the January 16, 2015 Budget Workshop, the city council ranked Economic Development as
the top priority. (Exhibit 1)

On July 6, 2015, the city council learned that on March 25, 2015, at the direction of the
Economic Development Committee, the city entered into an agreement with Kosmont &
Associates for economic development advisory services in the amount of $30,000. (Exhibit 2)

Consequently, this Kosmont Retail Market and Strategy Report dated June 2015 identified 13
Opportunity Sites. Many of these Opportunity Sites include a recommendation for Mixed-Use
Development including Residenial. (Exhibit 3)

These 13 Opportunity Sites are:

Opportunity Site # 1 Mission Viejo Village Plaza
Opportunity Site # 2 Mission Viejo Garden Plaza
Opportunity Site # 3 Community Center Hospitality
Opportunity Site # 4 Trabuco Rd & Marguerite
Opportunity Site # 5 Former Unisys Site - Jeronimo Rd
Opportunity Site # 6 Gateway Shopping Center
Opportunity Site # 7 Target Center - Alicia Parkway
Opportunity Site # 8 Mission Viejo Freeway Center
Opportunity Site # 9 Puerta Real & Crown Valley Pkwy
Opportunity Site # 10 Shops at Mission Viejo
Opportunity Site # 11 Renew Apartments - Marguerite Pkwy
Opportunity Site # 12 Burlington Coat Factory
Opportunity Site # 13 Estanciero Dr & Marguerite Pkwy
(Exhibit 4)

Item#30.              



CC-001C

Several of the 13 Opportunity Sites are within the Mission Viejo Civic Core Area.

These Civic Core Opportunity Sites include opportunities for mixed-use development with
residential and a hotel. (Exhibit 5)

Also on July 6, 2015, the council voted to approve a new July 1, 2015 Agreement with Kosmont
Companies from July 7, 2015 to June 30, 2016 in an amount not to exceed $40,000 for economic
development implementation for up to three city directed Opportunity Sites. (Exhibit 6)

On August 25, 2015, the city council confirmed the Economic Development Committee's
prioritization of 13 Opportunity Sites identified in Kosmont's June 2015 Retail Market Analysis
and Strategy as follows:

PRIORITY #1 - Opportunity Sites 1, 2, 3, 5, 13 as well as the Eaves by Avalon apartment
complex on Marguerite Parkway at Via Florecer; and south to Oso parkway, also
including La Paz Road to the freeway; and

PRIORITY #2 - all remaining sites identified in Kosmont Opportunity Site Overview.
Revitalization of these sites will be developer driven;

Prepare RFP for Specific Plan for Civic Core; and

Concur with Economic Development Committee on input and direction regarding policy
question including openness to allowing mixed use development including housing in the
priority sites, zoning incentives, increased density, financial incentives and streamlined
EIR review. (Exhibit 7)

Opportunity Sites identified for potential for Mixed Use Development including Residential are:

Opportunity Site # 1 - Mission Viejo Village Plaza - Corner of Marguerite and La Paz
across from Civic Center

Opportunity Site # 2 - Mission Viejo Garden Plaza - Corner of Marguerite and La Paz
across from Arco

Opportunity Site # 5 - Old Unisys Site on Jeronimo Road - currently RV Storage Depot

Opportunity Site # 7 - Target Center on Alicia Parkway at the I-5 Freeway

On April 12, 2016, with a 3-2 vote, Councilmembers Raths and Schlicht voting No, the council
approved Resolution 16-12 In Support of Housing Future Initiative developed by The Building
Industry -Orange County Chapter (BIA-OC), The Orange County Business Council (OCBC),
and The Orange County Association of Realtors (OCAR). (Exhibit 8)

BIA-OC immediately issued a Press Release applauding Mission Viejo's support of its initiative
aimed at new ideas on how to generate more housing. (Exhibit 9)

Item#30.              



CC-001C

Mayor Pro Tem Wendy Bucknum is on the BIA-OC Board of Directors. (Exhibit 10)

The July 1, 2015 Kosmont Agreement is the initiation of implementation of the Retail Strategy
for the high priority Opportunity Sites as referenced it its Scope of Services.

Potential future Kosmont services include, but are not limited to project-specific developer
solicitation and selection activities, public-private transaction negotiations, special district
formations such as Enhanced Infrastructure Financing Districts – a new Local Economic
Development Tool. (Exhibit 11)

LIST OF EXHIBITS

1. January 2015 Budget Workshop Priority List
2. July 6, 2018 Agenda Report and Minutes
3. Full Kosmont Report dated June 2015
4. Opportunity Site Assessment with Maps
5. Civic Core Vision Area Map
6. Kosmont Agreement dated July 1, 2015
7. August 25, 2015 Agenda Report and Minutes
8. April 12, 2016 Agenda Report and Minutes
9. BIA-OC April 13, 2016 Press Release

10. BIA-OC List of Board of Directors
11. Kosmont: EIFD’s Are A New Local ‘Economic Development 2.0’ Tool

Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Retail Market Analysis & Strategy 
 

June 2015 
 

Prepared By: 
Kosmont Companies 

Item
#30.              



Kosmont Companies is a nationally-recognized real estate & economics advisory firm 
specializing in public-private transactions for 27 years.  
 
 

Note: If needed, Financial Advisory and Real Estate Brokerage services provided by Kosmont Realty Corporation (SEC / 
MSRB Registered Municipal Advisor and Licensed Real Estate Brokerage Firm) 

2 

• Offers a full range of economics & real estate advisory services under Kosmont Retail NOW!® 
platform including: 

– Market and Feasibility Analyses 

– Fiscal Impact & Economic Benefit Studies 

– Economic Development Strategies & Implementation 

– Identification of Funding Sources & Financing Strategies 

– Retailer/Developer & Business Recruitment 

– Public-Private Transaction Structuring & Negotiation 

• Winning track record of initiating and implementing projects for municipalities 
– In-house team includes registered municipal advisors, financial analysts, lawyers, former bond underwriters, 

former city managers & department heads 

– Extensive network of brokers, investors and market data for real-time information, and retail industry leadership 

• Kosmont is not just a “study” company – we create strategies & make projects a reality 
– Over $12 billion in project negotiation and implementation since 1986 

– Completed hundreds of public and private financial transactions blending private investment with public funding 
sources to create win-win public-private financing structures 

Kosmont Companies Overview 

Item
#30.              



Project Background & Status 

3 

• Kosmont was retained by the City for the preparation of a Retail Market 
Analysis and Strategy (“Retail Strategy”) 

• The purpose of the Retail Strategy is to evaluate existing retail market 
conditions and provide recommended strategies to successfully 
promote economic growth within the City 

• An overview of the Retail Strategy is presented herein 

Item
#30.              



Plan Outline 

4 

1. Analysis 
a) Economic & Demographic Profile 

b) Market Demand Analysis 

2. Strategy 
a) Trade Area Retailer Voids 

b) Opportunity Site Assessment 

3. Summary of Findings 

Item
#30.              



Analysis Outline 

5 

1. Analysis 
a) Economic & Demographic Profile 

i. Population & Household Demographics 
ii. Unemployment & Employment by Industry 

b) Market Demand Analysis 
i. Employment Growth by Industry 
ii. Supply, Vacancy & Lease Rates 
iii. Taxable Retail Sales Performance 
iv. Retail Sales Surplus / Leakage 

Item
#30.              



Economic & 
Demographic Profile 

Population & Household Demographics 

6 

1. Analysis 

Item
#30.              



7 

Demographic Highlights 

Population & Households 
• Population of ~95,700 and ~34,000 households within the City in 2015 
• Population of ~654,800 and ~244,400 households within 10 miles of City Hall 

Income 
• Avg. HH income ~$122,500 in City and ~$129,100 within 10 miles 
• 1.9% annual growth projected for HH income over next 5 years in City 

Other Demographic Characteristics 
• Average household size of 2.8 in City (relatively small) 
• Median age of 44 in City (older) 
• ~46% Bachelor’s Degree or higher (high) 
• Race: ~78% White, ~10% Asian, ~12% other / two or more races 
• Ethnicity: ~19% Hispanic in City 
• Continually ranked safest City in the state, 9th in the nation in 2013* 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 
* Per CQ Crime Rankings 

Item
#30.              



City Limits & Radii 
(from City Hall – Marguerite Parkway & La Paz Road) 

8 Source: ESRI (2015) 

1 Mile 

3 Miles 

5 Miles 

City Limits 

10 Miles 

Item
#30.              



9 

Drive Times 
(from City Hall) 

5 Minutes 

10 Minutes 

15 Minutes 

Source: ESRI (2015) 

Item
#30.              



Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

2015 City of Mission 
Viejo 

Orange 
County California 

Population 95,681 3,124,130 38,371,836 
Households 33,969 1,026,508 12,932,388 
Average HH Size 2.79 3.00 2.90 
Median Age 43.9 36.9 35.7 

Per Capita Income $43,790 $35,179 $29,788 
Median HH Income $98,618 $77,676 $60,382 
Average HH Income $122,454 $106,158 $87,152 

2015-2020 Annual Growth Rate 
Population 0.64% 0.82% 0.73% 
Median HH Income 1.91% 2.36% 3.36% 

10 

Population and Income 
City, County and State 

Item
#30.              



Radii (from City Hall) 
2015 1 Mile 3 Miles 5 Miles 10 Miles 
Population 17,204 134,628 343,884 654,782 
Households 5,687 46,534 125,066 244,396 
Average HH Size 3.00 2.86 2.73 2.66 
Median Age 45.4 42.3 40.7 40.9 

Per Capita Income $55,747 $49,310 $50,603 $48,415 
Median HH Income $126,900 $94,689 $93,245 $97,747 
Average HH Income $144,908 $124,488 $122,503 $129,145 

2015-2020 Annual Growth Rate 
Population 0.49% 0.58% 0.75% 1.15% 
Median HH Income 3.29% 2.32% 2.23% 1.98% 

11 

Population and Income 
Radii from City Hall 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

Item
#30.              



Drive Times (from City Hall) 
2015 5 Minutes 10 Minutes 15 Minutes 
Population 65,586 336,899 611,227 
Households 22,811 123,322 226,424 
Average HH Size 2.83 2.71 2.68 
Median Age 45.1 40.4 40.2 

Per Capita Income $44,362 $43,399 $45,735 
Median HH Income $101,943 $91,036 $94,333 
Average HH Income $126,837 $118,369 $123,329 

2015-2020 Annual Growth Rate 
Population 0.61% 0.77% 1.16% 
Median HH Income 2.00% 2.34% 2.15% 

12 

Population and Income 
Drive Times from City Hall 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

Item
#30.              



Income Profile 

13 

City of Mission Viejo – 2015 Households by Income Bracket  

4% 4% 
5% 

8% 

15% 
14% 

22% 

14% 13% 

<$15K $15K -
$25K

$25K -
$35K

$35K -
$50K

$50K -
$75K

$75K -
$100K

$100K -
$150K

$150K -
$200K

$200K+

HH Income Median Avg. 
City $99K $122K 
County $78K $106K 

State $60K $87K 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

Item
#30.              



Age Profile 

14 

City Population by Age Bracket in 2015 

5% 
5% 

6% 6% 6% 

12% 11% 

16% 
15% 

10% 

5% 

3% 

0-4 5-9 10-14 15-19 20-24 25-34 35-44 45-54 55-64 65-74 75-84 85+

Median Age 
City 43.9 
County 36.9 

State 35.7 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

Item
#30.              



Note: U.S. Census Bureau defines race and ethnicity as two separate and distinct identities. One Census question 
asks respondents which socio-political race (of categories in pie chart above) they associate most closely with, and a 
separate question asks whether they associate with “Hispanic, Latino, or Spanish origin” or not (defined as ethnicity). 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

Race & Ethnicity 

15 

City Population by Race & Ethnicity in 2015 

Hispanic Origin of Any Race: 19% 

Some Other Race Alone: 5% 

2 or More Races: 5% 
Other: 1% 

White Alone 
78% 

*Most respondents of 
Hispanic Origin additionally 
indicate “White” or “Some 
Other Race” 

Black Alone: 2% 

Asian 
Alone 
10% 

Item
#30.              



Educational Attainment 

16 

Population Aged 25+ by Educational Attainment 

5% 

16% 

33% 

29% 

17% 16% 
18% 

29% 

24% 

13% 

18% 
21% 

30% 

20% 

12% 

No high school
diploma

High school graduate
or equivalent

Some college or
Associate's degree

Bachelor's degree Graduate or prof.
degree

City County State
% Bachelor’s 

Degree or Higher 
City 46% 
County 38% 

State 31% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

Item
#30.              



Housing & Household Size 

17 

Housing Breakdown (2015) 

74% 

24% 

3% 

54% 

41% 

5% 

50% 

42% 

8% 

Owner Occupied Renter Occupied Vacant

City County State

Avg. HH Size 
City 2.79 

County 3.00 

State 2.90 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

Item
#30.              



Home Value History 

Source: Zillow.com (March 2015) 18 

County 

City 

California 

Zillow Home Value Index 

$441,000 

$637,000 

$617,000 

Item
#30.              



Population Segmentation Profile 

19 

Source: ESRI (2015) 

Top 5 “Tapestries” in City Percent Sample Characteristics 

1. Savvy Suburbanites 25% 

• Well-educated, well-capitalized, active residents 
• Owner occupied, single family homes, low vacancy 
• Informed shoppers, connected to technology 
• Enjoy good food and wine and cultural amenities 

2. Professional Pride 15% 

• Well-educated, white-collar commuter families 
• Financially active, frequent travelers, shop on credit 
• Shop online and at Home Depot, Bed Bath & Beyond 
• Tech-savvy, active, spend on health and wellness 

3. Enterprising Professionals 14% 

• Employed in science, tech, engineering, mathematics 
• Live in newer condos, town homes, apartments 
• Active, shop organic/natural, buy name brands online 
• Use personal care services (dry cleaning), frequent 

Cheesecake Factory, Chick-Fil-A, Starbucks 

4. Pleasantville 14% 

• Older, settled households, educated, mostly married 
couples, high incomes (white collar) and net worth 

• Older, single family homes, low vacancy 
• Shop online and in stores, from upscale to discount 

5. The Elders 9% 

• Older, smaller households, many in group quarters or 
nursing home / senior-living facilities 

• Retirees, use coupons, prefer American and 
environmentally safe products, don’t shop online 

Item
#30.              



Economic & 
Demographic Profile 

Unemployment & Employment by Industry 

20 

1. Analysis 

Item
#30.              



Unemployment 

21 

3.0% 2.7% 2.4% 
2.8% 

3.8% 

6.3% 

9.1% 
8.5% 

7.3% 

6.1% 

5.1% 

4.2% 
3.7% 3.4% 

3.9% 

5.3% 

8.7% 

9.7% 
9.0% 

7.8% 

6.5% 

5.5% 
6.2% 

5.4% 
4.9% 

5.4% 

7.3% 

11.2% 

12.2% 
11.7% 

10.4% 

8.9% 

7.5% 

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Note: Not seasonally adjusted; annual averages 
Source: California Employment Development Department (2015) 

City 

Unemployment Rate 
(March 2015) 

State 6.5% 
County 4.4% 
City 4.1% 

State 

County 

Item
#30.              



22 

48% 

29% 

13% 

5% 5% 

39% 

27% 

17% 

10% 
7% 

36% 

24% 
19% 

11% 10% 

Management,
business, science &

arts

Sales & office Service Production,
transportation &
material moving

Natural resources,
construction &
maintenance

City County State

Resident Employment by Occupation 
Civilian Employed Population Age 16+ by Occupation 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau (2010); ESRI (2015) 

Item
#30.              



Employment by Industry 

23 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau Center for Economic Studies (2011) 

City Resident Employed Population (Age 16+) 
Retail trade 10.6% 
Healthcare & social assist. 10.5% 
Prof., scientific & tech. services 10.2% 
Educational services 9.2% 
Accommodation & food services 8.4% 
Manufacturing 8.4% 
Wholesale trade 6.4% 
Admin. & support & waste mgmt. 6.2% 
Finance & insurance 5.5% 
Other services, except public admin. 4.1% 
Construction 3.7% 
Public administration 3.6% 
Information 3.3% 
Real estate rental & leasing 2.4% 
Transportation & warehousing 2.1% 
Arts, entertainment & recreation 1.8% 
Management of companies & enterprises 1.8% 
Agriculture, forestry, fishing & hunting 0.9% 
Utilities 0.8% 
Mining, quarrying, oil & gas extraction 0.1% 

Workers Employed within City 
Healthcare & social assist. 27.8% 
Retail trade 17.6% 
Educational services 14.6% 
Accommodation & food services 8.0% 
Prof., scientific & tech. services 5.8% 
Other services, except public admin. 4.2% 
Admin. & support & waste mgmt. 4.1% 
Construction 3.4% 
Finance & insurance 3.1% 
Wholesale trade 2.7% 
Manufacturing 2.6% 
Arts, entertainment & recreation 1.8% 
Real estate rental & leasing 1.5% 
Public administration 1.0% 
Transportation & warehousing 0.8% 
Management of companies & enterprises 0.6% 
Information 0.4% 
Utilities 0.0% 
Agriculture, forestry, fishing & hunting 0.0% 
Mining, quarrying, oil & gas extraction 0.0% 

“Industries in which City residents work” “Jobs in the City” 

Item
#30.              



Major Employers 

24 Source: City of Mission Viejo (2014) 

Employer Estimated # 
Employees 

% Total City 
Employment 

1) Mission Hospital Regional Medical Center 2,443 6.4% 

2) Saddleback College 1,975 5.2% 

3) Saddleback Valley Unified School District 1,502 3.9% 

4) Capistrano Unified School District 441 1.2% 

5) Nordstrom 400 1.0% 

6) Macy's 250 0.7% 

7) Target 250 0.7% 

8) Vocational Visions 196 0.5% 

9) US Post Office 194 0.5% 

Top 9 Total 7,651 20.1% 
Note: Total City employment based on employees (residents and non-residents) within the City as estimated by ESRI and Dun & Bradstreet (38,211) 

Item
#30.              



Resident Concentration Within City 

25 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau Center for Economic Studies (2011) 

5 – 304 Employed residents/Sq. Mile 
305 – 1,202 Employed residents/Sq. Mile 
1,203 – 2,699 Employed residents/Sq. Mile 
2,700 – 4,794 Employed residents/Sq. Mile 
4,795 – 7,489 Employed residents/Sq. Mile 
1 – 4 Employed residents 
5 – 51 Employed residents 
52 – 257 Employed residents 
258 – 812 Employed residents 
813 – 1,983 Employed residents 

Item
#30.              



Employment Concentration Within City 

26 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau Center for Economic Studies (2011) 

Item
#30.              



Source: U.S. Census Bureau Center for Economic Studies (2011) 

Resident and Employee Commute 

27 

Employed Resident Place of Work 
Irvine 13.3% 
Mission Viejo 9.2% 
Los Angeles 6.1% 
Santa Ana 5.4% 
Lake Forest 4.1% 
San Diego 3.5% 
Newport Beach 3.2% 
Costa Mesa 3.2% 
Laguna Hills 2.8% 
Anaheim 2.5% 
Rancho Santa Margarita 2.5% 
Orange 2.4% 
San Juan Capistrano 1.9% 
Aliso Viejo 1.8% 
Laguna Niguel 1.7% 
Tustin 1.7% 
San Clemente 1.6% 
Huntington Beach 1.0% 
Dana Point 0.9% 
San Francisco 0.9% 
Other 30.2% 

City Employee Origin 
Mission Viejo 13.2% 
Lake Forest 5.5% 
Rancho Santa Margarita 4.4% 
Laguna Niguel 4.3% 
Irvine 3.9% 
San Clemente 3.5% 
Los Angeles 3.1% 
Anaheim 2.9% 
Aliso Viejo 2.9% 
Santa Ana 2.5% 
Laguna Hills 2.5% 
San Juan Capistrano 2.3% 
Dana Point 1.8% 
Orange 1.8% 
San Diego 1.8% 
Huntington Beach 1.6% 
Ladera Ranch 1.5% 
Tustin 1.3% 
Costa Mesa 1.2% 
Newport Beach 1.2% 
Other 36.9% 

“Where City residents work” “Where people who work in the City come from” 

Item
#30.              



Worker Inflow / Outflow 

28 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau Center for Economic Studies (2011) 

Workers living & employed 
in the City 

Workers employed in the 
City but living outside 

Workers living in the City 
but employed outside 

“Are jobs coming or going?” 

Working Coming (Inflow): 29,043 
Workers Going (Outflow): 43,534 
Net: (14,491) 

Item
#30.              



Traffic Counts 

29 Source: Market Planning Solutions (2012); ESRI (2015) 

Item
#30.              



30 

• Well-educated, affluent, relatively older population 

• Smaller than average household size, majority owner-occupied homes, 
low vacancy, home values higher than County and State averages 

• Low unemployment rate relative to County and State averages 

• Most employees in City work in healthcare, retail, educational services, 
accommodation/food services, and professional/scientific/technical 
services 

• City is a net exporter of jobs, with residents employed in Irvine, Los 
Angeles, Santa Ana, within Mission Viejo, and other cities 

• Continually ranked safest City in the state, among top in the nation 

Summary: Demographics and Employment 

Item
#30.              



31 

Market Demand Analysis 
Employment Growth by Industry 

1. Analysis 

Item
#30.              



Employment Projections by Industry 
Orange County 

32 
Source: California Employment Development Department, U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics (2015) 

Industry 2012 2022 
Annual 
Growth 
2012-22 

Total 
Growth 
2012-22 

Total 
Change 
2012-22 

Professional and Business Services 259,900 335,000 2.9% 28.9% 75,100 
Health Care and Social Assistance 149,100 185,900 2.5% 24.7% 36,800 
Accommodation and Food Services 141,300 174,700 2.4% 23.6% 33,400 
Retail Trade 143,900 168,400 1.7% 17.0% 24,500 
Construction 71,400 95,700 3.4% 34.0% 24,300 
Financial Activities 108,200 132,400 2.2% 22.4% 24,200 
Wholesale Trade 76,900 96,000 2.5% 24.8% 19,100 
Educational Services (Private) 24,700 30,400 2.3% 23.1% 5,700 
Government  147,900 153,500 0.4% 3.8% 5,600 
Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation 39,300 44,600 1.3% 13.5% 5,300 
Information 24,300 27,300 1.2% 12.3% 3,000 
Transportation and Warehousing 24,000 25,100 0.5% 4.6% 1,100 
Utilities 4,000 5,000 2.5% 25.0% 1,000 
Other Services 44,600 44,600 0.0% 0.0% 0 
Mining and Logging 500 400 (2.0%) (20.0%) (100) 
Manufacturing 158,200 150,900 (0.5%) (4.6%) (7,300) 
Total Nonfarm 1,418,100 1,669,900 1.8% 17.8% 251,800 
Total Farm 2,800 3,300 1.8% 17.9% 500 
Self Employed / Unpaid / Other 103,000 116,100 1.3% 12.7% 13,100 
Total Employment 1,523,900 1,789,300 1.7% 17.4% 265,400 

Item
#30.              



33 

Market Demand Analysis 
Supply, Vacancy & Lease Rates 

1. Analysis 

Item
#30.              



Supply, Vacancy & Lease Rates 

• Mission Viejo falls within the “South County” submarket of the Orange 
County market area for retail (as defined by CoStar), including: 

 
• Supply, vacancy, and lease rates for retail uses are compared between 

South County and other Orange County submarkets 

• Retail vacancy within the City is estimated below the South County 
submarket and total Orange County market averages 

• Retail lease rates within the City are estimated above the South County 
submarket and Orange County market averages 

34 
Source: Avison Young; CoStar Property (Q1 2015) 

– Aliso Viejo 
– Dana Point 
– Foothill Ranch 
– Laguna Beach 

– Laguna Hills 
– Laguna Niguel 
– Lake Forest 
– Mission Viejo 

– Rancho Santa Margarita 
– San Clemente 
– San Juan Capistrano 

Item
#30.              



Orange County Submarkets 

35 
Source: Avison Young; CoStar Property (Q1 2015) 

Item
#30.              



1.9% 

3.5% 3.6% 
4.1% 4.4% 4.4% 

8.7% 

0.0%

1.0%

2.0%

3.0%

4.0%

5.0%

6.0%

7.0%

8.0%

9.0%

10.0%

Laguna Beach /
Laguna Niguel

Mission Viejo Total South
County

Dana Point / San
Clemente / SJC

Foothill Ranch /
Lake Forest /

RSM

Total Orange
County

Aliso Viejo /
Laguna Hills

Retail Vacancy (Q1 2015) 

3.4M 4.3M 24.0M 4.1M 5.0M 113.5M 4.2M Total G.L.A. 

G.L.A. = Gross Leasable Area (in square feet) 

36 
Source: Avison Young; CoStar Property (Q1 2015) 

Retail Vacancy 
South Orange County 

Item
#30.              



$1.55  

$1.81  

$2.12  
$2.23  

$2.33  

$2.62  
$2.74  

$0.80

$1.30

$1.80

$2.30

$2.80

$3.30

Foothill Ranch /
Lake Forest /

RSM

Total Orange
County

Total South
County

Aliso Viejo /
Laguna Hills

Mission Viejo Dana Point / San
Clemente / SJC

Laguna Beach /
Laguna Niguel

Average Asking Retail Lease Rates – $PSF / Month NNN 
(Q1 2015) 

5.0M 113.5M 24.0M 4.2M 4.3M 4.1M 3.4M Total G.L.A. 

37 

G.L.A. = Gross Leasable Area (in square feet) 
Source: Avison Young; CoStar Property (Q1 2015) 

Retail Asking Lease Rates 
South Orange County 

Item
#30.              



Retail Format Breakdown 
South Orange County 

38 
Source: Avison Young; CoStar Property (Q1 2015) 

Retail Format Total GLA Vacancy 
Asking  
Lease  
Rates 

Storefront  / Freestanding (mixed-use, storefront, freestanding) 4.1M 3.9% $1.77 
Strip Centers (convenience-oriented <30K SF) 0.9M 8.8% $2.53 
Community / Neighborhood (convenience-oriented >30K SF) 12.0M 4.0% $2.16 
Power Centers (category dominant anchors, big box) 3.7M 2.3% $3.91 
Mall Centers (regional and super-regional malls) 2.6M 1.2% N/A* 
Specialty Centers (lifestyle, outlet, theme, festival, leisure, airport) 0.6M 3.3% $2.84 
Total Retail 24.0M 3.6% $2.14 

* Mall Center asking lease rates not available 

Item
#30.              



Historical Rent, Vacancy & Absorption 
Total Orange County 

39 
Source: Avison Young; CoStar Property (Q1 2015) 

Item
#30.              



40 

Market Demand Analysis 
Taxable Retail Sales Performance 

1. Analysis 

Item
#30.              



41 

Taxable Retail Sales Performance 
• Taxable consumer spending across retail categories is totaled and 

normalized for population within the City and comparison regions for the 
purpose of evaluating relative taxable retail sales performance 

• Retail sales per capita for the City (~$14,900) is above average when 
compared to the Orange County average (~$13,900) 

* ”Other retail” includes  sporting goods, office supply, drug stores, and other retail 

Item
#30.              



Mission Viejo & Comparison Cities 

42 Source: ESRI (2015) 

San Diego 
County 

Riverside 
County 

Mission 
Viejo 

Newport 
Beach 

Irvine 

10 Miles San Juan 
Capistrano 

Laguna 
Niguel 

Laguna 
Beach 

Rancho Santa 
Margarita 

Lake 
Forest 

Laguna 
Hills 

Aliso Viejo 

Laguna Woods 

Dana Point 

San Clemente 

Item
#30.              



Retail Sales Comparison 
Mission Viejo & Comparison Cities 

$91 
$337 $343 $487 

$673 $677 $718 
$887 $939 

$1,211 
$1,425 $1,493 

$3,856 

$0

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$3,500

$4,000

$4,500 Total Retail Sales 
(in $ millions) 

17 50 23 49 31 36 34 65 65 81 96 88 233 

43 Source: ESRI, Dun & Bradstreet (2015) 

2015 Population (000s): 

Item
#30.              



$5.2 
$6.7 

$10.0 

$13.7 $13.9 $14.5 $14.6 $14.9 $15.0 
$16.6 $17.0 

$18.8 

$21.1 $22.0 

$0.0

$5.0

$10.0

$15.0

$20.0

$25.0 Per Capita Retail Sales 
(in $ thousands) 

2015 Population (000s): 

Per Capita Retail Sales 
Mission Viejo & Comparison Regions 

17 50 49 65 3,124 65 23 96 81 233 88 36 34 31 

44 Source: ESRI, Dun & Bradstreet (2015) 

Item
#30.              



45 

Market Demand Analysis 
Retail Sales Surplus / Leakage 

1. Analysis 

Item
#30.              



46 

Retail Sales Surplus / Leakage 

• Overall retail sales in the City are lower than retail spending potential 
based on households and average household income, suggesting that, 
overall, the City is likely leaking a significant portion of Mission Viejo 
resident retail purchases to other jurisdictions (i.e. sales leakage) 

• Certain categories, however, are exhibiting a retail sales surplus, 
including: 
‒ Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores 
‒ Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores 
‒ Electronics & Appliance Stores 

Note: Includes estimated taxable and non-taxable retail sales 

Item
#30.              



$6.7 

$10.0 

$14.5 $14.6 $14.9 $15.0 
$16.6 

$18.8 
$21.1 

$22.0 

$13.9 

$18.0 $17.8 

$20.5 

$26.7 

$17.2 
$15.7 

$17.7 

$14.4 

$19.1 

$17.1 

$13.3 

Aliso Viejo R.S.M. Laguna
Niguel

Laguna
Beach

Mission
Viejo

Lake
Forest

Irvine San Juan
Cap.

Dana Point Laguna
Hills

Orange
County

Retail Sales Per Capita ($000s) - "Cash Registers"

Retail Spending Potential Per Capita ($000s) - "Wallets"

Retail Sales Surplus / Leakage 
“Cash Registers vs. Wallets” 

Note: Spending potential based on number of households, average household income, and estimated percentage of income 
spent on retail goods and services 
Source: ESRI, Dun & Bradstreet (2015) 

Surplus/Leakage – Per Capita ($Thousands), Total ($Millions), and Percentage: 

Leakage 

47 

($11.3) ($7.8) ($6.0) ($12.1) ($2.3) ($0.8) ($1.1) $4.4  $2.0  $4.9  $0.6  
($566) ($379) ($387) ($284) ($217) ($61) ($265) $158  $68  $150  $1,929  
(63%) (44%) (29%) (45%) (13%) (5%) (6%) 31% 10% 29% 5% 

Item
#30.              



48 

Retail Category Definitions 
• Shopper Goods / GAFO (General Merchandise, Apparel & Accessories, Furniture & Other Sales) 

– Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores 
– General Merchandise Stores 
– Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores 
– Health & Personal Care Stores 
– Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music Stores 
– Electronics & Appliance Stores 
– Miscellaneous Store Retailers (incl. Office Supply) 

• Convenience Goods 
– Food and Beverage (Grocery Stores) 
– Food Service and Drinking Places (Restaurants & Bars) 

• Heavy Commercial Goods 
– Building Materials (Home Improvement) 
– Auto Dealers & Supplies 
– Gasoline / Service Stations 

• Non-Store Retailers (e.g., Online Shopping & Mail-Order) 

Note: Retail Categories delineated by NAICS / California Board of Equalization 

Item
#30.              



  

49 

  Key:   Indicates higher value for Mission Viejo Indicates lower value for Mission Viejo 

Per Capita Retail Sales by Category 
City & Comparison Regions 

Per Capita Retail Sales Mission 
Viejo 

Rancho 
San. Marg. 

Laguna 
Niguel 

Lake 
Forest Irvine San Juan 

Capistrano 
Laguna 

Hills 
Orange 
County 

Shopper Goods (GAFO): 
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores $1,258 $338 $439 $757 $1,167 $605 $1,387 $964 
General Merchandise Stores $1,438 $845 $3,506 $974 $1,650 $2,073 $2,656 $1,751 
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores $408 $371 $547 $247 $541 $153 $1,245 $320 
Health & Personal Care Stores $1,062 $1,960 $1,826 $1,510 $519 $635 $1,053 $987 
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book, Music Stores $298 $83 $178 $494 $234 $86 $1,253 $280 
Electronics & Appliance Stores $758 $92 $309 $367 $797 $244 $1,977 $405 
Miscellaneous Store Retailers $361 $375 $173 $562 $525 $446 $383 $376 
Total GAFO $5,584 $4,064 $6,978 $4,911 $5,432 $4,242 $9,953 $5,084 

Convenience Goods: 
Food & Beverage Stores (Grocery) $1,388 $2,732 $1,929 $1,680 $1,727 $1,895 $2,752 $1,712 
Food Services & Drinking Places (Restaurants) $1,435 $1,085 $1,236 $1,498 $2,063 $1,514 $2,110 $1,594 
Total Convenience $2,823 $3,816 $3,166 $3,178 $3,790 $3,409 $4,861 $3,306 

Heavy Commercial: 
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. Supply Stores $283 $332 $341 $395 $186 $540 $276 $299 
Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers $2,410 $1,677 $3,402 $2,596 $2,954 $7,116 $1,534 $2,782 
Gasoline Stations $954 $75 $114 $2,328 $1,531 $798 $639 $829 
Total Heavy Commercial $3,648 $2,084 $3,857 $5,319 $4,671 $8,455 $2,449 $3,910 

Non-store Retailers $2,836 $26 $515 $1,574 $2,685 $2,685 $4,748 $1,610 

Total Retail $14,891 $9,991 $14,516 $14,982 $16,577 $18,791 $22,011 $13,909 

Source: ESRI, Dun & Bradstreet (2015) 

Item
#30.              



Retail Sales Surplus / Leakage by Category 
City of Mission Viejo 

50 

Retail Category 
Retail  

Spending 
Potential 

Retail  
Sales 

Retail  
Surplus/ 

(Leakage) 

Percent 
Surplus/ 

(Leakage) 
Shopper Goods (GAFO): 
Clothing & Clothing Accessories Stores $105,317,238 $120,386,202 $15,068,964  14.3% 
General Merchandise Stores $214,308,545 $137,597,149 ($76,711,396) (35.8%) 
Furniture & Home Furnishings Stores $37,255,094 $39,035,656 $1,780,562  4.8% 
Health & Personal Care Stores $116,589,987 $101,584,474 ($15,005,513) (12.9%) 
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music Stores $34,286,521 $28,550,346 ($5,736,175) (16.7%) 
Electronics & Appliance Stores $36,781,324 $72,554,170 $35,772,846  97.3% 
Miscellaneous Store Retailers $45,194,242 $34,536,537 ($10,657,705) (23.6%) 
Subtotal – GAFO $589,732,951  $534,244,534  ($55,488,417) (9.4%) 

    
Convenience Goods: 
Food & Beverage Stores (Grocery) $258,567,166 $132,818,031 ($125,749,135) (48.6%) 
Food Services & Drinking Places (Restaurants) $169,823,921 $137,283,172 ($32,540,749) (19.2%) 
Subtotal – Convenience $428,391,087  $270,101,203  ($158,289,884) (36.9%) 

    
Heavy Commercial Goods: 
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores $50,707,926 $27,122,121 ($23,585,805) (46.5%) 
Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers $293,315,188 $230,600,985 ($62,714,203) (21.4%) 
Gasoline Stations $122,975,287 $91,291,679 ($31,683,608) (25.8%) 
Subtotal – Heavy Commercial $466,998,401  $349,014,785  ($117,983,616) (25.3%) 

Non-store Retailers $156,396,026 $271,391,695 $114,995,669  73.5% 

Total Retail $1,641,518,465 $1,424,752,217 ($216,766,248) (13.2%) 

Source: ESRI, Dun & Bradstreet (2015) 

Item
#30.              



Retail Sales Leakage Categories and Supportable SF 

51 

Retail Sales Leakage Categories 
Retail  
Sales 

Leakage 

Estimated 
Sales PSF 

Estimated 
Supportable 

SF 

General Merchandise Stores $76,711,396  $300 255,705 SF 
Health & Personal Care Stores $15,005,513  $400 37,514 SF 
Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & Music Stores $5,736,175  $400 14,340 SF 
Miscellaneous Store Retailers $10,657,705  $400 26,644 SF 
Food & Beverage Stores (Grocery) $125,749,135  $400 314,373 SF 
Food Services & Drinking Places (Rest. / Bars) $32,540,749  $400 81,352 SF 
Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & Supply Stores $23,585,805  $400 58,965 SF 
Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers $62,714,203  $1,200 52,262 SF 
Gasoline Stations $31,683,608  $800 39,605 SF 
Total Sales Leakage Categories $384,384,289  880,759 SF 

Source: ESRI, Dun & Bradstreet, Avison Young, CoStar Property, Kosmont Companies (2015) 

• ~881,000 SF of retail supported by existing sales leakage 

• Important to consider ~152,000 SF of vacant retail space within the City (as of 
Q1 2015 as estimated by Avison Young and CoStar) 

Item
#30.              



52 

Surplus/Leakage Summary by Category 

Surplus Retail Categories Leakage Retail Categories 
• Clothing & Clothing Accessories 

Stores 
• Furniture & Home Furnishings 

Stores 
• Electronics & Appliance Stores 
• Nonstore Retailers 

• General Merchandise Stores 
• Health & Personal Care Stores 
• Sporting Goods, Hobby, Book & 

Music Stores 
• Miscellaneous Store Retailers 
• Food & Beverage Stores 
• Food Services & Drinking Places 
• Bldg Materials, Garden Equip. & 

Supply Stores 
• Motor Vehicle & Parts Dealers 
• Gasoline Stations 

Item
#30.              



Strategy Outline 

53 

2. Strategy 
a) Trade Area Retailer Voids 

b) Opportunity Site Assessment 

Item
#30.              



Trade Area 
Retailer Voids 

54 

2. Strategy 

Item
#30.              



55 

• Retailer voids were evaluated for all major retail categories within the 
City and larger trade area 

• Potential voids include fitness, casual and other restaurants, wholesale, 
and other retailers 

Summary: Retailer Voids 

Item
#30.              



Source: Sites USA; Directory of Major Malls (2015) 56 

Major Shopping Center Map 
Mission Viejo Trade Area 

(“GLA”) 

10 Miles 

The Shops at Mission Viejo 
1,148,957 GLA 

The Center at Rancho Niguel 
360,000 GLA 

Santa Margarita Marketplace 
328,000 GLA 

Kaleidoscope Courtyards 
215,000 GLA 

Santa Margarita Town Center 
310,097 GLA 

The District at Tustin Legacy 
1,000,000 GLA 

The Commons at Aliso Viejo T/C 
181,160 GLA 

Item
#30.              



57 

National Retailer Voids 
(within City Limits) 

Note: List to be refined for targeting purposes by City and Consultant Team 

Source: Sites USA (2015) 

Auto Parts Tires Clothing Apparel (Cont'd.) Craft Fabric Stores Dollar Stores 
Big O Tires Lane Bryant Hobby Lobby 99 Cent Only 
CARQUEST Last Call Jo-Ann Dollar General 
Firestone Loehmann's Family Dollar 
Goodyear New York & Company Department Stores Just-A-Buck 
NAPA Nordstrom Rack Barneys New York 
Pep Boys Rainbow Bloomingdale's Drug Stores 

Rue21 Dillard's Rite Aid 
Book Stores Saks OFF 5TH JCPenney 
Barnes & Noble The Limited Neiman Marcus 
Deseret Book Tilly's Saks Fifth Avenue 

Urban Outfitters 
Clothing Apparel Discount Department Stores 
American Eagle Outfitters Computers Electronic David's Bridal 
Ann Taylor Factory Fry's Electronics Kmart 
Ann Taylor Loft Outlet RadioShack Kohl's 
Anthropologie Marshalls 
Avenue Convenience Stores Ross 
Buckle BP Sears 
Catherines Exxon SuperTarget 
Citi Trends Mobil Wal-Mart 
dd's DISCOUNTS Sinclair Wal-Mart Supercenter 
Dress Barn Texaco 
Factory 2-U Valero 
Fallas Paredes 
Hollister Co. 

Item
#30.              



58 

National Retailer Voids 
(within City Limits) 

Fitness Grocery Stores Home Improvement Sporting Goods 
Anytime Fitness Cardenas Ace Hardware Big 5 
Crunch El Super Do It Best Champs Sports 
Curves For Women Food 4 Less Dunn-Edwards Dick's 
Equinox Fitness fresh&easy Kelly-Moore Golfsmith 
Gold's Gym H Mart Lowe's REI 
In-Shape Jons Marketplace Orchard 
Lifetime Fitness Neighborhood Market Sherwin-Williams Wholesale 
Planet Fitness Northgate Market Costco 
Powerhouse Gym Stater Bros. Office Supply Sam's Club 
Spectrum Athletic Clubs Superior Grocers Office Depot 
World Gym Top Valu Market Staples Wireless Stores 

Vallarta Supermarkets Cricket 
Furniture Household Vons Pet Stores Sprint 
Anna's Linens Whole Foods PetsMart Verizon Wireless 
Ashley Furniture WinCo Foods 
Bassett Shoes Footwear 
Crate and Barrel Health Beauty Famous Footwear 
Ethan Allen Cost Cutters Foot Locker 
HomeGoods Great Clips Johnston & Murphy 
IKEA Sally Beauty Supply Nike 
Jennifer Convertibles ULTA Nine West 
LAMPS PLUS Nine West Outlet 
Relax The Back Off Broadway 
Sur La Table 
The Container Store 
Thomasville 

Note: List to be refined for targeting purposes by City and Consultant Team 

Source: Sites USA (2015) 

Item
#30.              



59 

National Retailer Voids – Restaurants 
(within City Limits) 

Note: List to be refined for targeting purposes by City and Consultant Team 

Source: Sites USA (2015) 

Bakery Bagels Casual (Cont'd.) Fast Food Minor Pizza 
Bruegger's Maggiano's A&W Chuck E. Cheese's 
Corner Bakery Marie Callender's Boston Market Hungry Howie's 
Manhattan Bagel McCormick & Schmick's Church's Chicken Papa Murphy's 
Noah's Mimis Cafe In-N-Out Pizza Patron 

Morton's Long John Silver's Rosati's 
Casual Olive Garden Popeyes Sbarro 
Another Broken Egg Outback Steakhouse Rally's Shakeys 
Applebee's Pei Wei Steak n Shake 
BJ's Restaurant & Brewery Qdoba Wienerschnitzel Sandwich 
Bonefish Grill Rainforest Cafe Wing Stop Blimpie 
Brio Red Lobster Capriotti's 
Buca Di Beppo Red Robin Ice Cream Smoothie Firehouse Subs 
Buffalo's Southwest Cafe Ruth's Chris Ben & Jerry's Great Steak 
Cafe Rio Ryan's Carvel Quiznos 
Capital Grille Samurai Sam's Froots Sandella's Flatbread 
Carino's Sizzler Juice It Up! Schlotzsky's Deli 
Chart House T.G.I. Friday's NRgize Which Wich 
Chevys Orange Julius 
Costa Vida Coffee Donuts Pinkberry 
Dickey's Peet's Red Mango 
Elephant Bar The Coffee Bean Robeks 
Famous Dave's Tully's Coffee Smoothie King 
Fleming's Winchell's Surf City Squeeze 
Fuddruckers TCBY 
Golden Corral Fast Food Major 
Hooters Arby's 
IHOP Burger King 
Joe's Crab Shack KFC 
Johnny Rockets Wendy's 
Macaroni Grill 

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site 
Assessment 

60 

2. Strategy 

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site Assessment 

61 

• Several locations within City were emphasized by the City and 
evaluated by the City/Consultant Team as potential Opportunity Sites 
for retail and other development  

• Strengths, Challenges, and Opportunities were assessed for the 
Opportunity Sites in consideration of development feasibility 

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site Overview 

Source: ESRI (2015) 
62 

Opportunity Site #1 
Mission Viejo Village Plaza 

Opportunity Site #3 
Community Center Hospitality 

Opportunity Site #4 
Trabuco Rd. & Marguerite Pkwy Opportunity Site #7 

Target Center – Alicia Parkway 

City Limits 

Opportunity Site #2 
Mission Viejo Garden Plaza 

Opportunity Site #8 
Mission Viejo Freeway Center 

Opportunity Site #5 
Former Unisys Site – Jeronimo Rd. 

Opportunity Site #12 
Burlington Coat Factory 

Opportunity Site #6 
Gateway Shopping Center 

Opportunity Site #13 
Estanciero Dr. & Marguerite Pkwy 

Opportunity Site #11 
Renew Apartments - Marguerite Pkwy 

Opportunity Site #9 
Puerta Real & Crown Valley Pkwy Opportunity Site #10 

Shops at Mission Viejo 

Note: Potential opportunity sites listed in no particular order 

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #1 
Mission Viejo Village Plaza 

63 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Strong intersection at Marguerite 

Parkway and La Paz Road 
• Directly adjacent to civic center 
• Adjacent open space and trails 
• Strong household incomes 
• Commercial zoning 

• Fragmented 
ownership 

• Aging exterior 
• Unused parking in 

rear, poor traffic 
circulation 

• Potential revitalization, 
including improved 
parking and circulation 

• Potential mixed-use 
redevelopment with 
residential 

• Approx. 28.6 acres 
• Approx. 231,000 SF buildings 
• Various private ownerships 
• Zoned Community Commercial 

(CC) 

City Hall & 
Public Library 

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #2 
Mission Viejo Garden Plaza 

64 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Strong intersection at Marguerite 

Parkway and La Paz Road 
• Directly adjacent to civic center 

and robust retail 
• Strong household incomes 

 

• Steep grade • Potential mixed-use 
development with 
residential 

• Approx. 5.2 acres 
• Approx. 54,000 SF buildings 
• Owned by VR Garden Plaza LLC 
• Zoned Office Professional (OP) 

City Hall & 
Public Library 

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #3 
Norman P. Murray Center – Potential Hospitality 

65 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Proximity to major intersection at 

Marguerite Parkway and La Paz 
Road 

• Significant athletic and other 
community center events, 
pedestrian traffic 

• Strong household incomes 

• Location • Potential hotel 
development 

• Improved parking (e.g. 
structure) 

• Potential hospitality opportunity in the 
vicinity of Norman P. Murray Center 

• Community Facility land use surrounded 
by Recreation / Open Space uses (Oso 
Viejo Community Park) 

Norman P. 
Murray Center 

Middle 
School 

Elks Lodge 
(Mission Viejo 

Elks Lodge #2444) 

Open Space 
(Pacific Hills HOA) Ralphs Center 

(La Paz & Marguerite 
Shopping Center LP) 

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #4 
Retail Vacancy – Trabuco Road & Marguerite Parkway 

66 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Signalized intersection at 

Marguerite Pkwy. & Trabuco Rd. 
• Commercial zoning 
• Strong household incomes 

 
 

• Existing vacancy 
• 3-way intersection 

(effectively) 

• Potential re-tenanting 

• Approx. 3.5 acres 
• Approx. 38,000 SF buildings 
• Owned by CP Marguerite MV 

LLC and Wayne C. Reither 
• Zoned Commercial 

Neighborhood (CN) 

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #5 
Old Unisys Site – Jeronimo Road 

67 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Large parcel adjacent to existing 

retail (Target) 
• Strong household incomes 

 
 
 

• Access 
• Visibility 
• Environmental 

conditions 

• Potential mixed-use 
development 

• Approx. 26.9 acres 
• Owned by MV Universal LLC 
• Zoned Business Park (BP) 

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #6 
Gateway Shopping Center 

68 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Signalized intersection at Alicia 

Pkwy & Jeronimo Rd 
• Adjacent retail uses 
• Strong household incomes 

 
 

• Vacancy on west portion 
• Parking / circulation 
• Easement 

• Potential re-tenanting 

• Approx. 8.6 acres 
• Approx. 80,000 SF buildings 
• Owned by Gateway Garp LLC 
• Zoned Commercial Neighborhood (CN) 

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #7 
Target Center – Alicia Parkway and I-5 Freeway 

69 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Freeway intersection at I-5 and 

Alicia Parkway 
• Adjacent supporting retail 
• Commercial zoning 
• Strong household incomes 

 

• Unused parking fields 
(former garden center) 

• Potential revitalization, 
more efficient parking 

• Potential mixed-use 
development with 
residential 

• Approx. 10.1 acres 
• Approx. 113,000 SF Target 
• Owned by Target Corp 
• Zoned Community Commercial 

(CC) 

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #8 
Mission Viejo Freeway Center – I-5 and El Paseo 

70 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Freeway-oriented retail along I-5 
• High concentration of retail 
• Commercial zoning 
• Strong household incomes 

 

• Access 
• Previous big box 

vacancies 

• Potential property 
revitalization, site 
improvements, improved 
signage 

• Approx. 30+ acres 
• Multiple big box retail users 
• Multiple private ownerships 
• Zoned Commercial 

Highway (CH) 

N 

Mission Viejo 
High School 

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #9 
Puerta Real & Crown Valley Parkway 

71 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• I-5 Freeway visibility and access 
• Signalized intersection at Puerta 

Real & Crown Valley Pkwy 
• Adjacent retail at Kaleidoscope 
• Strong household incomes 

 

• Occupied existing center • Potential revitalization / 
mixed-use development 
(e.g. hotel) with freeway 
exposure 

• Approx. 5.5 acres 
• Approx. 40,000 SF buildings 
• Owned by Lester C. Smull 
• Zoned Commercial Highway (CH) 

The Shops at 
Mission Viejo 

Kaleidoscope 
Courtyards 

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #10 
Shops at Mission Viejo 

72 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Regional retail shopping 

destination 
• I-5 Freeway visibility and access 
• Strong household incomes 

 
 

• Institutional owner • Mall expansion 

• Approx. 67 acres 
• Approx. 1,150,000 SF buildings 
• Owned by Shops at Mission Viejo LLC, 

Macys California Inc. 
• Zoned Commercial Regional (CR) 

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #11 
Renew Apartments – Marguerite Parkway 

73 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Access from I-5 Freeway 
• On-site residential and adjacent 

retail and educational uses 
• Strong household incomes 

 
 

• Residential relocation • Potential development of 
on-site retail component 

• Approx. 23.3 acres 
• Owned by South Orange County 

Community College District 
• Zoned Residential 30 (14-30 DU / 

AC) 

The Shops at 
Mission Viejo 

Saddleback 
College 

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #12 
Burlington Coat Factory – Marguerite Parkway 

74 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Access from I-5 Freeway 
• Signalized intersection at Avery 

Pkwy & Marguerite Pkwy 
• Strong household incomes 

 
 

• Long-term master lease, 
potential underutilization 

• Potential revitalization 

• Approx. 6.9 acres 
• Approx. 40,000 SF buildings 
• Owned by David L. Horowitz,  

Thomas Horowitz Trust 
• Zoned Commercial Highway (CH) 

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #13 
Estanciero Dr. & Marguerite Pkwy 

75 

Strengths Challenges Opportunities 
• Signalized intersection at 

Estanciero Dr. & Marguerite Pkwy 
• Nearby retail and restaurants 
• Strong household incomes 

 
 

• Small site footprint • Potential revitalization 

• Approx. 1.4 acres 
• Approx. 16,000 SF buildings 
• Owned by Nabil Karabetian 
• Zoned Commercial Community 

(CC) 

Item
#30.              



Summary of Findings 

76 

Item
#30.              



Summary of Findings 

77 

Demographics & Employment 
• Well-educated, affluent, relatively older population employed in white collar jobs 
• Low unemployment, with residents employed in Irvine, Los Angeles, Santa Ana, 

within Mission Viejo, and other cities 

Retail & Industry Retention & Recruitment 
• Low retail vacancy compared to South O.C. and total County averages 
• City experiencing minor overall leakage of retail sales, but performs above 

average relative to the County average in terms of retail sales per capita 
• Higher performing retail categories include grocery, electronics & appliances, 

and miscellaneous retail sales, while lower performing retail categories include 
apparel, restaurants and bars, and sporting goods 

Economic Development without Redevelopment 
• Dissolution of redevelopment agencies will continue to have a negative effect on 

most California Cities and impact to health of general fund 
• Alternative economic tools should be explored for Mission Viejo to retain and 

improve tax base and facilitate potential public-private transactions 

Item
#30.              



Questions / Comments 
 

Thank You 

78 

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site
Assessment

60

2. Strategy

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site Assessment

61

• Several locations within City were emphasized by the City and
evaluated by the City/Consultant Team as potential Opportunity Sites
for retail and other development

• Strengths, Challenges, and Opportunities were assessed for the
Opportunity Sites in consideration of development feasibility

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site Overview

Source: ESRI (2015)
62

Opportunity Site #1
Mission Viejo Village Plaza

Opportunity Site #3
Community Center Hospitality

Opportunity Site #4
Trabuco Rd. & Marguerite Pkwy

Opportunity Site #7
Target Center – Alicia Parkway

City Limits

Opportunity Site #2
Mission Viejo Garden Plaza

Opportunity Site #8
Mission Viejo Freeway Center

Opportunity Site #5
Former Unisys Site – Jeronimo Rd.

Opportunity Site #12
Burlington Coat Factory

Opportunity Site #6
Gateway Shopping Center

Opportunity Site #13
Estanciero Dr. & Marguerite Pkwy

Opportunity Site #11
Renew Apartments - Marguerite Pkwy

Opportunity Site #9
Puerta Real & Crown Valley Pkwy

Opportunity Site #10
Shops at Mission Viejo

Note: Potential opportunity sites listed in no particular order

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #1
Mission Viejo Village Plaza

63

Strengths Challenges Opportunities

• Strong intersection at Marguerite
Parkway and La Paz Road

• Directly adjacent to civic center

• Adjacent open space and trails

• Strong household incomes

• Commercial zoning

• Fragmented
ownership

• Aging exterior

• Unused parking in
rear, poor traffic
circulation

• Potential revitalization,
including improved
parking and circulation

• Potential mixed-use
redevelopment with
residential

• Approx. 28.6 acres

• Approx. 231,000 SF buildings

• Various private ownerships

• Zoned Community Commercial
(CC)

City Hall &
Public Library

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #2
Mission Viejo Garden Plaza

64

Strengths Challenges Opportunities

• Strong intersection at Marguerite
Parkway and La Paz Road

• Directly adjacent to civic center
and robust retail

• Strong household incomes

• Steep grade • Potential mixed-use
development with
residential

• Approx. 5.2 acres

• Approx. 54,000 SF buildings

• Owned by VR Garden Plaza LLC

• Zoned Office Professional (OP)

City Hall &
Public Library

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #3
Norman P. Murray Center – Potential Hospitality

65

Strengths Challenges Opportunities

• Proximity to major intersection at
Marguerite Parkway and La Paz
Road

• Significant athletic and other
community center events,
pedestrian traffic

• Strong household incomes

• Location • Potential hotel
development

• Improved parking (e.g.
structure)

• Potential hospitality opportunity in the
vicinity of Norman P. Murray Center

• Community Facility land use surrounded
by Recreation / Open Space uses (Oso
Viejo Community Park)

Norman P.
Murray Center

Middle
School

Elks Lodge
(Mission Viejo

Elks Lodge #2444)

Open Space
(Pacific Hills HOA)

Ralphs Center
(La Paz & Marguerite
Shopping Center LP)

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #4
Retail Vacancy – Trabuco Road & Marguerite Parkway

66

Strengths Challenges Opportunities

• Signalized intersection at
Marguerite Pkwy. & Trabuco Rd.

• Commercial zoning

• Strong household incomes

• Existing vacancy

• 3-way intersection
(effectively)

• Potential re-tenanting

• Approx. 3.5 acres

• Approx. 38,000 SF buildings

• Owned by CP Marguerite MV
LLC and Wayne C. Reither

• Zoned Commercial
Neighborhood (CN)

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #5
Old Unisys Site – Jeronimo Road

67

Strengths Challenges Opportunities

• Large parcel adjacent to existing
retail (Target)

• Strong household incomes

• Access

• Visibility

• Environmental
conditions

• Potential mixed-use
development

• Approx. 26.9 acres

• Owned by MV Universal LLC

• Zoned Business Park (BP)

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #6
Gateway Shopping Center

68

Strengths Challenges Opportunities

• Signalized intersection at Alicia
Pkwy & Jeronimo Rd

• Adjacent retail uses

• Strong household incomes

• Vacancy on west portion

• Parking / circulation

• Easement

• Potential re-tenanting

• Approx. 8.6 acres

• Approx. 80,000 SF buildings

• Owned by Gateway Garp LLC

• Zoned Commercial Neighborhood (CN)

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #7
Target Center – Alicia Parkway and I-5 Freeway

69

Strengths Challenges Opportunities

• Freeway intersection at I-5 and
Alicia Parkway

• Adjacent supporting retail

• Commercial zoning

• Strong household incomes

• Unused parking fields
(former garden center)

• Potential revitalization,
more efficient parking

• Potential mixed-use
development with
residential

• Approx. 10.1 acres

• Approx. 113,000 SF Target

• Owned by Target Corp

• Zoned Community Commercial
(CC)

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #8
Mission Viejo Freeway Center – I-5 and El Paseo

70

Strengths Challenges Opportunities

• Freeway-oriented retail along I-5

• High concentration of retail

• Commercial zoning

• Strong household incomes

• Access

• Previous big box
vacancies

• Potential property
revitalization, site
improvements, improved
signage

• Approx. 30+ acres

• Multiple big box retail users

• Multiple private ownerships

• Zoned Commercial
Highway (CH)

N

Mission Viejo
High School

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #9
Puerta Real & Crown Valley Parkway

71

Strengths Challenges Opportunities

• I-5 Freeway visibility and access

• Signalized intersection at Puerta
Real & Crown Valley Pkwy

• Adjacent retail at Kaleidoscope

• Strong household incomes

• Occupied existing center • Potential revitalization /
mixed-use development
(e.g. hotel) with freeway
exposure

• Approx. 5.5 acres

• Approx. 40,000 SF buildings

• Owned by Lester C. Smull

• Zoned Commercial Highway (CH)

The Shops at
Mission Viejo

Kaleidoscope
Courtyards

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #10
Shops at Mission Viejo

72

Strengths Challenges Opportunities

• Regional retail shopping
destination

• I-5 Freeway visibility and access

• Strong household incomes

• Institutional owner • Mall expansion

• Approx. 67 acres

• Approx. 1,150,000 SF buildings

• Owned by Shops at Mission Viejo LLC,
Macys California Inc.

• Zoned Commercial Regional (CR)

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #11
Renew Apartments – Marguerite Parkway

73

Strengths Challenges Opportunities

• Access from I-5 Freeway

• On-site residential and adjacent
retail and educational uses

• Strong household incomes

• Residential relocation • Potential development of
on-site retail component

• Approx. 23.3 acres

• Owned by South Orange County
Community College District

• Zoned Residential 30 (14-30 DU /
AC)

The Shops at
Mission Viejo

Saddleback
College

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #12
Burlington Coat Factory – Marguerite Parkway

74

Strengths Challenges Opportunities

• Access from I-5 Freeway

• Signalized intersection at Avery
Pkwy & Marguerite Pkwy

• Strong household incomes

• Long-term master lease,
potential underutilization

• Potential revitalization

• Approx. 6.9 acres

• Approx. 40,000 SF buildings

• Owned by David L. Horowitz,
Thomas Horowitz Trust

• Zoned Commercial Highway (CH)

Item
#30.              



Opportunity Site #13
Estanciero Dr. & Marguerite Pkwy

75

Strengths Challenges Opportunities

• Signalized intersection at
Estanciero Dr. & Marguerite Pkwy

• Nearby retail and restaurants

• Strong household incomes

• Small site footprint • Potential revitalization

• Approx. 1.4 acres

• Approx. 16,000 SF buildings

• Owned by Nabil Karabetian

• Zoned Commercial Community
(CC)

Item
#30.              



Summary of Findings

76

Item
#30.              



Summary of Findings

77

Demographics & Employment

• Well-educated, affluent, relatively older population employed in white collar jobs

• Low unemployment, with residents employed in Irvine, Los Angeles, Santa Ana,
within Mission Viejo, and other cities

Retail & Industry Retention & Recruitment

• Low retail vacancy compared to South O.C. and total County averages

• City experiencing minor overall leakage of retail sales, but performs above
average relative to the County average in terms of retail sales per capita

• Higher performing retail categories include grocery, electronics & appliances,
and miscellaneous retail sales, while lower performing retail categories include
apparel, restaurants and bars, and sporting goods

Economic Development without Redevelopment

• Dissolution of redevelopment agencies will continue to have a negative effect on
most California Cities and impact to health of general fund

• Alternative economic tools should be explored for Mission Viejo to retain and
improve tax base and facilitate potential public-private transactions

Item
#30.              



Questions / Comments

Thank You

78

Item
#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE                       Contact: Steven LaMotte  
April 13th, 2016                                                949-553-9500 

 

City of Mission Viejo Supports BIA/OC Housing Futures Initiative 

Mission Viejo – The City of Mission Viejo voted to approve a Resolution in support of the BIA/OC Housing 

Futures Initiative Tuesday evening.  The Building Industry Association Orange County Chapter (BIA/OC), in 

collaboration with the Orange County Business Council and the Orange County Association of 

REALTORS®, joined forces on the Housing Futures Initiative aimed at new ideas on how to generate more 

housing for the economically challenged and reverse the trend of losing Orange County’s youth due to high 

housing costs.   

“Orange County is losing 7% of individuals in the 25-34 age range, while surrounding counties are showing 

an increase,” BIA/OC CEO Mike Balsamo said.  “We need to work with local jurisdictions to reverse this 

trend by examining existing zoning codes and land use recommendations to incentivize housing that is 

affordable to a broader range of people.”  

The City of Mission Viejo, one of the largest cities in Orange County, is currently in the midst of studying 

underutilized spaces for revitalization.  By considering the Recommendations detailed in the Resolution, 

many of which are already adopted in the city’s housing element, Mission Viejo is demonstrating a 

commitment to address the region’s housing shortage and affordability crisis.   

 “Educating local policy makers on the negative impacts that the housing crisis has on major employers, 

economic growth and the health of our local neighborhoods is a key mission of the BIA/OC,” Balsamo said.  

“We hope to work further with other cities and coalition partners to bring more attention to this issue.” 

The BIA is a nonprofit trade association of over 1,100 companies employing over 100,000 people affiliated 

with the home building industry here in Orange County.  Their mission is to champion housing as the 

foundation of vibrant and sustainable communities. 

 
  

### 

 

Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              



Item#30.              


	AGENDA
	CLOSED SESSION
	CS1. Conference with Legal Counsel Pursuant to Government Code 54957(a) on Matters Posing a Threat to Public Services, Facilities and Operations
	CS2. Conference with Legal Counsel- Anticipated Litigation Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) or (3) of subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: Two anticipated cases; one adverse to Mayor Ury and the other adverse to the City, both  as threatened by Capistrano Unified School District ("CUSD") after it held closed session(s) and announced its decision in public. The apparent reason for the threats of lawsuit against a public official and the City is as regards the City and its official(s) expressing concerns and issues in relation to a proposed but not yet adopted public finance bond measure proposed by CUSD


	REPORT OF CLOSED SESSION
	INVOCATION: Council Member Sachs
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Council Member Raths
	PRESENTATIONS
	PUBLIC COMMENTS
	CONSENT CALENDAR
	1. Waive Reading of Ordinances and Resolutions
	2. City Council Minutes
	[M160712.pdf]
	[M160726.pdf]

	3. Check Register Dated July 8, 2016 in the Amount of $3,851,648.76
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Exhibit]

	4. Check Register Dated July 15, 2016 in the Amount of $2,734,572.32
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Exhibit]

	5. Check Register Dated July 22, 2016 in the Amount of $682,634.84
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Exhibit]

	6. Check Register Dated July 29, 2016 in the Amount of $684,499.39
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Check Register Dated 7-29-16.pdf]

	7. Check Register Dated August 5, 2016 in the Amount of $1,206,920.37
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Exhibit]

	8. City Treasurer’s Monthly Report for June 2016
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[City Treasurers Rpt June cc.pdf]

	9. Mission Viejo Community Development Financing Authority (MVCDFA) Treasurer’s Monthly Report for June 2016
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[MVCDFA Treasurers Rpt Jun cc.pdf]

	10. Mission Viejo Housing Authority (MVHA) Treasurer’s Monthly Report for June 2016
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[MVHA Treasurers Rpt June cc.pdf]

	11. Successor Agency of the Community Development Agency Treasurer’s Monthly Report for
June 2016

	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[SA Treasurers Rpt June cc.pdf]

	12. Shared Services Agreement with City of Rancho Santa Margarita for Stormwater and Solid Waste Program Management
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Draft Agreement (Revision 8-2-16)]
	[Draft Resolution]

	13. Project V Local Transit Cooperative Agreement
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Draft Agreement]
	[Map]
	[Draft Resolution]

	14. Pavion Park Restroom Construction (CIP 304) - Notice of Completion
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[CIP 304-Notice of completion.doc]
	[Budget Summary-Pavion Restroom.docx]

	15. First Amendment to the Legislative Advocacy and Government Relations Services Agreement
	[Agenda Report]
	[Townsend Public Affairs Signed 2016_07_01.pdf]
	[Townsend Public Affairs First Amendment 2016_08_23.docx]

	16. Traffic Signal Maintenance-Contract Change Order 1
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Contract Change Order]

	17. 2016 Residential Resurfacing-Slurry Seal (CIP 838)
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Map]
	[Bid Summary]
	[Draft Agreement]
	[Budget Summary]

	18. Consultant Services for Producer/Director of Mission Viejo Television SportsZone Show
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Contract_MVTV Sports Zone-16-17.docx]
	[SportsZone Proposal-2015-17.pdf]

	19. Geographic Information System (GIS) Renewal
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[DMPS Order Form (2014).pdf]
	[DMP Agreement (2014).pdf]
	[Second Amendment.pdf]
	[Exhibit B - Amended Payment Schedule.pdf]

	20. Marguerite Parkway Roadway Pollutant and Runoff Abatement Project: Alarcon to Santa Margarita Parkway (CIP 229)
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Draft Resolution]

	21. Installation of Soil Tiebacks under Avery Parkway
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[Draft License Agreement]
	[Exhibit [Tieback Cross-Section]]


	ITEMS REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT CALENDAR
	PUBLIC HEARINGS
	22. Proposed Abatement of Weeds on Parcels Less than One Acre for the Annual Weed Abatement Program 2016 - Phase 2.
	[Agenda Report.doc]
	[2014 Govt Code 39568-39588.pdf]
	[2016 Weed Abatement List-COMPLIANT.xlsx]
	[2016-Resolution No 16-28-ExhibitA.pdf]

	23. Consideration of the Issuance of Multi-Family Revenue Housing Bonds by The California Municipal Finance Authority (CMFA) for the Benefit of the Developer and Borrower, Heritage Villas Housing Partners, LP, in Connection with Financing the Acquisition, Substantial Rehabilitation and Improvement of the Existing 143-Unit Heritage Villas Senior Affordable Housing Project
	[Agenda Report]
	[Executive Summary]
	[City Council Resolution]
	[Supplemental background information]


	MAYOR’S, COMMISSION, COMMITTEE REPORTS AND ACTIONS
	24. Update on CUSD Bond Measure 
	25. Orange County Fire Authority (OCFA) Report
	26. Foothill/Eastern Transportation Corridor Agency Report
	27. San Joaquin Hills Transportation Corridor Agency Report
	28. Orange County Transportation Authority (OCTA)

	STAFF REPORTS
	COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS AND ACTIONS
	29. Council Member Reports of Events and Activities Attended
	[Agenda Report]
	[AB1234 Reports]


	Council Member Raths
	Council Member Sachs
	Council Member Schlicht
	30. A report to the Citizens of Mission Viejo on the Kosmont Report: The Retail and Market Strategy with potential for infilling commercial properties with mixed-use development including residential
	[Agenda Report_Schlicht_Kosmont.pdf]
	[Exhibit 1.pdf]
	[Exhibit 2.pdf]
	[Exhibit 3.pdf]
	[Exhibit 4.pdf]
	[Exhibit 5.pdf]
	[Exhibit 6.pdf]
	[Exhibit 7.pdf]
	[Exhibit 8.pdf]
	[Exhibit 9.pdf]
	[Exhibit 10.pdf]
	[Exhibit 11.pdf]


	Mayor Pro Tem Bucknum
	Mayor Ury

